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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Hoi-wan

Chan, Lok-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors.
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)

Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chan, Sze-wan (Chairman)
Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai
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SOLICITORS

(Listed in alphabetical order)
Baker & McKenzie

Deacons

Sidley Austin

Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, London Branch

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

26th Floor, China Evergrande Centre
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2862 8555

Fax:  (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A R&EX

OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Room 202, Oriental Place

No. 9 East Dongfang Road
North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
Post Code: 100027

Tel:  (8610) 6466 0638
Fax:  (8610) 6466 0238

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT

500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel: (852) 2866 6999
Fax: (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail: investor.relations@chineseestates.com

4 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017

PEARANENRSZE

PRI RTEHGRE
R=RILE

B RO

R B AE202%E
4% 100027

BEiE: (8610) 6466 0638
f#E : (8610) 6466 0238

At

http://www.chineseestates.com

B4 1K 5%

127
BEEEN
500/%

REEBE

ERREEBERERCEN B
B35 (852) 2866 6999

f#H 1 (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

FH : investor.relations@chineseestates.com



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Sze-wan, aged 39, joined the Group (the Company together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2002 and has been appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. She acts as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since November 2015 and also
acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is
also the chairman of the investment committee of the Company. She is
responsible for the Group's overall and day-to-day management including
overseeing the Group's properties’ sales and leasing affairs. Ms. Chan has
over 15 years of experience in sales and marketing, management and
operations. She is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and Ms. Chan,
Lok-wan, and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai. As at the date of this annual
report, Ms. Chan is a director of certain substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO").

Ms. CHAN, Hoi-wan, aged 38, appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company since 13th February, 2017. She had joined the then associate of
the Group from 2002 to 2005 and participated in its cosmetics business,
including Two Girls products. She also possessed of more than 3.5 years'
work experience in media field in Hong Kong and gained experience in
properties and securities investments through her investments. Ms. Chan
is the younger sister of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, the elder sister of Ms. Chan,
Lok-wan, the step-mother of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and the sister-in-law of
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Chan is
a director of certain substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 33, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department and also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business and Management (Marketing) from Brunel University
London and a Master Degree of Science in Communication, Information
and Society from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
She is responsible for the Group's marketing affairs, overseeing the
Group's cosmetics business, including Two Girls products, and participated
in the Group's properties’ sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over
9 years of experience in sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-

wai.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEfE/

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (contd)

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 62, joined the Group in 1989 and has
been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012.
Mr. Lam is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Company and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a member of the investment committee of the Company and
acts as the chief investment officer. Mr. Lam is an independent non-
executive director of Lifestyle China Group Limited and was a non-
executive director of LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (formerly known
as Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (up to June 2013) and LT
Holdings Limited (up to June 2014)) for the period from 7th February,
2013 to 6th February, 2016, the shares of these companies are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom. He has over 40 years of experience in auditing,

finance and accounting industries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 37, appointed as a Director of the Company
since 2006 and appointed as the Chairman of the board of Directors
since 2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from King's College
London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School of Economics
and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy in Laws from
King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and
Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining the Group. Mr. Lau
is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a CFA (Chartered
Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the step-son of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan,
the nephew of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. Chan, Lok-wan and Ms. Amy Lau,
Yuk-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lau is a director of a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 64, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-executive
director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, the shares of the
company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was
registered with the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario, Canada
and is a retired dentist. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a
Doctor Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada.
She is the sister-in-law of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the aunt of Mr. Lau,

Ming-wai.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 59, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of
the nomination committee and investment committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the
Monash University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and
a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He has
over 38 years of experience in finance and accounting industries. Mr.
Chan is currently a director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of China Investments Holdings
Limited, Far East Consortium International Limited, National Electronics
Holdings Limited and Tern Properties Company Limited respectively, the
shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 53, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2006. She is the chairman
of the nomination committee, a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. She has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited since 19th May, 2017, the shares of the company are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Loh holds a
Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from
1990 to 1997, and has since become a practising barrister-at-law after
she was called to the Hong Kong Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and the United Kingdom (1991), and is
also a barrister and solicitor in the Supreme Court of the Australian Capital
Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh is a CEDR (Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution) Accredited Mediator (2009) and an appointed member of the
Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) (2018). She was appointed
Deputy District Judge in 2014 and 2016.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 52, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and
investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 30 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. He has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of In Technical
Productions Holdings Limited since 19th May, 2017, the shares of
the company are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and
a Master of Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business Programme), both
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a Master of Science
Degree in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries respectively.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
BRITHRAEEHN

Ms. Connie CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 50, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2007 and is
the Head of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor. She
holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws,
both from The University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Cheung worked in both law firm as a solicitor and public sector as an in-
house legal counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing the legal
aspects of the Group's various businesses, including project development,
commercial investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over 26

years of legal experience.

Mr. Alec KONG, Chi-ming, aged 54, joined the Group in 1994 and is
the Head of Operations. Mr. Kong holds a Bachelor Degree of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master
Degree of Arts in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a Master Degree
of Business Administration, both from the City University of Hong Kong.
He is a member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr.
Kong is responsible for overseeing the Group's business development in
Mainland China, as well as the administration of Hong Kong office. He has

over 27 years of experience in the property field.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 49, joined the Group in 2000 and is
the Senior Manager— Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 27 years of

relevant experience.

Ms. Connie Cheung, Mun-yi and Mr. Alec Kong, Chi-ming hold position
as a director in one or more of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the

date of this annual report.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2017 (the "Year") to
the shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$3,708.9
million as compared to HK$6,360.3 million for last year. The decrease
in profit of 41.7% for the Year was mainly arising from (i) decrease in
attributable net rental income; (i) decrease in attributable property sales
profit; (i) decrease in gains on disposals of subsidiaries; (iv) decrease in
imputed interest income from deferred consideration receivables; despite
(v) increase in fair value gain on investment properties; and (vi) increase
in net profit from the segment of the listed investments and treasury
products at fair value through profit or loss. Earnings per share for the Year
was HK$1.94 (2016: HK$3.33).

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$646.4 million (2016
HK$577.5 million) are excluded, but the major accumulated net realised
fair value gain together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of
investment properties and stock of properties from the Group recognised
in prior years of HK$336.2 million (2016: the accumulated realised fair
value gain together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of
investment properties and stock of properties from the Group and its
associates recognised in prior years of HK$17,248.7 million) (including
those recognised in properties revaluation reserve) are included, the
Group will have a core profit for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$3,398.7 million (2016: HK$23,031.5 million) and a
core earnings per share of HK$1.78 (2016: HK$12.07), which were both
decreased by 85.2% to those in the year of 2016

The major non-cash items represented the attributable unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$646.4 million (2016:
HK$577.5 million).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&EZE

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK10 cents per
share (2016: HK1 cent per share) for the Year (the “Final Dividend”).

The Group has recorded a total comprehensive income for the Year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$16,348.7
million (2016: approximately HK$3,418.7 million), of which unrealised
gain on fair value change of listed equity investments in China Evergrande
Group (Stock Code: 3333) was approximately HK$9,928.3 million (as
detailed in Note 26(ii) to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report), as such gain was unrealised and was a non-cash item, any
dividend declaration or recommendation on such unrealised gain is not

currently intended by the Board.

During the Year, the Company had paid total dividends of HK$5.12
per share in the total amount of approximately HK$9,767.0 million to
shareholders, which included (a) 2016 final dividend of HK1 cent per
share (payment date: 12th June, 2017) (2015 final dividend: HK1 cent
per share), (b) special interim dividends of (i) HK$1.36 per share in
the total amount of approximately HK$2,594.3 million (payment date:
10th February, 2017), (ii) HK64 cents per share in the total amount of
approximately HK$1,220.9 million (payment date: 10th February, 2017),
in connection with the completion of the Win Kings Disposal and the
Pinecrest Disposal (both as defined in “Other Information and Events After
the Reporting Period” of this annual report) of which gains on disposals
of subsidiaries in aggregate of approximately HK$143.3 million were
recorded, and (iii) HK$2.91 per share in the total amount of approximately
HK$5,551.2 million (payment date: 23rd June, 2017), in connection
with the completion of the Great Captain Disposal (as defined in “Other
Information and Events After the Reporting Period” of this annual report)
of which a substantial realised gain attributable from its principal asset of
577,180,500 H shares of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066)
(through the Great Captain Disposal) of approximately HK$2.1 billion
was recorded as an other comprehensive income (2016 special interim
dividends: HK$7.33 per share in total) and (c) 2017 interim dividend of
HK20 cents per share (payment date: 13th September, 2017) (2016
interim dividend: HK1 cent per share). To preserve more cash for the
Group's future financial, property investment or securities investment
opportunities, the Board has recommended the payment of the Final
Dividend of HK10 cents per share (2016: HK1 cent per share).
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DIVIDENDS (contd)

In respect of the Group’s listed equity investments in China Evergrande
Group, the Board recognised the possible potential fluctuation in the Hong
Kong stock market. As and when the share price of China Evergrande
Group reaches a satisfactory and attractive level, the Group may consider
realise part of the listed equity investments in China Evergrande Group.
Subject to the then business, financial and cashflow position of the
Group, the Board may further consider declaration or recommendation
of dividend(s) if and when appropriate upon realisation of investments
in listed equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income including the net proceeds of the intended realisation of the cost
and profit arising from the shares in China Evergrande Group (if any), as
a return to the shareholders of the Company. Further announcement(s)
regarding any proposal of such dividend(s) (if any) will be made by the
Company pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 18th May, 2018 (the “2018
AGM"), dividend warrants for the Final Dividend will be posted on or
about 6th June, 2018 to shareholders whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 28th May, 2018.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRESE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS TERERRELFE

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote ~ ABERREF - \FREBFASTNE L
at the 2018 AGM, and entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend, RZEHER  REREZ AR EHERN - A2 #
the register of members will be closed during the following periods % BIF T 51| £ H (= i HE IR BR & v F 48 ¢
respectively:

(1) For ascertaining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM:

MABREHE-_Z-\FREEFASAIRSELRRNER:

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration 14.5.2018
R B D 38 P X AR B R B R4 R R 16:30
Closure of register of members 15.5.2018-18.5.2018
HiEMEREELFE (both days inclusive) (B iEEEMX)

(2) For ascertaining entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend:

(2 AREEKES R RS NVER:

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration 24.5.2018
KA EP X AMEE LN RRER 16:30
Closure of register of members 25.5.2018-28.5.2018
HiEMERREELFE (both days inclusive) (B iEEREMX)
Record date 28.5.2018
Eakza=R

To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, and to qualify for AFABERHE-_ZT— \FRREFASITRE L
the recommended Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfers %2 RERZEZ KRS - AHEZHRM B X
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged — #FERE AR EMER il D RIHERE M &E KR AT
for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office i~ HKEA R RN BB 2 BFEL VBB BP RESHE
Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, AR AR « ik BEFE T 2ERER1835E M
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road ~ /D 17#£1712-17165% 4 ©

East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as

stated above.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group is one of the leading property developers in Hong Kong and
its core businesses comprise property investments for rental and property

development for sale as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

The Group specialises in developing high-end and luxury residential
properties in prime locations in Hong Kong; and enjoying profit
contribution and cash inflow from property sales to achieve long-term

sustainable growth and developing a brand name in the market.

In Mainland China, the Group invested in office properties and hotel
business in the prestigious areas to generate stable and recurrent rental

income.

Other than property investment and development in Hong Kong and/
or Mainland China, the Group is actively grasping the opportunities for

acquiring properties in the United Kingdom.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows

the Group to weather the cyclicality of the property business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&EZE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major

sources of our income.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place was approximately 89.66%.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage

residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was

approximately 96.43% during the Year.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation

residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was

approximately 70.20% during the Year.

The average occupancy rate for the Group's office property, Harcourt

House was approximately 91.80% during the Year.

Hong Kong Property Development

In general, the Group's development projects have been progressing

satisfactorily.

One South Lane is located in the Western District and enjoys close
proximity to the HKU MTR Station. It is a luxury residential/retail tower with
a total gross floor area of around 41,353 square feet which provides 92

residential units. As at 31st December, 2017, all residential units were sold

and handed over to individual purchasers.

55 Conduit Road (70% interest) is a luxury residential development in
Mid-Levels West with total residential gross floor area of around 87,800
square feet which provides 35 residential units. As at 31st December,
2017, 34 residential units were sold and handed over to individual

purchasers, representing 97.14% of total units. 1 residential unit was

contracted for sales subsequent to the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (Cont'd)

The Hermitage (25% interest) is one of the Group's joint venture
development projects in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 964 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet. As at 31st
December, 2017, 99.79% of total units were sold.

The Coronation (15% interest) is another joint venture development
project of the Group in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 740 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 650,600 square feet. As at 31st
December, 2017, 99.86% of total units were sold.

Kwun Tong Town Centre Project (Development Areas 2 and 3) (10%
interest) is a joint venture development project of the Group awarded by
the Urban Renewal Authority. Its total site area is approximately 234,160
square feet. Total gross floor area of around 1,853,561 square feet will
be developed. 4 residential tower blocks with 1,999 residential units in
aggregate will be built and will be launched in two phases. Excavation and
lateral support works and pile cap works were completed. Superstructure
works are in progress. As at 31st December, 2017, the presale consent
applications of both phases were pending for approval. It is expected
that the presale will be launched in the second half of 2018. The whole
project will be completed in the first quarter of 2021.

In February 2017, the Group disposed the company holding the property

development situated at No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace.

Mainland China Property Investment

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), a five-star international hotel having 502

rooms, average occupancy rate was approximately 77.17% for the Year.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton

Beijing, average occupancy rate was approximately 98.17% for the Year.

In February 2017, the Group disposed the companies holding 79 retail
outlets with a total area of approximately 29,000 square feet in Lowu
Commercial Plaza, Shenzhen. The average occupancy rate of such retail
outlets for the Year immediately before disposal was approximately
99.02%.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH &=

olp

s

EEENWRES @

ERAYMERE (B)

HE e 2/ (1H25%#E%) BAEEEP —HAURA
NBENAEERIBE - Z BB H6EEEAREAN
RHAHMEFEEM L TERF AEEEEA
H491,095980F FR- R _ZE—+F+_A=+—

5
BEHEMAEZ99.79% -

junj

e o Bz (515%Em) AREE S —HUREN
EOWEEERIER ZIBEEBEIEREAK 17
HERTIEFEENRTERH BETERESH
#1650,600F FR - R —_F—tF+-_A=+—8H"
BB BEAAAE299.86% °

BIEMROEFEF_RE-ZFEREEE ({5100
H)AAEEETREEZRM TERZAEHESR
BothBAETEA LH234,160F AR BHERE 2B
EEmEmES 491,853,561 F 5 R - & EK4EFE
AE - A AR 1,999 (E £ B AL - Wi 5 A ™ H
o YRR AR AT T2 B8 TIRE 5o - IE#E
TEERETR R_T—+F+=-A=+—H ™
HIER 2 EERTERAEZ EHAIT -BHBER=Z
—NFTHEFHE - BEABEFN T _—FF—
F®T-

R-F—tF A AEELEREGUREREZ2
R MEERER 2R

TEIREERE

b= AHBEEE ((h5000ME &) « & — B R A 5024
EENAEREBRBEE RAFEZFHAERY
BT717% °

RABBKRE (1550%# %) @ AR %5 B iE5EE Al
M—EESI0OEHAE RAFEZFHEAERY
£98.17% °

RZE—tF A AEBLERERYIMEND
EW7ETEmM (MBS H£A29,000F A R) 22
Al -REBERHENZAFEN  ZETERM2TY
7 & 49 /599.020% ©

"

ZE-EFFER EA

[
e
i
i)

15



16

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&EZE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Overseas Property Investment

The Group's investment properties in the United Kingdom were fully let

during the Year.

River Court is a Grade A freehold office building situated at 116-129
Fleet Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area
of approximately 431,324 square feet, together with certain car parking

spaces.

“14 St George Street” is a Grade A freehold office building located in
London, United Kingdom. The building comprises approximately 51,861
square feet of office accommodation arranged over lower ground, ground

and four upper floors.

“61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and 11-14 Soho Street” is a mixed use
freehold building located in London, United Kingdom, comprising
approximately 55,162 square feet in aggregate. The building provides
retails, office and residential accommodation, occupying approximately
33,850 square feet, 13,735 square feet and 7,577 square feet

respectively, over lower ground, ground and six upper floors.

“11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard” is a mixed
use freehold building located in London, United Kingdom. The building
provides around 80,000 square feet Grade A office accommodation
arranged over lower ground, ground and six upper floors. The Group

acquired the holding company of this property in May 2017.

Securities Investments

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management, as at 31st December, 2017, comprised of bonds
and listed equity investment. The Group's primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the abilities of the entities in the
Group to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders of the Company. The Group's strategy for future
investments is to invest in a diversified portfolio to minimise risks with
attractive yield, good liquidity and issuers from reputable entities, so as
to maintain a healthy financial status and grasp every good investment

chance. No investments are made for speculative purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The gain recognised on such securities investments for the Year was
approximately HK$1,708.7 million. Details of the performance of securities
investment are disclosed under “Financial Operation Review” of this

annual report.

The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investments to achieve satisfactory returns.

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of Subsidiaries holding the Property Development
situated at No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace and Certain Shops of Lowu

Commercial Plaza, Shenzhen - Major and Connected Transactions

The Group has on 5th December, 2016 entered into sale and purchase
agreements, in relation to, inter alia, disposal of the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company that ultimately held (i) the property
development situated at No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, Mid-Levels East, Hong
Kong; and (i) certain shops of Lowu Commercial Plaza located in
Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") to the companies
wholly-owned by (i) Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an associate of Mr. Joseph Lau,
Luen-hung (the then substantial shareholder and controlling shareholder
of the Company) (“Mr. Joseph Lau”) and an associate of Directors at
the time of entering into relevant sale and purchase agreement (the
“Win Kings Disposal”); and (ii) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (“Mr. MW Lau"), the
Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive Director (the “Pinecrest
Disposal”) respectively. The Win Kings Disposal and the Pinecrest Disposal
constituted major and connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules and each of them was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 13th January, 2017. The Win Kings Disposal and the
Pinecrest Disposal were completed on 10th February, 2017 at the final
consideration of approximately HK$889.6 million and HK$352.2 million
respectively. Details of the Win Kings Disposal and the Pinecrest Disposal
were set out in the Company's announcement dated 5th December,
2016, circular dated 28th December, 2016 and announcement dated
10th February, 2017.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&EZE

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Appointment of Executive Director

As announced on 13th February, 2017, the Board appointed Ms. Chan,

Hoi-wan (“Ms. HW Chan") as an Executive Director with effect from 13th

February, 2017.

Restructuring of Shareholding

On 1st March, 2017, after the distribution of all the shares in the
Company indirectly held under a discretionary trust (the “Share Trust")
founded by Mr. Joseph Lau to certain eligible beneficiaries of the Share
Trust, Mr. MW Lau and Ms. HW Chan (as trustee for her minor children)
indirectly hold shares representing approximately 24.97% and 50.02%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 1st March, 2017
respectively. Details of the restructuring of shareholding were set out in

the announcement of the Company dated 1st March, 2017.

Disposal of a Subsidiary holding of Equity Interest in Shengjing

Bank Co., Ltd. - Major and Connected Transaction

The Group has on 15th March, 2017 entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, in relation to the disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company that held 577,180,500 H shares in Shengjing Bank Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066) to the company wholly-owned by Ms. HW Chan
(the "Great Captain Disposal”). The Great Captain Disposal constituted a
major and connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules
and was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 4th May, 2017.
The Great Captain Disposal was completed on 23rd June, 2017 at a
consideration of approximately HK$5,567.7 million. Details of the Great
Captain Disposal were set out in the Company's announcement dated
15th March, 2017, circular dated 13th April, 2017 and announcement

dated 23rd June, 2017.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Acquisition of Knightlights Property International S.A. holding a

Property in the United Kingdom - Discloseable Transaction

As announced on 7th May, 2017, the Group has on 5th May, 2017
(London time) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, in relation
to, inter alia, acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Knightlights
Property International S.A. (“KPI"), a company that held a freehold
property situated at 11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond
Yard, London, United Kingdom, with an independent third party, at a
cash consideration of approximately GBP96.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$966.0 million) and repayment of loan due to former
shareholder on behalf of KPI of approximately GBP77.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$773.1 million) (the "Acquisition”). The Acquisition
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Completion of the Acquisition took place on 5th May, 2017

(London time).
Acquisition of Shares in China Evergrande Group

During the Year, the Group acquired 857,541,000 shares in China
Evergrande Group (Stock Code: 3333), at a total consideration (including
transaction costs) of approximately HK$13.2 billion in the open market.
Latest update on the acquisition was set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 2nd January, 2018.
Contract for Services - Continuing Connected Transactions

On 31st October, 2017, the Group entered into a contract for services
(the "Contract”) with Mr. Joseph Lau, whereby the Group agreed
to provide to Mr. Joseph Lau leasing administration services, sale
administration services, property management services, property
administration services, asset management and maintenance services,
rental services, advisory and consultancy services and other ordinary
services for a term of 3 years commenced on 1st November, 2017. An

announcement was made on 31st October, 2017.

At the time of entering into the Contract, Mr. Joseph Lau is the spouse
of, and accordingly an associate of Ms. HW Chan (an Executive Director
and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the Company). Therefore,
Mr. Joseph Lau is a connected person of the Company and the Contract
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing

connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Forfeiture of Unclaimed Dividends

As announced on Tst February, 2018, all dividends declared on or before
17th August, 2011 remaining unclaimed on 28th February, 2018 will be
forfeited and will revert to the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to
ensure their thorough understanding of the Group's strategies and
business development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor

relations.

The Company maintains a Company's website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including
the dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc., to
facilitate its communication with shareholders and to provide important
information to the investing public on corporate governance structure,
policies and systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as

well as terms of reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company's website and welcomes
suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites them to
share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China
Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email
at investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.
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PROSPECTS

The Group sees bright prospects for the Hong Kong residential property
market. Despite the local Government's control measures as well as the
interest rate rise by the U.S. Federal Reserve, there was no sign of falling
house prices throughout the Year. Looking ahead, in 2018, it is likely that
the housing market will continue to flourish along with rising home prices
and the impact of potential increase of interest rate on properties market

should be moderate.

The Group is optimistic for its core businesses. In 2016 and 2017, the
Group had been actively expanding our property investment business
through acquisition of commercial buildings in the United Kingdom.
Remarkably, all investment properties of the Group in the United Kingdom
were fully let during the Year. It is expected that the business of overseas
property leasing will continue to bring about stable and considerable

revenue for the Group in the coming year.

As for the business of securities investment, the Group acquired shares in
PRC-based enterprise throughout the Year given the prosperous outlook of
the PRC real estate industry demonstrated by the increase in share price
of that sector during the Year. The Group will continue to closely monitor
the securities market and seize every good investment opportunity with a

view to generating positive returns.

In spite of disposals of several major assets since 2015, the Group's
financial condition remains sound and stable. In future, the Group will
keep an eye on the property markets, striving to expand its land bank
and investment property portfolio at opportune times to attain long-term

sustainable growth.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their

dedication and hard work.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd February, 2018
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW
Bt 35 R 5 B B

RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31st December, 2017 (“Year") amounted
to HK$1,516.7 million (2016: HK$3,745.1 million), a decrease of 59.5%
over last year and comprised gross rental income of HK$505.8 million
(2016: HK$823.9 million), property sales of HK$990.1 million (2016:
HK$2,943.4 million), sales of investments held-for-trading on a net basis
was nil (2016: loss of HK$37.4 million) and others of HK$20.8 million
(2016: HK$15.2 million). The substantial decline in revenue was mainly

due to the decrease in sales of trading properties and gross rental income.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$969.8 million (2016:
HK$2,147.5 million), a decrease of 54.8% as compared with last year
which was mainly due to the decrease in profit from property sales and

net rental income of HK$934.6 million and HK$285.8 million respectively.

Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in retail and non-retail section
has decreased significantly by 70.8% to HK$87.3 million and 20.3% to
HK$418.5 million respectively during the Year. The total rental income in

revenue for the Year recorded a decrease of 38.6% to HK$505.8 million

as compared with last year of HK$823.9 million.

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
and an investee company of HK$142.5 million (2016: HK$135.1 million),
the total attributable rental revenue to the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) after non-controlling interests amounted to
HK$647.1 million (2016: HK$957.4 million), which representing a decline

of 32.4% over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$588.3 million, a

34.7% decrease over HK$900.9 million in last year.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Property Leasing (Cont'd)

Notwithstanding the acquisitions of properties located in London, the
United Kingdom (including a mixed use freehold building located in 11
and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard in May 2017,
mixed use freehold building located in 61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and

1-14 Soho Street in May 2016 and freehold office building located in
14 St George Street in April 2016) which contributed rental revenue and
net rental income of HK$140.0 million (2016: HK$60.0 million) and
HK$137.9 million (2016: HK$58.3 million) respectively during the Year,
subsequent to completion of the disposals of subsidiaries holding certain
shops of Lowu Commercial Plaza in Shenzhen, the People's Republic
of China (“PRC") in February 2017, Windsor House in Causeway Bay
in September 2016 and a property known as Evergo Tower at the time
of disposal in Shanghai, the PRC in June 2016, it led to the decline in

attributable rental revenue and net rental income.

Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the attributable property sales revenue from the Group,
its associates and an investee company recorded a decrease of 61.4%
to HK$887.2 million (2016: the Group and its associates had contributed
HK$2,298.9 million) and the relevant attributable profit from the Group
and its associates recorded a decrease of 55.20% to HK$454.2 million
(2016: HK$1,015.0 million), the attributable profit from investee company

to be recognised in investment income upon receipt of dividend income.

Sales of One South Lane in the Western District (100% interest)
generated profit of HK$48.6 million (2016: HK$53.2 million) was

recorded in gross profit.

Sales of 55 Conduit Road in Mid-Levels West (70% interest) and
commercial accommodation and units, hourly parking area and parking
spaces at The Zenith in Wanchai (87.5% interest) had contributed an
attributable profit to the Group of HK$108.0 million (2016: HK$954.4
million (including 1 unit and 1 parking space sold to a connected
person)) and HK$239.4 million (2016: HK$2.7 million) respectively.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Property Development and Trading (Cont'd)

In respect of properties held by associates, sales of parking spaces at
Greenville Residence in Yuen Long (50% interest) and parking spaces
at Mount Beacon in Kowloon Tong (33.33% interest) generated profit of
HK$1.1 million and HK$57.1 million respectively (2016: sales of parking
spaces at Greenville Residence and parking spaces at The Hermitage
in West Kowloon (25% interest) generated profit of HK$0.5 million

and HK$4.2 million respectively) as reflected in the share of results of

associates.

During the Year, the forfeited deposit received for 55 Conduit Road of
HK$14.7 million (2016: deposits received for One South Lane of HK$0.5

million) was recorded in other income.

In summary, the Group together with its associates and an investee
company executed properties sale agreements, including contracted for
sales agreements to third parties, recorded an attributable contracted sales
of HK$181.4 million (after cash rebate) (2016: the Group together with its
associates of HK$1,608.1 million (after cash rebate or discount)) during

the Year. Total attributable property sales profit recognised for the Year was

HK$454.2 million (2016: HK$1,015.0 million).

Securities Investments

The Group has in the ordinary and normal course of business conducted
its securities investment activities, as at 31st December, 2017, comprised
of bonds and listed equity investment. During the Year, the gain
recognised from listed securities investments and treasury products was
HK$1,708.7 million (2016: HK$1,075.4 million), comprised gain on listed
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") of HK$61.5 million (2016: HK$170.5 million) and gain on

listed investments and treasury products at fair value through profit or loss

("FVTPL") of HK$1,647.2 million (2016: HK$904.9 million).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Group did not dispose of any listed investments
held-for-trading (2016: realised loss of HK$37.4 million was included in
revenue), but a realised gain from sales of bonds of HK$227.0 million
(2016: HK$142.9 million) was recognised. The net realised gain for
the Year was HK$227.0 million (2016: HK$105.5 million). During the
Year, the Group had acquired 29 bonds (2016: 132 bonds) in the sum
of HK$5,281.3 million (2016: HK$15,347.1 million), and disposed of/
redeemed 75 bonds (2016: 145 bonds) (including those with partial
disposal) with carrying amounts in the sum of HK$10,095.7 million
(2016: HK$11,337.3 million). Bonds acquired were mainly in the
industries of overseas financial institutions (38.3%) (2016: 41.1%) and
PRC-based real estate companies (60.5%) (2016: 15.4%). Realised
gain from bonds disposed of/redeemed were mainly in the industries of
overseas financial institutions (16.0%) (2016: 2.8%) and PRC-based real
estate companies (38.9%) (2016: 3.7%).

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised gain of HK$600.3 million
(2016: unrealised loss of HK$126.2 million) representing the changes in
fair value of bonds, which had no effect on the cash flow of the Group.
The Group believes that the increase in bond price of bonds mainly
issued by overseas financial institutions in the Year, among others, was
owing to the European banking sector has been facing a more stable
political environment and ongoing economic recovery during the Year. The
unrealised gain (2016: unrealised loss) on bonds represented 39 bonds
(2016: 73 bonds), mainly comprising unrealised gain from overseas
financial institutions (93.8%) and PRC-based real estate companies
(4.3%), and unrealised loss from insurance companies (1.4%) (2016
unrealised loss from insurance companies (135.9%) and overseas
financial institutions (43.4%), and unrealised gain from PRC-based real

estate companies (46.3%)).

Interest income from bonds amounted to HK$910.9 million (2016:
HK$923.6 million), represented 7.71% (2016: 7.45%) return on average

market value of bondholding during the Year.

Summing up the above and adding the net income from net dividend
income, interest income, other net investment income and net finance
costs of HK$881.4 million (2016: HK$1,096.1 million), the gain
recognised from listed securities investments and treasury products was
HK$1,708.7 million (2016: HK$1,075.4 million).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below.

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

The listed equity investments at FVTOCI recorded a net profit of
HK$61.5 million (2016: HK$170.5 million) comprised after-expenses
dividend income of HK$163.0 million (2016: HK$189.6 million) and the
withholding tax of HK$16.3 million (2016: HK$19.1 million), making a
net dividend income of HK$146.7 million (2016: HK$170.5 million) from
the SJB Shares (as defined below), and net expenses from other net

investment income and net finance costs of HK$85.2 million (2016: nil).

During the Year, the Group has acquired 857,541,000 shares of China
Evergrande Group (Stock Code: 3333) (“China Evergrande”) (“Evergrande
Shares"”) (representing approximately 6.51% of the total issued share

capital of China Evergrande as at 31st December, 2017) at a total

consideration (including transaction costs) of HK$13,182.4 million.

During the Year, gains on fair value changes of listed equity investments at
FVTOCI of HK$12,054.3 million was recognised in other comprehensive
income, which comprised realised gain on fair value change of
577,180,500 H shares of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066)
("SJB Shares”) of HK$2,126.0 million and unrealised gain on fair value
change of the Evergrande Shares of HK$9,928.3 million (2016: unrealised
loss of HK$2,366.5 million from the SJB Shares). Realised gain/loss on
fair value change is a cash item while unrealised fair value change is a
non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group. The Group
believes that the increase in share price of China Evergrande from April to
the end of December 2017, among others, was owing to the encouraging
operating data and completion of redemption of all its perpetual bonds
during the Year which implied improvement in profitability. In addition,
the overall optimistic prospect in the PRC real estate industry was

demonstrated by increase in share price of companies in the same

industry during the Year.

26  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

&\

BERE (8)

DTSR B R AR Y BRI WA B 5% e —

BBEAMEERZURBRAFEZ LHTREARE

BREMEPEARSEURBAFEZ EFTBRAE
& 815 % )/ %61,500,0008 L (=T — < F:
170,500,000 7T) - BIER BB RBITRH (E&H
BT X)) 2B ¥ A163,000,000% 7T (F1 K 5 2
%) (ZF— /X% :189,600,000/8 ) ki 18 7
716,300,000/ 7T (=% — 7N £ : 19,100,000/% 7T )
% P13 M B UL A F 58 8146,700,0008 L (= F
—7N4F © 170,500,0005% 7T ) JA Je E b 15 & Wk A F 58
I B1 75 B A $ 8 2 % 38 485,200,000 7T (=
T—RE:T)o

RAREE - NEE A4 E13,182,400,000/%8 7T (£
BRGEA)EEFRBEEAREE (BRHA: 3333
([FFE1E K1) 857,541,0008% B 13 (B AR5 ]
(HERTPBEBEAR-_Z—tF+=-A=+—HE
BEITIRABHH6.51%) »

)
)

RAFE BBREMEERSARBRAFEZ EH
fRAIEE 2 AT EEB) 2 Wz £12,054,300,00078
TR EMEEWRETRR EReERRIRT
% 15 8 R A 7]577,180,500/% HAE% i 15 (A% 13 A 5% :
2066) ([ERBT/RM ) c AFEZB 22 ZRI
#2,126,000,0007% 7T & AA AR 0 2 A FEZS) 2 K
435 8 59,928,300,000/ 7T (ZF — N F : R B B
RERTTRR 19 2 7K & IR 5 $82,366,500,000/8 7T ) ° 2
SHREANFESH Wi BEDESER mAZ
BATEEHNIECER HASERSREL
ERKTE AEEEEE T —tFHWNAZETZ
BE - PEBEABRELEATHL (HPEE) AR
EEEMNE URRAFERREREMAKE
BEHMBRZERBFILE - 1IN RAFERZEEAM
ARIZBRELEANTBRETEEETERE &
BRZE-



RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

Listed Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through

Profit or Loss

The listed investments and treasury products at FVTPL recorded a profit
before and after finance costs of HK$1,751.5 million and HK$1,647.2
million (2016: HK$921.0 million and HK$904.9 million) respectively for
the Year.

Profit from the listed investments and treasury products at FVTPL reflected
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year
comprised a realised gain on bonds of HK$227.0 million, an unrealised
gain on fair value changes of bonds of HK$600.3 million and interest
income and other net investment income of HK$924.2 million (2016:
a realised loss on listed investments held-for-trading of HK$37.4 million,
a realised gain on bonds of HK$142.9 million, an unrealised loss on fair
value changes of bonds of HK$126.2 million and net dividend income,
interest income and other net investment income of HK$941.7 million).
Net relevant finance costs for the Year was HK$104.3 million (2016:
HK$16.1 million) including interest expense of HK$60.4 million and
exchange loss of HK$43.9 million (2016: including interest expense of
HK$77.3 million and exchange gain of HK$61.2 million).

Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the Year, which mainly came from net building
management fee income, rental services income, property management
services, leasing administration services and property administration
services income, consultancy fee income, exchange gain, net and
forfeiture of deposits received on sales of stock of properties, increased to
HK$132.0 million (2016: HK$102.9 million), representing an increase of

28.3% as compared with last year.

During the Year, administrative expenses decreased by 15.8% to
HK$279.3 million (2016: HK$331.5 million). Finance costs increased by
67.2% to HK$295.2 million (2016: HK$176.5 million) during the Year,
including exchange loss of HK$52.2 million (2016: exchange gain of
HK$61.2 million) on foreign currency other borrowings hedged for foreign
currency securities investments. The decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the disposals of subsidiaries during the Year and the
year of 2016 and absence of exchange loss, net during the Year. The
increase in finance costs was mainly due to the exchange loss (2016:

exchange gain) on translation of foreign currency other borrowings.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Other Income and Expenses (Cont'd)

Other gains and losses recorded a net gain of HK$140.3 million mainly
comprised gains on disposals of the Group’s entire issued share capital
of (i) Pinecrest International Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively “Pinecrest Group")
("Pinecrest Disposal”) and (ii) Win Kings Holding Ltd., an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiary (collectively “Win
Kings Group") ("Win Kings Disposal”) of HK$143.3 million in total (2016:
HK$2,176.4 million mainly comprised gains on disposals of the Group's
entire issued share capital of (i) Pioneer Time Investment Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) Evergo Real Estate
(Shanghai) Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company; and (iii) Keep Speed Company Limited and Jumbo Grace
Limited (“Jumbo Grace"), both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, and Jumbo Grace's subsidiary of HK$2,311.1 million
in total) and write-down of stock of properties of HK$3.8 million (2016:

HK$128.5 million).

Disposals of Subsidiaries to Connected Persons

(a) The Pinecrest Disposal and the Win Kings Disposal were completed
on 10th February, 2017 at a consideration of HK$352.2 million
and HK$889.6 million respectively. Upon completion, the Pinecrest
Group and the Win Kings Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company and their respective consolidated results, assets and

liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Details of the Pinecrest Disposal and the Win Kings Disposal
were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 5th
December, 2016, 13th January, 2017 and 10th February, 2017 and

the circular of the Company dated 28th December, 2016.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Disposals of Subsidiaries to Connected Persons (Cont'd)

(b) The disposal of the Group's entire issued share capital of Great
Captain Limited (“Great Captain”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Great Captain Disposal”) was
completed on 23rd June, 2017 at a consideration of HK$5,567.7
million. Upon completion, Great Captain ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company and its results, assets and liabilities were ceased to

be consolidated with those of the Group.

Details of the Great Captain Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 15th March, 2017, 4th May,
2017 and 23rd June, 2017 and the circular of the Company dated
13th April, 2017.

Associates

The share of results of associates for the Year was a profit of HK$189.9
million as compared to HK$161.2 million for last year, the increase was

mainly due to the increase in profit from property sales.
Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31st December, 2017 by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.I.
Appraisals”) whereas investment properties in the United Kingdom were
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”). B.I.
Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent property valuers. A
gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$564.5 million
(2016: HK$139.2 million) was recorded during the Year. The unrealised

fair value changes will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$3,708.9
million as compared to HK$6,360.3 million for last year. The decrease
in profit of 41.7% for the Year was mainly arising from (i) decrease in
attributable net rental income; (ii) decrease in attributable property sales
profit; (iii) decrease in gains on disposals of subsidiaries; (iv) decrease in
imputed interest income from deferred consideration receivables; despite
(v) increase in fair value gain on investment properties; and (vi) increase
in net profit from the segment of the listed investments and treasury
products at FVTPL. Earnings per share for the Year was HK$1.94 (2016:

HK$3.33).

Core Profit

The Group disposed of certain investment properties through disposals of
subsidiaries during the Year, the costs of which are stated at fair value. In
addition, the Group disposed of stock of properties which were classified
as investment properties and/or land and building in prior years. Before
disposal, such gain/loss on fair value change is unrealised and recognised
at the end of each reporting period, but excluded from core profit as non-
cash items. In the year of disposal, such unrealised gain/loss has become

realised; and in computating core profit, accumulated fair value gain/loss

from prior years and current year are included as cash items.

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$646.4 million (2016:
HK$577.5 million) are excluded, but the major accumulated net realised
fair value gain together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of
investment properties and stock of properties from the Group recognised
in prior years of HK$336.2 million (2016: the accumulated realised fair
value gain together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of
investment properties and stock of properties from the Group and its
associates recognised in prior years of HK$17,248.7 million) (including
those recognised in properties revaluation reserve) are included, the
Group will have a core profit for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$3,398.7 million (2016: HK$23,031.5 million) and a
core earnings per share of HK$1.78 (2016: HK$12.07), which were both

decreased by 85.29% to those in the year of 2016.
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Core Profit (Cont'd)

The major non-cash items represented the attributable unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$646.4 million (2016:
HK$577.5 million).

Dividends

Final dividend of HK1 cent (year ended 31st December, 2015: HK1 cent)
per share in total amount of HK$19.1 million for the year ended 31st

December, 2016 was paid in cash on 12th June, 2017.

Interim dividend of HK20 cents (half year ended 30th June, 2016: HK1
cent) per share in total amount of HK$381.5 million for the half year
ended 30th June, 2017 was paid in cash on 13th September, 2017.

Special interim dividends of HK$2 in aggregate per share in total amount
of HK$3,815.2 million and HK$2.91 per share in total amount of
HK$5,551.2 million were paid in cash on 10th February, 2017 and 23rd
June, 2017 respectively (2016: a conditional special interim dividend of
HK$2 per share in total amount of HK$3,815.2 million was paid in cash
on 20th January, 2016 and special interim dividends of HK$2.1 per share
in total amount of HK$4,006.0 million and HK$3.23 per share in total
amount of HK$6,161.6 million were paid in cash on 11th August, 2016
and Tst September, 2016 respectively).

Total dividends of HK$9,767.0 million were paid in cash during the Year.
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's

share.
Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$3,398.7 million (2016:
HK$23,031.5 million) or HK$1.78 (2016: HK$12.07) per share; (b) cash
final dividend for the Year of HK10 cents (2016: HK1 cent) per share
proposed; (c) cash interim dividend for 2017 of HK20 cents (2016: HK1
cent) per share; and (d) cash special interim dividends of HK64 cents
in aggregate per share and HK$2.91 per share were paid (2016: HK$2,
HK$2.1 and HK$3.23 per share were paid and HK$1.36 per share was
declared), the ratio of such cash payment to the core profit is 216.3%
(2016: 72.2%).

Total Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income for the Year attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$16,348.7 million (2016: HK$3,418.7 million) or
HK$8.57 (2016: HK$1.79) per share, an increase of 3.8 times over last
year which comprised (a) profit for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$3,708.9 million (2016: HK$6,360.3 million); and
(b) other comprehensive income for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$12,639.8 million (2016: expenses of HK$2,941.6
million) which mainly included gains on fair value changes of listed equity
investments at FVTOCI of HK$12,054.3 million (2016: unrealised loss of
HK$2,366.5 million), details are disclosed in the sub-paragraph headed
“Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive

Income” of paragraph headed “Securities Investments” above.
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NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group's net asset attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$36,385.9 million (2016: HK$29,804.2
million), an increase of HK$6,581.7 million or 22.1% when compared
with 31st December, 2016. With the total number of ordinary shares
in issue of 1,907619,079 as at 31st December, 2017 and 2016, the
net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$19.07 (2016: HK$15.62). The movement in net asset value was
mainly due to (a) total comprehensive income for the Year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$16,348.7 million; and (b) final, interim
and special interim dividends recognised as distribution during the Year
totaling HK$9,767.0 million.

During the Year, gains on fair value changes on the listed equity
investments categorised as financial assets measured at FVTOCI of
HK$12,054.3 million (2016: unrealised loss of HK$2,366.5 million) as
well as the transaction costs of the Great Captain Disposal of HK$1.7
million were recorded in other comprehensive income. Upon completion
of the Great Captain Disposal, the Group transferred the negative balance
of financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve of HK$242.2 million to
retained profits. The carrying amount of the gain on fair value change of
listed equity investment included in financial assets measured at FVTOCI
reserve was HK$9,928.3 million as at 31st December, 2017 (2016: loss
of HK$2,366.5 million).

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the final results,
the Group did not have material acquisition or disposal of assets and any

future plans for material investment or capital assets.
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Group recorded net current liabilities as at 31st December, 2017 of
HK$2,804.8 million (2016: net current assets of HK$11,207.6 million),
of which current assets were HK$10,978.6 million and current liabilities
were HK$13,783.4 million. The position was mainly due to certain of the
Group's current liabilities had been utilised to finance the Group's non-

current assets.

In the consolidated statement of financial position and within securities
investment activities, which comprised of bonds and listed equity
investment, the total carrying amount as at 31st December, 2017
was HK$33,849.5 million. Included in non-current assets were part
of the bonds in the sum of HK$1,979.4 million presented as financial
assets measured at FVTPL and listed equity investment in the sum
of HK$23,110.7 million presented as financial assets measured at
FVTOCI. Included in current assets were part of the bonds in the sum
of HK$8,759.4 million presented as financial assets measured at FVTPL.
Margin loans utilised to finance the securities investments in both non-
current and current assets in the sum of HK$9,873.7 million were

presented as borrowings in current liabilities.

If the margin loans of HK$9,873.7 million were allocated into the
securities investments secured according to the respective non-current
and current assets presentation, HK$5,221.0 million and HK$4,652.7
million were secured by the non-current assets securities investments and

current assets securities investments respectively.

If the margin loans secured by the non-current assets securities
investments of HK$5,221.0 million were reclassified as non-current
liabilities, the net current liabilities position of the Group would become
net current assets position of HK$2,416.2 million as at 31st December,
2017.
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (contd)

The ratio of margin loans against securities investments was loan-to-
value ratio, which was 29.2% as at 31st December, 2017. In accordance
with the terms and conditions of margin loans facility agreements of the
Group with financial institutions, among others, as long as the securities
investments maintained market value which is in excess of pre-defined
loan-to-value ratios as set out by the financial institutions, the margin loans
upon interest payment due date would be roll-overed month-for-month,
and repayment of margin loans by the Group to financial institutions
would not be required. As such, very often margin loans of the Group
which were presented as current liabilities would not be current and
would be repayable over one year. In the event that the Group intends to
reduce or repay part of the margin loans, the Group might, among others,

dispose of some of the securities investments to effect the payment.

Listed securities investments and treasury products of the Group were
frequently traded in the market, and formed part of the Group's treasury
management. They were presented as non-current assets and current

assets according to their intended holding periods.

If the entire listed securities investments and treasury products of the
Group as at 31st December, 2017 were presented as current assets,
current assets would be increased by HK$25,090.1 million, and net
current liabilities position of HK$2,804.8 million would become net

current assets position of HK$22,285.3 million.

The Group believes that the net current liabilities position as at 31st
December, 2017 would not have adverse financial effect to the Group's
liquidity or gearing position and the Group has ability to continue as a

going concern.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in listed securities investments and
treasury products with attractive yield and good prospect in order to
bring stable and satisfactory return in long run. During the Year, the
Group made a substantial investment in shares of China Evergrande
owing to its encouraging operating data and completion of redemption
of all its perpetual bonds during the Year which implied improvement
in the profitability of China Evergrande. The Group also acquired bonds
mainly issued by overseas financial institutions and PRC-based real estate
companies. It is expected that the European banking sector has been
facing a more stable political environment and ongoing economic recovery
and PRC-based real estate companies will continue to benefit from a
strong property market with an apparently rising macroeconomic growth
in the PRC. Meanwhile, the Group divested the SJB Shares because the
Group believes that, among other things, the challenging environment on
risk management and the reduction of local enterprises’ debt burdens in
the PRC banking industry which led to the plummet in market price of the
SJB Shares.

The respective securities investments under different categories are

elaborated below.

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

During the Year, the Group disposed of the SJB Shares through disposal
of a subsidiary, details of the Great Captain Disposal are disclosed in
paragraph headed "Disposals of Subsidiaries to Connected Persons”

above.

During the Year, the Group has acquired 857,541,000 shares of China
Evergrande at a total consideration (including transaction costs) of
HK$13,182.4 million, after adding the fair value gain of HK$9,928.3
million for the Year, the carrying amount of listed equity investment
categorised as financial assets measured at FVTOCI was HK$23,110.7
million as at 31st December, 2017. China Evergrande is principally
engaged in development of large scale residential properties and

integrated commercial properties in the PRC.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Listed Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through

Profit or Loss

As at 31st December, 2016, the carrying amounts of the bonds presented
as financial assets measured at FVTPL was HK$14,952.9 million.
During the Year, the bonds portfolio was decreased by a net disposal of
HK$4,814.4 million. After adding the fair value gain of HK$600.3 million
for the Year, the bonds portfolio of the Group became HK$10,738.8
million as at 31st December, 2017, which formed part of the Group's cash
management activities. As at 31st December, 2017, the bonds portfolio
comprised of bonds issued by overseas financial institutions of 62.7%,
PRC-based real estate companies of 30.2% and other industries of 7.1%.
They are denominated in different currencies with 95.5% in United States
dollar ("US$"), 4.3% in Pound Sterling ("GBP") and 0.2% in Euro ("EUR").
The bonds denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range from 4.750%
to 13.250% per annum of which notional amount of US$1,181.0 million
are callable, the bonds denominated in GBP carry at fixed rate range from
5.875% to 7.250% per annum are callable and the bond denominated
in EUR carries at fixed rate of 12.500% per annum is callable. As at 31st
December, 2017, the bonds portfolio comprised of 39 bonds (2016: 73
bonds); in terms of credit rating, investment grade, non-investment grade
and unrated were 10 bonds, 22 bonds and 7 bonds (2016: 30 bonds, 28
bonds and 15 bonds) respectively. In terms of maturity, 27 bonds (2016
32 bonds) were contingent convertible bonds issued by overseas financial
institutions of which 25 bonds (2016: 28 bonds) were perpetual and the
remaining 2 bonds (2016: 4 bonds) will mature in 2023 (2016: between
2022 to 2026). 12 bonds (2016: 41 bonds) were issued by issuers other
than overseas financial institutions of which 4 bonds (2016: 17 bonds)
were perpetual and the remaining 8 bonds (2016: 24 bonds) will mature
between 2018 to 2046 (2016: between 2018 to 2075).

As at 31st December, 2017, the portfolio of listed securities investments
and treasury products of HK$33,849.5 million (2016: HK$19,512.6
million) comprised (a) bonds (financial assets measured at FVTPL (non-
current and current assets in aggregate)) of HK$10,738.8 million (2016:
HK$14,952.9 million); and (b) listed equity investment (financial assets
measured at FVTOCI) of HK$23,110.7 million (2016: HK$4,559.7
million), representing 60.4% (2016: 42.6%) of total assets.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group had committed to make a capital contribution of US$100.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$781.7 million) in an exempted
limited partnership formed under the Exempted Limited Partnership
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. As at 31st December, 2016, the
carrying amount was HK$584.5 million. During the Year, the Group has
contributed US$0.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.2 million)
(net of recallable distribution) less received distribution of US$3.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$23.4 million) (which was included in
financial assets measured at FVTOCI), after adding the fair value gain
for the Year of HK$9.9 million (which was recognised in financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve), the carrying amount was HK$578.2 million
as at 31st December, 2017, representing 1.0% (2016: 1.3%) of total

assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31st December, 2017 and
2016 were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group's bank and other borrowings
(including loan from a director) amounted to HK$18,308.5 million
(2016: HK$14,591.4 million). Cash and deposits at banks amounted
to HK$659.4 million (2016: HK$1,070.5 million), pledged deposits
amounted to HK$263.5 million (2016: HK$943.7 million) and net
borrowings amounted to HK$17,385.6 million (2016: HK$12,577.2

million).

Total debt to equity ratio was 50.2% (2016: 48.8%) and net debt
to equity ratio was 47.6% (2016: 42.1%), which are expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings, and net borrowings, respectively, over the
total equity of HK$36,493.0 million (2016: HK$29,899.9 million). The
increase in both ratios was mainly due to increase in total debt and net
debt during the Year.
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DEBT AND GEARING (contd)

If the listed securities investments and treasury products of HK$33,849.5
million (2016: HK$19,512.6 million) are included, there would be a net
cash position of HK$16,463.9 million (2016: HK$6,935.4 million).

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group's bank and other borrowings
(including loan from a director) of HK$18,308.5 million, 69.7%, 10.6%,
12.9% and 6.8% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years, 2 to 5
years and over 5 years respectively. Of which the Group's bank and other
borrowings were denominated in HK$ (71.7%), GBP (26.4%) and US$
(1.9%). HK$, GBP and US$ securities investments were hedged by HKS,
GBP and US$ borrowings. The Group's bank borrowings in HK$ and GBP
were carried at interest rates calculated mainly with reference to Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") and London Interbank Offered
Rate respectively; other borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated
with reference to cost of funds and HIBOR; and loan from a director was
interest-free. As at 31st December, 2017, all the Group's borrowings were
on floating rate basis (except for loan from a director). No hedging for

interest rate is subsisted at the end of the reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group had pledged the following assets

with their respective carrying amounts:

(@) The Group's investment properties of HK$14,234.3 million and
bank deposits of HK$209.7 million (2016: investment properties of
HK$10,231.4 million, stock of properties of HK$858.4 million and
bank deposits of HK$77.3 million) were pledged to the Group's
banks to secure general banking and loan facilities granted to the

Group.

(b) The Group's bonds and listed equity investments at FVTOCI with
carrying amounts of HK$33,176.6 million (2016: HK$18,713.3
million) and cash deposits of HK$53.8 million (2016: HK$866.4
million) were pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure
margin and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect
of securities transactions, of which HK$9,873.7 million (2016:
HK$9,893.3 million) was utilised as at 31st December, 2017 as

borrowings due within one year.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS (contd)

(¢) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/
EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue, other income and investment
income. Interest income for the Year was HK$1,691.7 million, representing

a decrease of 38.9% over last year of HK$2,766.6 million.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank and other borrowings;
exchange difference on translation of foreign currency other borrowings;
and arrangement fee and facility and commitment fee expenses. Interest
expenses for the Year amounted to HK$234.6 million, representing an
increase of 3.1% over last year of HK$227.5 million. Interest capitalised
for the Year was HK$0.1 million as compared to HK$2.5 million for last
year. The increase in interest expenses was mainly due to increase in
average balance of other borrowings despite of the decrease in bank
borrowings following certain disposals of subsidiaries during the Year and
the year of 2016. The average interest rate over the year under review
was 1.55% (2016: 1.52%), which was expressed as a percentage of total

interest paid over the average total interest-bearing borrowings.

REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group employed a total of 528 staff
(2016: 552 staff) in Hong Kong including about 254 staff (2016: 257
staff) employed under the estate management company in Hong Kong

and no employee (2016: 4 staff) in the offices in Mainland China.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The executive directors of the
Company continued to review employees’ contributions and to provide
them with necessary incentives and flexibility for their better commitment

and performance. No share option scheme was adopted during the Year.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

The Company had adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme") in 2009. The Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward
certain employees for their contributions to the Group and to give long-
term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. Details of the Share Award Scheme were set
out in the Company's circular dated 23rd December, 2008. No share was

granted under the Share Award Scheme during the Year.

UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA

The Group further acquired an investment property in the United Kingdom
in May 2017. As at 31st December, 2017, the Group's investment
properties in the United Kingdom with carrying amount of GBP878.3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$9,231.2 million) (2016
GBP690.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$6,586.0 million))
contributed a net profit of HK$291.5 million (2016: HK$507.6 million)
to the Group for the Year, the profit mainly included in gross profit, fair
value changes on investment properties, finance costs and taxation. GBP
exchange gain of foreign operations included in other comprehensive
income for the Year amounted to HK$385.6 million (2016: loss of
HK$554.0 million). As at 31st December, 2017, the Group's net
investment in the United Kingdom amounted to HK$5,095.2 million
(2016: HK$3,609.2 million) representing 14.0% (2016: 12.1%) of the
Group's total equity.

Profit contribution from the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in gross profit, fair value changes on investment properties,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, share of results of associates and
taxation) for the Year amounted to HK$68.6 million (2016: HK$566.4
million). Renminbi exchange gain of foreign operations included in other
comprehensive income (including share of an associate) for the Year
amounted to HK$34.0 million (2016: loss of HK$28.1 million). The
Group's net investment in Mainland China as at 31st December, 2017
amounted to HK$533.3 million (2016: HK$749.5 million) representing
1.5% (2016: 2.5%) of the Group's total equity.

LISTED SUBSIDIARY

The Group did not own any listed subsidiary at the end of the reporting
period.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group's investment properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China as at 31st December, 2017 and 2016
were carried out by B.l. Appraisals, independent qualified professional
valuer. For the investment properties in the United Kingdom, the property
valuations as at 31st December, 2017 and 2016 were carried out by Peak
Vision Appraisals, another independent qualified professional valuer. Their
valuations were based on investment method and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2017

final results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$15,650.0 million
(2016: HK$12,887.3 million), a 4.2% increase over 2016 after adjusted
for the additions, disposals and exchange adjustments of investment
properties during the Year. The increase in fair value of HK$564.5 million
was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the Year. The Group also shared an increase in fair value of investment
properties of associates of HK$84.0 million (adjusted deferred tax credit
of HK$1.8 million) for the Year.

The increase in fair value of HK$564.5 million was mainly derived from
increase in fair value of Harcourt House. The fair value change is a non-

cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.

42  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Y= 1E

AEBUREERTEREZRENERBILAE
REXGHEMRBERFEETR -_FT—tFR=
E-RFTA=+—HZYERLE - ERLRE
HrREME dn—BUAEREXEMEMRRE
FEETR Bt FR-E-REF+ZA=+—
AZYEME-MEFEEROREERREER
HBORERGEENE YEARGRE _—_T—LF2

REEIEE Y ¥ 2 18 A15,650,000,0008 7T (=
T — 7N 112,887,300,0008 70 ) © &£ EHABEARF
EREWMEZAE HEREHFARE R-_T—X
FIEN4.2% ° RAFE R FEE IN564,500,00078 7T
BETALREEE W R RE N - REB IR AT E#
B AR B A W E 2 A F{EH 84,000,000 7T
(B FARBIELERIER 1,800,000 7T) °

NF(EE 564,500,000 T T BREERKNEZ
NEEEM A FEEHHIIFRESBER - WALER
CREVTEEKTE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are
committed to principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard

the interests of shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2017 (the “Year"), the
Company had applied the principles and complied with substantial
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) and certain recommended
best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules").

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors (“ED(s)"), two
Non-executive Directors ("“NED(s)") and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)"), with INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
Names of each member of the Board are set out in this Corporate
Governance Report. Changes of the composition of the Board during the

Year are set out in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan acted as the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ"). The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated

and their respective roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors'
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the Profiles of Directors of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among

the Directors.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the
lead where potential conflict of interests arises. The Board has received
from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the date of this

annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group’s businesses in a

timely manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders at
the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and a specific term of office has been
fixed for appointment of Directors. During the Year, there was no executive

chairman or managing director in the Board.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four
regular Board meetings and seven ad hoc Board meetings were held
during the Year. Advance notices of not less than fourteen days were
served upon each Director for regular Board meetings. All accompanying
Board papers were sent to the Directors in a timely manner and at
least three days before the meetings (or such other period as agreed).
Adequate explanation and information were given to the Directors by the
management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making. Each Director
has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on any Board
resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors” appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Directors’ Training and Support

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other laws/

rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged a training session for the
Directors regarding “The unfettered discretion of the HKEx & highlight
of latest developments”. The training was delivered by lawyers at the
expense of the Company. On the other hand, Directors had provided
records of the trainings they received to the Company. The Board
considered the trainings attended by the Directors are sufficient to
discharge their duties. A summary of the trainings attended by the

Directors during the Year is as follows:—

BEEE g

EERIIRXE

ARBBBEEEHAZERTABABTERE -
BRBEEGTER R LR RIARE AR &P
SRAEREE 2 EHBRTETRES-

RAFEE ARBR/EFTHT — I AEEH
(BRI AZHRBOERREZFTERBE] - ZIH
FImEMAEEE BERRARRN -m—TH"
EEERAARRRHUEBIICE EFESRRES
2Bz B ENERERTHERE -EFNAF
EANM2EZEIHENT : —

Training Matters 3% 3| =18

Business/
Economic/
Management/
Accounting/ Information
Corporate Regulatory/ Tax/Finance Technology
Governance Legal e/ mEKE
Name of Directors EEpNS TEER EBEERE/ORE  BE/HE BB /EARR
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan BREFREZ T b b = =
(CFO) (7TEA#%)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan* BREl B £+ b b = =
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan e a a = =
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MAE T E a&b a&b a&b a&b
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 2B b b = =
(Chairman) (FE)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai 2AEELL b b = =
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B2 L4 a&b a&b b a&b
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BENLL a&b a&b - b
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BEEEE a&b a&b a&b a
Notes:— MeE: -
Training Method 1EHI 7
a: attending training session/seminar/conference/course a:  ZHEEIIRE G EgH SRR

b: self-reading

* Appointed as ED on 13th February, 2017.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ERB|EE
EEERZEES
BEONY TENEES FHESeRIERES S

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the Code. Details of the respective committee's terms
of reference are available at the Company's and the Stock Exchange's
websites. All the INEDs, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board Committees with
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping acts as chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The members of Audit Committee
possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related
financial management expertise, which is higher than the Listing Rules'

requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group’s corporate
governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal control. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the
presence of the representative(s) of the Group's internal audit department
(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion
on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior
management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:—

M

@

3

“

€)

6

)

®

©

(10)

reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 and for the six months ended 30th June, 2017
respectively before recommending them to the Board for approval,
with the presence of the Company's external auditors (the

“Independent Auditors”) in the meeting reviewing final results;

reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the Independent

Auditors for shareholders’ approval;

reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during
2016, presented its findings and made recommendations for

consideration by the Board;

carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, financial reporting and internal

audit functions, and their training programmes and budget;

discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters, and fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

an

(12)

(13)

(14

(15)

(16)

(a7

(18)

(19)

reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

related matters;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal

Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2018;
reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and monitored the progress of compliance of the
Code;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees;

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for the Directors and senior executives; and

reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management

system.

In February 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final

results and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (ii)

the Company's compliance with the Code during the Year and disclosure

in the Corporate Governance Report; (iii) the sufficiency of training and

continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives

for the Year; (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management

and internal control systems for the Year; and (v) the effectiveness of

internal audit function of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee also

made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring

Independent Auditors for shareholders' approval at the forthcoming

annual general meeting (the 2018 AGM").
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors, the
engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical
rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent
Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to
scrutiny by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services from
Independent Auditors was established. The Audit Committee considers
whether there is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company
from that work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether
there is adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the
perception of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services
envisaged to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related
fee levels individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In
addition, a policy restricting the employment of employees or former
employees of Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial

positions with the Group has also been in place.

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to (i) annual review of continuing connected
transactions at a fee of HK$100,000; and (i) a project in relation to
disposal of a subsidiary at a fee of HK$450,000. The audit fee of the
Independent Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017 was HK$2,049,600.
The relevant engagement letters had been reviewed and approved by the

Audit Committee.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the

nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible to review regularly and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual EDs and senior executives as well as the remuneration of NEDs.
It would consult the Chairman or the CEO on the remuneration proposals

whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration
to attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high
calibre to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the

Company's business and development.

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(1) assessed the performance of EDs, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the EDs' and senior executives' remuneration packages

for the Year;
(2) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees;

(3) recommended to the Board the remuneration package of the new
ED; and

(4) recommended to the Board to fix the Directors’ fee of NEDs for the
Year.

In January 2018, the Remuneration Committee made recommendation to
the Board and the Board has approved the adjustment of monthly salary
of Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai, an ED, to HK$183,800 for the year ending 31st
December, 2018 with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the

Group as well as the prevailing market condition.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration
package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking
their reward with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
In determining guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to

remuneration surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
condition as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket

expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties.
Nomination Committee
Role and Function

The Nomination Committee is mandated to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge,
professional experience, cultural and educational background, gender
and age of the Board members and assessment on the independence
of the INEDs) of the Board at least annually as well as to select suitable
and qualified individuals to become Board members and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company's corporate strategy and on succession planning for the

Directors from time to time.
Meetings

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—
(1) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders' approval; and

(3) identified suitable individual qualified to become ED and
recommended to the Board on the appointment of an ED based on
the nomination procedures, process and criteria and board diversity

policy stated below.

After the Year end, the Nomination Committee made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders'
approval at the 2018 AGM. It also assessed the independence of INEDs,
including those served more than 9 years who are subject to re-election at
the 2018 AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. A Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) has been adopted since September 2013. Elements of
the Board Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors.
The said elements have substantially been included in the current Board

composition.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,
as well as business development and requirements of the Company. In
evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers the character and integrity; skills and expertise;
professional and educational background; potential time commitment
for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and the elements
of the Board Diversity Policy etc. The Nomination Committee makes
recommendation to the Board to appoint the appropriate person among
the candidates nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s) shall be
appointed by the Board in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company

and the Listing Rules.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Special Committee had been established since 24th May, 2012,
comprising all the INEDs as members with written terms of reference
in place. It is empowered to handle all matters from the Company's
perspective arising out of the prosecution against Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung, a former ED, Chairman and CEO of the Company, by the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the People’'s Republic of China ("Macau”)
relating to the acquisition of a piece of land in Macau. Subsequent to the
Year, the Special Committee has been dissolved in February 2018 after

reviewed the position of the Group by the Board.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Investment Committee had been established since 15th April, 2014,
comprising Ms. Chan, Sze-wan as chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai as chief
investment officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun as members
with written terms of reference in place. It is empowered to manage the
investment business of the Group (other than real estate investment) (the
“Investment”) and to make recommendations and provide advice to the

Board in relation to Investment or potential Investment.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS EEHFEL&

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:— FEEENE L ECLHEHINNOT: —

Attendance Record of Directors ES £ 25

No. of meetings attended/held in 2017 (Percentage of attendance in total) R=B -t £ 4[5 /ST EHHA (LHER)

Regular Ad hoc Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Special Investment Annual Special Special
Board Board Committee Committee  Committee Committee ~ Committee General General General
Meeting Meeting' Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting* Meeting*
EfEZE KHESE ENZEBE FWZEEe B%ZE®  KRZE®  REZEeg REEEF RESH RR4H
Name of Directors  £3.5 LE ] F LE ] L ] LE ] L ] L] A& A&t A&+
Executive Directors #17E%
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan Rergat 4/ 1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/ 11 1/1 11
(k) (FrR#E%) (100%) (100%) R NER TER NER (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Ms. Chan, Hol-wan* Rel B Lt* 44 3/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent N/A Absent
(100%) (60%) TER 18R T@R FER T@R R TER 43
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan Gt ves 4/ 1 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11 1/1 11
(100%) (100%) NER NER TER NER TR (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Lam, Kiwong-wai WRE LA 4/4 17 N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11 71 /1
(100%) (100%) TR TR il TR (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Non-executive Directors %21{7E%
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai Zekrs 4/4 27 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent Absent Absent
(Chairman) (#£) (100%) (29%) TER TER TER TER TER HE B BE
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai EES e 4/4 6/7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent 1 1
(100%) (86%) TER Nl TER TR TER BE (100%) (100%)
Independent Non-executive Directors & L 3411755
Mr. Chan, Kiwok-wai REELE 4/4 ik 4/4 33 22 0/0 4/4 1N 1 1
(100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (0%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Ms. Philis Loh, Lai-ping BEiint 4/ 6/7 4/ 3/3 22 0/0 N/A Absent il il
(100%) (86%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (0%) TR HE (100%) (100%)
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SEEEE 4/4 ik 4/4 33 22 0/0 4/4 1N 1 11
(100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (0%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Notes:— s : —
* Appointed as ED on 13th February, 2017. * RZE—+tF_A+=BEZERPITESF-
. To avoid conflict of interest, some of the Directors were absent at ° BREBENZER BIHEEHRESTERE
certain ad hoc Board meetings that they were required to abstain from FRERREZERESFEE®S®-
voting.
# Held on 13th January, 2017. * RIZBE—+FE—-A+=B#17-
* Held on 4th May, 2017. * RIZE—+FHAMNBA ST

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS # %X % 2122 Al

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities ZARRIEHRM—EEFETEFRHZ2FH
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required — FXEE E TR AIMEE+ ( EMBEITAEZEFHE ?%%
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors % B4R ZE<FAI) ([MR4E<FRI]) BT E 2 R %R &
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the & -&ARQBMFLARERE AAESHID E?PS?BZ
“Model Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company, % B RN E A 38 <P IR A 7 BI AR 7E 2 1R 28 Ko Al it
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in 23X 5 =FRlle

H{F

the Model Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Company
maintains an effective risk management and internal control systems
and review of their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The
Board oversees the Company's senior management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems and acknowledges that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal Audit Department is
responsible for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, and reporting their findings and

advice to the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:—

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
P P
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Audit (Cont'd)

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee’s
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted six internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the scope and
quality of works done, and the extent and frequency of communication of

internal audit reports by the Internal Audit Department.

Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company established an Enterprise Risk Management Framework
that includes a risk management policy and procedures, as well as
a designated risk management officer who helps to deploy the risk

management process across the business.

Risk Management Process

Our risk management process includes risk identification, risk assessment
and prioritisation, risk owner appointment, risk treatment and upward
reporting and monitoring of identified risks to the Audit Committee. A
corporate risk register has been established to track and document the
identified risks, risk owners, mitigating actions and control measures, and

facilitates continuous update of risk treatments.

Half-yearly reviews were conducted to follow up on the significant risks
and related actions as documented in the corporate risk register, and the
results reported to the Audit Committee. The year end risk management
assessment result was reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. The Company will continue to enhance and standardize our

approach to manage risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Risk Management (Cont'd)

Risk Management Process (Cont'd)

Subsequent to the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management system for the Year
and the Board is satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of risk
management system of the Group and considered that the Company had
complied with the Code Provisions in respect of risk management during
the Year.

Internal Control

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board are satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the system

of internal control of the Group and concluded that:—

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) aframework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were efficient

and adequate;

(4) significant risks and control failings or weaknesses (if any) that
may influence the Group and the changes since last annual review
had been identified, evaluated and managed through the ongoing

monitoring process;

(5) material transactions were executed with the management's

authorisation;

(6) the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance was effective; and

(7) the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programmes and budget were adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairmen of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and answer
questions from shareholders at general meetings. The chairmen of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee as well as the
Independent Auditors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 24th May, 2017 (“2017 AGM") to answer questions
from shareholders. All members of the independent board committee
were available at the special general meetings held on 13th January, 2017
and 4th May, 2017 ("2017 SGMs") approving connected transactions to

address shareholders’ queries.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put
forward to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are

available at the Company’s website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate

the Group's information.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the corporate communications manual to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made. Such manual also
provides guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information
to investors, analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the
Company's behalf, and outlines the responsibility for communication with

various stakeholder groups.

A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate
governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit
a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the
Company Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM") and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in

Bermuda at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SCM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the "Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition
must contain the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written
Requisition must be deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda
at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda not less
than six weeks before the general meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the

general meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting (Cont'd)

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company's expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China Evergrande
Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.
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DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive

Directors Attending General Meetings

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, a NED, was unable to attend the 2017 SGMs and
the 2017 AGM as he had business engagement. Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai,
another NED, was also unable to attend the 2017 AGM as she was not in
Hong Kong on that day. Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping, an INED, was unable to
attend the 2017 AGM as she had business engagement.

Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, the Chairman, was unable to attend the 2017 AGM
as he had business engagement. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, was elected as
the chairman of the 2017 AGM to ensure effective communication with
shareholders of the Company at the 2017 AGM. Although the chairman
of the Nomination Committee, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping had not attended
the 2017 AGM due to business engagement, all other members of the
Nomination Committee had attended the 2017 AGM.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2017 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment
and development, brokerage, securities investment, money lending and

cosmetics distribution and trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year, discussion on
the Group's future business development and description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
Chairman'’s Statement of this annual report. Furthermore, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are contained in the Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. An
analysis of the Group's performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Operation Review of
this annual report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group are provided/will be provided in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Corporate Governance Report, the Directors' Report of this annual report
and/or the 2017 Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the "Stock Exchange”) and the Company respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31st December, 2017 are set out in Notes 49 and 50 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 96 to 97.

During the Year, the Board had declared and paid the following interim
dividends:—

1. declared and paid an interim dividend of HK20 cents per share
(payment date: 13th September, 2017) (2016: HK1 cent per

share); and

2. declared and paid special interim dividends of HK$2.91 per share
(payment date: 23rd June, 2017), HK64 cents per share (payment
date: 10th February, 2017) and HK$1.36 per share (payment date:
10th February, 2017) (2016: HK$7.33 per share in total).

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of

HK10 cents per share (2016: HK1 cent per share) for the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on pages 257 to 258.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties of the Group as at 31st December,

2017 are set out on pages 259 to 264.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out

in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group acquired one freehold property in the
United Kingdom (through acquisition of a subsidiary) of equivalent
to approximately HK$1,779,563,000 (2016: acquired two freehold
properties in the United Kingdom of approximately HK$3,554,052,000
in aggregate). Investment properties in Mainland China with an aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$347,162,000 (2016: investment
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China with an aggregate carrying
amounts of HK$20,177,691,000) were disposed of during the Year.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Details of the above and other movements in investment properties
during the Year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
pages 100 to 104.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted of approximately HK$16,836,014,000
(2016: HK$9,865,565,000).

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings repayable within one
year or on demand and long-term secured bank borrowings, other
borrowings and loan from a Director are shown in Notes 34 and 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Interest capitalised during the Year by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$140,000 (2016: HK$2,513,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$158,000 (2016: HK$545,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 21% and 57% of the

Group's total revenue for the Year respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 61% and 749% of the

Group's total purchases for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in

any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report

are:—

Executive Directors:

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (appointed on 13th February, 2017)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to
Bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company and all being eligible will

offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Appendix 10 of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules") were as follows:—
1 The Company
Number of

Shares Held
KRG EE

Name of Directors

EEpS

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 1,430,700,768 3
(“Mr. MW Lau")

RS ELE ([RIGELTE])

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan 1,430,700,768 @

(“Ms. HW Chan")
BRelRE £+ ([BREVEE R £ 1)
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Percentage of
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Capacity Capital

56 | ERTREABSL

Interest in controlled corporation 74.99%
and other
RRAEHI A Al B R H A

Interest in controlled 74.99%

corporation, trustee, interest
of children under 18 and
other

USRI VNI 3 BRIV
R8T X 2 et R H A

Notes:

* Mr. MW Lau was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of
the Company in aggregate. 476,425,000 shares of the Company were
directly owned by Century Frontier Limited, which was wholly owned
by Mr. MW Lau. Mr. MW Lau was also deemed to be interested in
954,275,768 shares of the Company indirectly held by Ms. HW Chan as
the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah by
virtue of the right of first refusal granted to Century Frontier Limited for
those 954,275,768 shares under a right of first refusal deed.

#* Ms. HW Chan was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares
of the Company in aggregate. 954,275,768 shares of the Company
were indirectly owned by Sino Omen Holdings Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was held by Ms. HW Chan as the trustee of her
minor children Lau, Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah. Ms. HW Chan was
also deemed to be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the Company
indirectly held by Mr. MW Lau by virtue of the right of first refusal
granted to Sino Omen Holdings Limited, Solar Bright Ltd. and Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited for those 476,425,000 shares
under a right of first refusal deed.

Mo

* SIS 12 B AR B A HHEE1,430,700,768 K
A AR5 - 476,425,0008% 2 22 & i% 19 B Century
Frontier Limited B % #£ 4 » Century Frontier Limited
HEGEEELEHER - 2R IE SR ET RS
HREBERLE (EREAKEFRZAHME R E
FHEZIETEN) BIERH 2954,275,768% KA A 7]
B&1% - Bl Century Frontier LimitediZ& @R & — {7 &

IR T B2 5 954,275,768 AR 17 K T
B -

* BRelEE L LR A R HEA1,430,700,768 A A
A% ° 954,275,768% 7~ A B % 15 a1 Sino Omen
Holdings LimitedfE# %A - K 2 82 BT A H
BB (FEREARKF F 2 B2 K 85
ZEFRAFBE - RIBREINEEREEHE
WS 1% 5 A R 15 2 476,425,00008 A 2 IR 5 -
A Sino Omen Holdings Limited - Solar Bright Ltd. 5
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited3#5 8
R IR — 10 8 5T RIB MR IR M 31 7% 476,425,000
P fn AR T 18 e R RE#E -
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Cont'd)

Il Associated corporations of the Company

Name of

Name of Associated Number of
Director Corporations Share(s) Held
Exng B EEEH FrRHEE

Ms. HW Chan Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,000 *
BelBa L

Ms. HW Chan Solar Bright Ltd. 1 *
BelBa L

BEERBETHRAERA QAT RME
BrEELHER

I AT 2 BB EE

Percentage of
Issued Share

Capacity Capital
% | EETRABOL
Trustee and 100%
interest of children under 18
BEARKRMI8H F XL
Interest in controlled corporation, 100%

trustee and

interest of children under 18
REEH AR 2R FEAR
RMI8RF X2 e

Note:

* Ms. HW Chan (as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-hok and
Lau, Sau-wah) directly held the entire issued share capital of Sino Omen
Holdings Limited. Sino Omen Holdings Limited directly held the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd.. Therefore, Ms. HW Chan as the
trustee for her said minor children was also regarded as interested in the
entire issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd..

The interests stated above represent long position. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31st
December, 2017.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31st December, 2017.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2017, so far as are known to any Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:—

Name of Substantial Number of
Shareholders Shares Held
TERRER RGO ER

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,430,700,768 A
("Mr. Joseph Lau")
RIS ([RIB T AE])

Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,430,700,768 @
Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 @
Century Frontier Limited 1,430,700,768 &
Joseph Lau Luen Hung 707,409,820 W

Investments Limited
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Capacity
3%

Interest of spouse, interest of
children under 18 and other
B8 2 7 2 ~ R 187K
TRz R R EHAD

Interest in controlled corporation
and other

REEH Rz m Rk EA

Beneficial owner,
interest in controlled corporation

and other
EmEA A REEHAFZ
T R EHA

Beneficial owner and other

BEaBEAANEM

Beneficial owner and other

EaEAANREM

Percentage of
Issued Share
Capital
ERTREABESL

74.99%

74.99%

74.99%

74.99%

37.08%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

Notes:

o Mr. Joseph Lau was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares that his spouse, Ms. HW Chan, and his minor children, Lau,
Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah, deemed to have interests.

* Sino Omen Holdings Limited held the entire issued share capital of
Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was regarded as interested in the same
parcel of shares held by Solar Bright Ltd.. Solar Bright Ltd. held the entire
issued share capital of Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited
and therefore was regarded as interested in the same parcel of shares
held by Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited. Joseph Lau Luen
Hung Investments Limited directly held 230,984,820 shares of the
Company while Solar Bright Ltd. directly held 723,290,948 shares of
the Company. Sino Omen Holdings Limited, Solar Bright Ltd. and Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited were also deemed to be interested
in 476,425,000 shares of the Company directly held by Century
Frontier Limited by virtue of the right of first refusal granted to them for
those 476,425,000 shares under a right of first refusal deed. As such,
Solar Bright Ltd. and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited were
deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares and 707,409,820
shares of the Company in aggregate respectively; Sino Omen Holdings
Limited was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of the
Company, which were referred to in the interests of Ms. HW Chan
as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests in the
Securities of the Company and Associated Corporations”.

* Century Frontier Limited directly held 476,425,000 shares of the
Company. Century Frontier Limited was also deemed to be interested
in 954,275,768 shares of the Company directly held by Solar Bright Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited in aggregate by virtue
of the right of first refusal granted to it for those 954,275,768 shares
under a right of first refusal deed. As such, Century Frontier Limited was
deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company
in aggregate, which were referred to in the interests of Mr. MW Lau
as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests in the
Securities of the Company and Associated Corporations”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st

December, 2017, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. MW Lau had
personal/directorship interests in private companies engaged in property
investment business and securities investment business. As such, he/she
was regarded as being interested in such businesses, which competed
or might compete with the Group. However, when compared with
the dominance and size of operations of the Group, such competing

businesses were immaterial.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a former executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, had through certain
private companies wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of
York Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also
known as Wanchai Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010, certain
floors and car parking spaces constituted part of the properties known
as Silvercord and the properties known as The ONE from the Group
in 2015 as well as the properties known as Windsor House from the
Group in 2016 (collectively the “Private Properties”). Each of Ms. Chan,
Sze-wan, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. MW Lau was a director of or deemed
to have certain interests in one or more of the said companies during
the Year. There might be potential leasing competition for existing and
prospective tenancies between the Private Properties and investment
properties held by the Group. In order to manage such potential leasing
competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain undertakings and the
Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange to implement certain
measures for monitoring the compliance of such undertakings. Details of
such undertakings and monitoring measures were set out in the circulars
of the Company dated 18th June, 2010, 23rd September, 2014, 7th
January, 2015 and 15th January, 2016. The independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“INEDs") had carried out an annual review on
the compliance of the said undertakings and monitoring measures and
confirmed that such undertakings and monitoring measures were duly
complied with and considered adequate monitoring measures were in

place to avoid the potential leasing competition during the Year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (contd)

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are audit committee members of the Company, so that the

interest of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Company's businesses, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s

businesses.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreements disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions” below and the facility agreements entered into between
the Group and Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Loan from a Director”
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, there were no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company's businesses, to which the Company or any of the Company's
subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there
were any other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company's businesses between the Company or any of
the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

M

On 5th December, 2016, Paul Y. Holdings Company Limited
(being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
vendor and the Company as vendor's guarantor entered into a
disposal agreement with Creative Dragon Ventures Limited (being a
company wholly-owned by Ms. HW Chan) as purchaser (the "Win
Kings Purchaser”) and Ms. HW Chan as purchaser's guarantor, in
relation to, inter alia, the disposal of the Company’s indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries that ultimately held the property development
situated at No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, Mid-Levels East, Hong Kong, at
a final consideration of approximately HK$889.6 million (the "Win
Kings Disposal”). Meanwhile, on the same day, New Silver Limited
(being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
vendor and the Company as vendor's guarantor entered into a
disposal agreement with Strong Point Ventures Limited (being
a company wholly-owned by Mr. MW Lau) as purchaser (the
“Pinecrest Purchaser”) and Mr. MW Lau as purchaser’s guarantor,
in relation to, inter alia, the disposal of the Company's indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries that ultimately held 79 shops of Lowu
Commercial Plaza located in Shenzhen, the People's Republic of
China, at a final consideration of approximately HK$352.2 million

(the “Pinecrest Disposal”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Q)

(Cont'd)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules for the Win Kings Disposal and the Pinecrest
Disposal as aggregated with the previous transactions pursuant
to Rule 14.22 and Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules exceeded
25% but were less than 75%, the Win Kings Disposal and the
Pinecrest Disposal constituted major transactions for the Company.
In addition, as at the date of the relevant announcement, Ms. HW
Chan was an associate of Directors and an associate of the then
substantial shareholder and controlling shareholder of the Company,
and was the sole director and the sole beneficial owner of the
Win Kings Purchaser, therefore Ms. HW Chan and the Win Kings
Purchaser were connected persons of the Company. Furthermore,
as Mr. MW Lau, the Chairman of the Board and a non-executive
Director was the sole director and the sole beneficial owner of the
Pinecrest Purchaser as at the date of the relevant announcement,
Mr. MW Lau and the Pinecrest Purchaser were connected persons
of the Company. Accordingly, the Win Kings Disposal and the
Pinecrest Disposal constituted connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and were
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
the Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the Win Kings
Disposal and the Pinecrest Disposal were made on 5th December,
2016.

Each of the Win Kings Disposal and the Pinecrest Disposal was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at
the special general meeting held on 13th January, 2017 and
was completed on 10th February, 2017. Details of the Win Kings
Disposal and the Pinecrest Disposal were set out in the circular of
the Company dated 28th December, 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@)

On 15th March, 2017, China Entertainment and Land Investment
Company, Limited (being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) as vendor and the Company as vendor's guarantor
entered into a disposal agreement with Perfect Sign Investments
Limited (being a company wholly-owned by Ms. HW Chan) as
purchaser (the “Great Captain Purchaser”) and Ms. HW Chan as
purchaser's guarantor, in relation to, inter alia, the disposal of the
Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary that held 577,180,500
H shares of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066), at a
consideration of approximately HK$5,567.7 million (the “Great
Captain Disposal”).

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules for the Great Captain Disposal (when
aggregated with the previous transactions pursuant to Rule 14.22
and Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules) exceeded 25% but were
less than 759%, the Great Captain Disposal constituted a major
transaction for the Company. In addition, as at the date of the
relevant announcement, Ms. HW Chan, being an executive Director
and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the Company
(who are her two minor children), was a director and the sole
beneficial owner of the Great Captain Purchaser, Ms. HW Chan
and the Great Captain Purchaser were connected persons of the
Company and the Great Captain Disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Great Captain Disposal was therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules. An announcement in
respect of the Great Captain Disposal was made on 15th March,
2017.

The Great Captain Disposal was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 4th May, 2017 and was completed on 23rd June, 2017. Details
of the Great Captain Disposal were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 13th April, 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions

Q)

On 31st October, 2014, Chinese Estates, Limited (being a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“CEL") entered into a
contract for services with Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision
of (i) leasing administration services (including without limitation
matters relating to dealing with tenants, rent collection and
taking legal actions, but excluding any services in relation to the
referral of potential tenants and the negotiation with existing and/
or potential tenants regarding terms of lease of properties), (ii)
property management services (including matters relating to the
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repair of
properties), (iii) property administration services (including without
limitation accounting, recruitment, human resources administration
works, taxation, marketing and information technology services),
(iv) asset management and maintenance services (including
property, household and other management and maintenance
services in relation to the properties and assets), (v) rental services
(including rental of motor vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking
spaces, premises and such other rental services), (vi) advisory
and consultancy services (including general advisory, consultancy,
administration, liaison, personnel support services and such other
services ancillary and/or incidental thereto), and (vii) other ordinary
services (including without limitation securities and other financial
services) to Mr. Joseph Lau and/or his associates for a term of 3
years commencing from 1st November, 2014 to 31st October,
2017 (the "2014 Contract”). The cap of the service charges
payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to CEL for the period from 1st January,
2017 to 31st October, 2017 under the 2014 Contract was set at
HK$106,608,219 (the "2014 Cap") as disclosed in the Company's

announcement dated 31st October, 2014.

As at the date of relevant announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau was a
substantial shareholder and controlling shareholder of the Company
and thus a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
2014 Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the
expected annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
2014 Contract exceeded 0.1% but were expected to be less than
5%, the 2014 Contract and the annual caps were only subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Q)

(Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company
(other than household management and maintenance services
under the asset management and maintenance services, the
property administration services, the rental services and the advisory
and consultancy services), on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the 2014 Contract governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole. Having considered the reasons and
benefits in respect of the provision of household management
and maintenance services under the asset management and
maintenance services, the property administration services, the
rental services and the advisory and consultancy services as
mentioned in the Company's announcement dated 31st October,
2014, the INEDs were of the view that, although the provision of
such services contemplated under the 2014 Contract were not in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, the terms
of such services were fair and reasonable so far as the Group were
concerned and on normal commercial terms, and were in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants that the subject continuing connected
transactions had received the approval of the Board, were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been
entered into in accordance with the 2014 Contract and had not
exceeded the 2014 Cap disclosed in the said announcement made
on 31st October, 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@)

On 31st October, 2017, to (a) continue the provision of the services
under the 2014 Contract; and (b) modify the types and certain
scope of the services, CEL entered into a contract for services with
Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration
services (including without limitation matters relating to dealing
with tenants, rent collection and taking legal actions, but excluding
services in relation to the referral of potential tenants and the
negotiation with existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms
of lease of properties), (ii) sale administration services (including
without limitation the appointment of and coordination with estate
agents for such sale but excluding any sale agency service), (iii)
property management services (including matters relating to
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repairs of
properties), (iv) property administration services (including without
limitation accounting, company secretarial, recruitment, human
resources administration works, taxation, marketing and information
technology services) (the “Property Administration Services”), (v)
asset management and maintenance services (including property,
household and other management and maintenance services in
relation to properties and assets) (the “Asset Management and
Maintenance Services"), (vi) rental services (including rental of
motor vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking spaces, premises and
such other rental services) (the “Rental Services"), (vii) advisory
and consultancy services (including general advisory, consultancy,
administration, liaison, personnel support services and such other
services (including without limitation accounting, taxation and
company secretarial services) ancillary and/or incidental thereto)
(the "Advisory and Consultancy Services”), and (viii) other ordinary
services (including without limitation securities and other financial
services) to Mr. Joseph Lau, his associates and/or relatives for a
term of 3 years commencing from 1st November, 2017 to 31st
October, 2020 (the “2017 Contract”). The cap of the service
charges payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to CEL for the period from 1st
November, 2017 to 31st December, 2017 under the 2017 Contract
was set at HK$19,386,301 (the "2017 Cap”) as disclosed in the

Company's announcement dated 3 1st October, 2017.

78  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FERXS @

FEREXS (8)

@

R-Z—tF+A=+—8 AGiERE
20148 T2 R%: ROb)EFTREEERE
TRESHE ESHERASHEEFT L —MHEZ

—+F+—F—HBE-Z-_ZTF+HA=1+—
HIEBH=FHNREEL ADB@M2IEH
FTHECEBMEARLHEBREOEBTER
B (BEEETRAEEARE AR Wl RE
BUEZITE) ETREFEEMBEAP UK
HRBFHP R SEERFHEERME LA
ERF RS  (DHEETHRE (REET
RRRMZENERHESTRAENRIEAEST
A ETBRIEEMEE RIERE) - (i)WE
EERG (RIEEMRMECER RE BE-
RERMEE2ET)  (VPETERRE (21
BTRRAG  ARME B ANBRITH
THE-Fif mSHREREAREMRE) ([%
ETERE]) VWEEEERRERS (21F
BHEMEREEZYE RKEREMERE KR
B2k ([BEEEBRRERS])  G)HEE
RS (RIS B -ME FHEL - Hiby
HERHEMBEERL) ([BHERB]) - (vi)E
ANREERRE (RIE—ARHA - BRI fTHC B
i NBHERRBE REMEE R, M RS
(BEATRAEH RERARIWERS) )
([FRREMRSE])  R(vii)E it — R R
(BIEETBRAFES KM mRE) (12017
AW - BMARTBHAE-_T—+F+ A
=+—H 2"7rﬁﬁma§z€§ : %IJﬁ%ZE%$$E$F2017

R RZE—+tF+—B—HBHEZZT—+HF
+:)EJ:+—Hﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%wﬁﬁ%%i
PR TE 419,386,301 7T ([2017 LR ]) °



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@)

(Cont'd)

As at the date of relevant announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau being the
spouse of Ms. HW Chan, accordingly an associate of Ms. HW Chan
(an executive Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders
of the Company (who are her two minor children)). Therefore,
Mr. Joseph Lau was a connected person of the Company and
the 2017 Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the
expected annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
2017 Contract exceeded 0.1% but were expected to be less than
5%, the 2017 Contract and the annual caps were only subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing
connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company (other
than household management and maintenance services under
the Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Property
Administration Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory
and Consultancy Services), on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the 2017 Contract governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole. Having considered the reasons and
benefits in respect of the provision of household management
and maintenance services under the Asset Management and
Maintenance Services, the Property Administration Services, the
Rental Services and the Advisory and Consultancy Services as
mentioned in the Company's announcement dated 31st October,
2017, the INEDs were of the view that, although the provision of
such services contemplated under the 2017 Contract were not in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, the terms
of such services were fair and reasonable so far as the Group were
concerned and on normal commercial terms, and were in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT ZEEEHREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)
(2) (Cont'd)

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants that the subject continuing connected
transactions had received the approval of the Board, were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been
entered into in accordance with the 2017 Contract and had not
exceeded the 2017 Cap disclosed in the said announcement made
on 31st October, 2017.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this

Directors’ Report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the "Material Related Party Transactions” as
disclosed in Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions”
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the
relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the

Year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:—

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their

respective trustees accordingly.

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1st December, 2000. Contributions to
the ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based
on the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff
members are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with
accrued returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining
the retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group’s mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December, 2017
amounted to approximately HK$10,030,000 (2016: HK$9,799,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer's contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$213,000 (2016: HK$297,000) was
utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year. As at
31st December, 2017, no available balance to reduce future contributions
(2016: Nil).

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme") was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 14th January, 2009 (the "Adoption Date”). The Share Award Scheme
is a long-term incentive arrangement for the selected employees. The
purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward certain
employees of the Group for their contributions to the Group and to give
long-term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. It also intends to attract suitable professional
recruits to join the Group and to assist in the further development of the

Group.

The Board may from time to time, at its absolute discretion and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of
eligibility of each employee determined by the Board from time to time),
after having taken into account recommendations made by members of
the Group and assessment of individual performance pursuant to internal
appraisal system, select an employee for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a Selected Employee (“Selected Employee”) and determine
the number of shares which may be awarded to such Selected Employee
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Share(s)").
A Selected Employee shall qualify to be allotted and issued the Awarded
Shares after all the qualifying conditions have been fulfilled, unless

otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

The issue price for each Awarded Share shall, subject to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, be an amount equal to its nominal value and
shall be paid or satisfied in cash by the relevant member of the Group
engaging the Selected Employee or, if payment by the relevant member
of the Group engaging the Selected Employee is not permitted under
applicable law, any member of the Group, upon the allotment and issue
of the Awarded Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued in response to the
Share Award Scheme and any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 207,775,007, being
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the Adoption Date and
represents approximately 10.89% of the total number of shares in issue
at the date of this report. No granting of Awarded Shares was made for
the Year.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares to be granted to each Selected
Employee under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall
not exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of such

grant.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date (i.e. until 13th January,
2019). As at the date of this Directors’ Report, the remaining life of the

Share Award Scheme is less than 1 year.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23rd December, 2008.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT ZEEEHREE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of

the Company’s business were entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

According to the Company's Bye-Laws, each Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act, 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such Director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the Director's office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to INEDs since July 2014
by issuing a letter to each of the INEDs. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the

Directors and officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Award Scheme, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreement for the Year.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam, Kwong-wai

Director

Hong Kong, 22nd February, 2018
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HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 96 to 256, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2017, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the

key audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31st December, 2017, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately
HK$2,804,826,000.

To support the going
concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial
statements, management of
the Group has prepared a cash
flow projections of the Group
covering a period of not less
than twelve months from 31st
December, 2017 and concluded
that there would be sufficient
funds from the Group's existing
cash resources, available
facilities from banks and a
director of the Company and
cash flows to be generated
from its operations to finance its
future operations and enable it
to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from 31st
December, 2017.

The cash flow projections
involved key assumptions
such as revenue growth, gross
profit margin, planned capital
expenditures, and availability of

facilities to the Group.

Our procedures in relation to
preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis included, but were not

limited to:

- assessing the appropriateness
of the key assumptions in the
cash flow projections, including
revenue growth, gross profit
margin and planned capital
expenditures by referencing to
actual historical performance
of the Group and making
reference to the Group's future
development plan, and testing
the mathematical accuracy of

the projections;

- confirming the cash resources
and available facilities from
banks and the director of the
Company as at year end by
circularisation of confirmations
and assessing the probability
of banking facilities renewal
during the projections period
by examining historical
records of renewal pattern,
and reviewing management
assessment on the present and
forecast status of compliance
with restrictive loan covenants,

where relevant; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the

key audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis (Cont'd)

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to
preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis included, but were not
limited to: (Cont'd)

- evaluating the sensitivity of
the projected available cash
by considering downside
scenarios through applying
reasonably plausible changes
to the key assumptions,
including revenue growth
and gross profit margin. We
have also considered the
appropriateness of the relevant

disclosures.

We found the use of going concern
basis of accounting to be supportable

by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the

key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 19 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Management has estimated
the fair value of the Group's
investment properties
to be approximately
HK$15,649,991,000 as at
31st December, 2017 with a
net gain on fair value changes
for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 recorded in
the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of
approximately HK$564,502,000.
Independent external valuations
were obtained in respect of all of
the portfolio of the Group, also
with the investment properties
held by its associates in order
to support management’s

estimates.

The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that
require significant management
judgment including reversionary
yield and rental income from
future reversion leases in light of

current market condition.

Our procedures in relation to
management's valuation of
investment properties included, but

were not limited to:

- evaluating the independent
external valuers’ competence,

capabilities and objectivity;

—  assessing the methodologies
used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions and
parameters based on our
knowledge of the property
industry and using our audit

valuation experts; and

- checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the

input data used.

We found the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the

key audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial

assets

Refer to Notes 5(c), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31st December, 2017, the
Group has equity securities with
carrying amount of approximately
HK$24,141,960,000 were
irrevocably elected and designated
as financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

As at 31st December, 2017,
the Group holds unlisted equity
securities, including limited
partnership, and club debentures
with carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,031,230,000
and HK$69,889,000 respectively.
These financial instruments
do not have a quoted market
price in an active market (the
“Unquoted Investments”). They
were classified as financial assets
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income or
financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss and
measured at fair value.

Our procedures over the classification
of financial assets and fair value
measurement of the Group's
portfolio of Unquoted Investments
included, but were not limited to:

- assessing management’s
evaluation in relation to the
classification of financial
assets based on the Group's
business model for managing
the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial
assets;

- reviewing management's
memorandum for the
classification of financial assets
and the irrevocable election
to designate investment in
equity instruments that would
be measured subsequent
changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income;

- enquiring the management

including fund manager
assessing the
methodologies used in fair
value measurement and the
appropriateness of the key
assumptions and parameters

and

based on our knowledge of the
investment and using our audit
valuation experts;

- enquiring management the
assumptions around the
sustainability of earnings based
on the plans of the investee
companies and whether these

were achievable;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the

key audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial
assets (Cont'd)
Refer to Notes 5(c), 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The valuation of the Unquoted  Our procedures over the classification

Investments is complex and  of financial assets and fair value

requires the application of measurement of the Group's

significant judgment by the  portfolio of Unquoted Investments

management. included, but were not limited to:
(Cont'd)

The Unquoted Investments are

. . - obtaining management
valued on a basis considered 8 8

information including budgets
and forecasts from the
portfolio companies being
valued and using this to
corroborate the key inputs in
the valuation model;

the most appropriate by the
management and independent
external valuers, depending on the
nature of the underlying business
which has been invested in.

- checking, on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used such
as comparing key underlying
financial data inputs to
external sources and investee
companies’ audited financial
statements and management
information as applicable;

- obtaining market second
hand prices independently
and comparing them to the
valuation model;

—  evaluating the independent
external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity; and

- checking the arithmetical
accuracy on the valuation
model.

We considered management's
classification and fair value
measurement on financial assets
were supported by available
evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the

key audit matter

Revenue recognition on stock of properties developed for sale

Refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from stock of properties
developed for sale for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 was
approximately HK$990,106,000
which accounted for 65% of the

total revenue of the Group.

Revenue is recognised upon
completion of sales agreement
and by reference to the timing
of the execution of deed of
legal assignment or delivery
of property to the purchaser,

whichever is earlier.

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition on stock of properties
developed for sale included, but

were not limited to:

- obtaining evidence regarding
the execution of deed of legal
assignment including letters

from lawyers;

- reviewing the signed sales

agreement;

- reconciling the monetary
amounts to the signed sales

agreement; and

- agreeing the receipts in the
bank statements and the

stakeholders’ accounts.

We found that the amount and
timing of the revenue recognised
in stock of properties developed for
sale were supported by the available

evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the
Group's 2017 annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other

Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors of the Company.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: PO6417

Hong Kong, 22nd February, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e 2ER SRR

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 B ZE =%

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Investment income, net

Administrative expenses

Gain on disposals of equipment, net

Fair value changes on investment properties
Finance costs

Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of associates

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations
Reclassification adjustment related to
foreign operations disposed of
Share of other comprehensive income
(expenses) of associates

Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income
for the year
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2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
1,516,655 3,745,148
(546,813) (1,597,606)
969,842 2,147,542
132,020 102,914
2,701,708 3,038,649
(279,254) (331,484)
1,832 216
564,502 139,216
(295,173) (176,505)
140,283 2,176,425
189,922 161,182
4,125,682 7.258,155
(327,049) (564,966)
3,798,633 6,693,189
12,217,167 (2,368,729)
306 91
12,217,473 (2,368,638)
405,284 (570,994)
409 9,053
16,658 (11,063)
422,351 (573,004)
12,639,824 (2,941,642)
16,438,457 3,751,547




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R&Z2HEWHE R K
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAT
Profit for the year attributable to: A FERF
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE PN 3,708,886 6,360,312
Non-controlling interests JEER R 89,747 332,877
3,798,633 6,693,189
Total comprehensive income for the year EEAFEZHE KA
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHEA A 16,348,710 3,418,670
Non-controlling interests FEE A 2 89,747 332,877
16,438,457 3,751,547
Earnings per share (HK$) BREF (BT) 18
Basic and diluted BERR#E 1.944 3334

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& B BHEM TG AMBREN—IH -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma MR AR O |k

At 31st December, 2017 R=E—+tF+-_A=+—8H

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Gooduwill

Interests in associates

Advances to associates

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advances to investee companies

Advance to a non-controlling shareholder

Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Current assets
Stock of properties
Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Inventories
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and
prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Time deposits, bank balances and cash
Sales proceeds held by stakeholders

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals
Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits and receipts in advance
Tax liabilities
Borrowings

Net current (liabilities) assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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Notes
H 3

19
20
21
22
23
24

25
26
27(a)
27(b)
28

29
30(a)

31

25
32

28
30(b)

30(a)
30(c)

33

34

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
15,649,991 12,887,253
43,117 45,430
322,938 322,938
2,115,228 1,955,120
49,199 49,485
2,049,276 373,050
24,141,960 5,442,591
605,204 596,354
14,908 14,908

- 1,102,338

2,419 2,692
90,541 13,884
45,084,781 22,806,043
296,513 1,273,474
8,759,356 14,642,623
2,660 2,860
916,113 4,722,891
112,611 27327
2,155 3,991
172,972 929,879
659,402 1,070,471
56,792 296,176
10,978,574 22,969,692
345,201 408,702
116,983 9,245
241,168 252,132
316,502 294,511
12,763,546 10,797,503
13,783,400 11,762,093
(2,804,826) 11,207,599
42,279,955 34,013,642




Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Share capital
Properties revaluation reserve
Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income reserve

Statutory reserve

Other reserve

Special reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Translation reserve

Retained profits
— proposed final dividend
— special interim dividends declared
— others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Loan from a director
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
Deferred tax liabilities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RARERANEEREERS
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Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 22nd

February, 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

R
BEFE

Chan, Sze-wan

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

REMBRRER

At 31st December, 2017 R=_FE—+tF+_-_A=+—H

2017 2016

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 3 FHERT FHET
36 190,762 190,762
- 18,632

10,204,417 (2,255,201)

668 668

- (2,378)

2,499,685 2,499,685

138,062 138,062

(308,253) (728,226)

190,762 19,076

- 3,815,238

23,469,813 26,107,898

36,385,916 29,804,216

107,086 95,639

36,493,002 29,899,855

34 3,709,467 3,793,891
37 1,835,500 -
38 142,419 110,269
38 49,202 84,761
29 50,365 124,866
5,786,953 4,113,787

42,279,955 34,013,642

BEEEEN T \F_A-F+_BH#EREE

B U TINEEKREFTERE:

Lam, Kwong-wai

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERTEREF X

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

At 1st January, 2016 (originally stated)

Effect on early adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 9 (2014) (net of tax)

At st January, 2016 (restated)

Profit for the year

Gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
- Listed equity investment
- Unlisted investments

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment related to
a foreign operation disposed of

Share of other comprehensive income
(expenses) of associates

Total comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year
Release of reserves upon disposals of subsidiaries
Release of reserve upon sales of completed properties
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Interim dividend for 2016 paid
Final dividend for 2015 paid
Special interim dividends for 2016 paid

At 31st December, 2016
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RZEB-R"E-A—H (RE2H)

RERMBBNEREENZY
(20145 ) 2 &2 (BHE)

R-F-RE-A-H (&)

REREN
BRAMEENENRR
DFEFEZRATAREY
W e
- EHRARE
-FLTHRE
ENEBRELZELZR

ABLERNRB BN ARE

T NIR Y kS 6
()

AEREE (X RELR

REENBAARERD 2 &6
REEZRMERELD 2R
ERFERRERE
ERZR-RERHRS
BENZZ-RERBKS
ENZE-RERNTHRE

RZE-R"E+-A=t-H

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARREARGRAER

Financial

assets

measured

at fair value

Properties Securities  through other
Share revaluation  investments comprehensive Statutory
capital reserve reserve income reserve reserve

Hft2E

K SR B

DTEE

nE #% ZERER
BA Efhff RERME iR EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TER TEL TiER TiEn
(note (i) (note (i)
NGEO) (M)
190,762 98,162 16,044 - 24,028
- - (16,044) 113,437 -
190,762 98,162 - 113,437 24,028
- - - (2,366,440) -
- - - (2,289) -
— - - 9] -
- - - (2,368,638) -
- - - - (23,360)
- (79,530) - - -
190,762 18,632 - (2,255,201) 668




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAEEARLERERR
Amount
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve held for sale profits Total interests equity
REBFLE
% ZERBEE Bags
Hib G HHIRE RE G EXRE ZHE RERF g FERER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TATL TEL TETL TEL TETL TEL TEL
(note (ii)) (note (iv)) (note (v))
(ki) (FirEE () ) (BzE())
(2,407) 2,499,685 138,062 (155,193) 127054 37311,403 40,247,600 71762 40,325,362
- - - - - 61,553 158,946 - 158,946
(2,407) 2,499,685 138,062 (155,193) 127054 37372,956 40,406,546 71762 40,484,308
- - - - - 6,360,312 6,360,312 332,877 6,693,189
- - - - - - (2,366,440) - (2,366,440)
- - - - - - (2,289) - (2,289)
- - - (570994) - - (570994) - (570994)
- - - 9,053 - - 9,053 - 9,053
29 - - (11,092) - - (10972) - (10972)
29 - - (573,033) - 6,360,312 3,418,670 332,871 3,751,547
- - - - (127054) 150,414 - - -
- - - - - 79,530 - - -
- - - - - - - (315,000) (315,000)
- - - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - - - (13,982,848) (13,982,848) - (13,982,848)
(2,378) 2,499,685 138,062 (728,226) - 29,942,212 29,804,216 95,639 29,899,855
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST X
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

At Tst January, 2017

Profit for the year
Gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
- Listed equity investments
- Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
Reclassification adjustment related to
a foreign operation disposed of
Share of other comprehensive income of associates

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer of negative reserve upon disposal of
the investment in an equity instrument
Release of reserve upon sales of completed properties
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder
Interim dividend for 2017 paid
Final dividend for 2016 paid
Special interim dividends for 2016 and 2017 paid

At 31st December, 2017

RZZ—t%—-A—H

REREN
BRAMEENENRR
RTEHEZRATIAREY
W e
- EHRARE
-FLTHRE
ENEBHRELZELER

ABLERNRB BN ARE

LT NIRY kS 6

AEREERERR
REERFATARERER Y
BfERE
REERRNERRL 2 ERE
B -REERBRRE
ERNZE-tFRHRE
ERZE-RERARE
ERN-E-AERZT-tHF
KhlR AR S

RZZ2-t£+ZA=1+-H
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Attributable to owners of the Company

FARREARGRAER

Financial

assets

measured

at fair value

Properties Securities  through other
Share revaluation  investments comprehensive Statutory
capital reserve reserve income reserve reserve

iR E

K R B

DVEE

nE #% ZEREE
K& Efhff RERME iR EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TEL TR TiER
(note (i) (note (i))
(HZE)) (FEEGiy)
190,762 18,632 - (2,255,201) 668
- - - 12,052,597 -
o - - 164,570 =
- - - 306 -
- - - 12,217,473 -
- - - 242,145 -
= (18,632) - = =
190,762 - - 10,204,417 668




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEARGRERR
Amount
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve held for sale profits Total interests equity
BEBELE
% ZERBEE RAgR
Hibfife HRIRE BEHE EXRE ZHE RERF ag FERER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TER TATL TEL TATL TEL TETL TAL TER
(note (ii)) (note (iv)) (note (v))
GEID) (P v)) (M)
(2,378) 2,499,685 138,062 (728,226) = 29,942,212 29,804,216 95,639 29,899,855
- - - - - 3,708,886 3,708,886 89,747 3,198,633
- - - - - - 12,052,597 - 12,052,597
- - - - - - 164,570 - 164,570
- - - 405,284 - - 405,284 - 405,284
- - - 409 - - 409 - 409
2,318 = = 14,280 = = 16,964 = 16,964
2,378 - - 419,973 - 3,708,886 16,348,710 89,747 16,438,457
= - = - 8 (242,185) - - -
- - - - - 18,632 - - -
- - - - - - - (78.300) (18,300)
- - - - - (381,524) (381,524) - (381,524)
- - - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
= - = - 8 (9,366,410) (9,366,410 = (9,366,410)
- 2,499,685 138,062 (308,253) - 23,660,575 36,385,916 107,086 36,493,002
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST X

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(i)  The cumulative amount of the gain on a listed equity investment
classified as financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") was approximately
HK$9,928,302,000 as at 31st December, 2017 (2016: loss of
approximately HK$2,366,440,000).

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group disposed
of a subsidiary, whose principal asset was its holding of a block of
577,180,500 H shares of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066)
(“Shengjing Bank”) (“SJB Shares”). Details of the disposal of the
subsidiary are set out in Note 39(c). At the date of completion of the
disposal, the SJB Shares were carried at their fair value determined
based on the consideration of the disposal transaction. The resulting
gain on fair value change of the SIB Shares, as well as the transaction
costs of the disposal, amounting to approximately HK$2,124,295,000,
was recognised as part of the other comprehensive income of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017, details of which are
set out in Note 26(i). Upon completion of the disposal, the negative
balance in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve that
related to the SJB Shares disposed of, amounting to approximately
HK$242,145,000, was transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group has acquired
857,541,000 shares of China Evergrande Group (Stock Code: 3333)
(“China Evergrande”) (“Evergrande Shares”). The unrealised gain
on fair value change of the Evergrande Shares of approximately
HK$9,928,302,000 was recorded in financial assets measured at
FVTOCI reserve during the year ended 31st December, 2017.

(i) The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

(i)  The movement of other reserve for the year represented the release
of the negative reserve held by an associate of the Group upon the
disposals of the relevant properties.

(iv)  Special reserve represented the difference arising from the aggregate of
the share capital and premium amount of the former holding company
and the Company upon redomicile of the holding company as a
Bermuda Company in 1989 and is non-distributable.

(v)  Amount represented “Amount recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity relating to non-current assets held
for sale”.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Interest expenses
Interest income
Dividends income from listed and
unlisted investments
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade receivables
Impairment losses reversed
in respect of trade receivables
Impairment loss reversed
in respect of an other receivable
Write off overprovision in prior years, net
Unrealised (gain) loss arising from change
in fair value of bonds
Unrealised (gain) loss arising from change
in fair value of club debentures
Gain on disposals of equipment, net
Loss on disposal of a club debenture
Share of results of associates
Fair value changes on investment properties
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries
Write-down of stock of properties
Underprovision for rental guarantee
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
interest in and advance to
an associate, net
Loss on dissolution of an associate

Exchange loss (gain), net

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 B Z=—FT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

RExK
R 75 B
ATFIEREZH#HE:
WE BENIRENE
FERX
FEUA
EHEIELETRE
LN ON
B E 5 BRIARE R
HEEE
MIEWE 5 ERIAEE
HEEE
A — TR H At R Mg B TR K [
ZREEE
W B R R R R AR
EHF 2NV EE
MmESZ RER (Ya) B8
SREFZATEEDY
MmESZ ARER (W) B8
HERE %8
HESREFZER
BLE L N RIEEA
BREMEZ A VEE
HE M B ARz WEE
MEFEZRE
HeEREETR
MR R R R
A % E A R FUR
TR 2 R (BB 1R F 58
—HEE R RFERZEBE
PE F B R (Ueem ) %8

2017
HK$'000
f&E TET

Notes

4,125,682

8,680
234,631
(1,690,936)

(164,110)

272

(22)

(2.632)

(600,296)

(7,082)

(1.832)

(189,922)

(564,502)

39 (144,126)
3,830

40,389

2016
HK$'000
FHET

7,258,155

10,304

227,478

(2,765,341)

(242,837)

413

(994)

(1,990)
(1,600)

126,183

269
(216)

53
(161,182)
(139,216)
(2,311,127)

128,457

160

6,083

(35,731)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEeRE&FREXR
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in stock of properties

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Increase in debtors, deposits,
other receivables and prepayments

Decrease in investments held-for-trading

Decrease (increase) in financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss

(Increase) decrease in securities trading
receivables and deposits

Decrease in sales proceeds held
by stakeholders

Decrease in creditors and accruals

Increase (decrease) in securities trading and
margin payable

Decrease in deposits and receipts in advance

Decrease in provisions

Cash generated from operating activities

Income tax paid, net

Net cash generated from (used in)

operating activities

Notes
Ff 51
LEECEHRIZ
KERBME
MEFER D

FER A (38hn)

EY R R E  Hib RUBRIA K
Fa R FRIAE N

FIEEEZRERD

BRBERARRITEFEZ
SREER LD (Em)

W EH RS RBAREFR

(#m) H
RE AT B A 18 OB
W

JRE A< B TR K% 8 SRR R A

JEN E 52 58RI M
REDE M CRAL)

R e MIAWGRIER D

Bt

KEEEEB RS
B PEHFER

RE (AR REXBREFHE

106 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
1,048,024 2,097,323
420,044 1,296,535
200 (327)
(448,497) (177,718)
- 364,244
4,814,419 (4,009,779)
(84,790) 58,848
50,525 1,595,536
(65,944) (646,446)
107,764 (1,936)
(97.610) (336,309)
- (1,409)
5,744,135 238,562
(276,440) (448,751)
5,467,695 (210,189)




Investing activities

Dividends received from listed and unlisted
investments

Dividends received from associates

Interest received

Payments for investment properties

Purchases of investment properties

Purchases of equipment

Payments for stock of properties

Proceeds from disposals of equipment

Net cash inflow arising from
disposals of subsidiaries

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of
assets through acquisition of a subsidiary

Deferred considerations received in respect of
disposals of subsidiaries in prior years

Advances to associates

Advances from associates

Advances to investee companies

Decrease (increase) in pledged deposits

Increase in time deposits with maturity greater
than three months

Purchase of a financial asset measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Net return of capital contribution from a financial
asset measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Proceed from disposal of a financial asset

measured at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash (used in) generated from

investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #HREBRE&RER

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

REXK
BERETRIELHREZRSR

BB E AR Z RS
[EEEls)

XN REWMESIA
BEREME

E%“é“?n

X MEFERA
HERESHIEA
HEMBARZRERAFHE

BB UE — M B 2~ FUE
BEEZRSREFHE
WECBEFEERLEHBRARZ
EEAAE

BN NI S|
HRAWE DR ZHIE
BNEZRERT 2R
EIRFR 2R (480)
FRHAEZR=EA ZEHEX
Z 3B

BERBE M 2 W Y AR BR
RTEFEZEMEE
KB I8 B E i 2 U A DA SR Bk
RTEFEZEMEEZ
TEEBEARRIEFHE
HEBBBREARRAFEE
ZEBEEZSTA

(AR)RBEREXBZHREFR

—tEET A=t HILEFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M TFET FET
1,092 212,837

75,100 155,840

1,007,997 840,888
(937) (29,979)
- (3,554,052)
(5.131) (8,443)
(463) (85,705)

2,688 506

39 1,777,903 6,902,333
40 (1,689,819) -
5,873,280 8,912,500
(28,319) (3,685)

32,451 134,400
(8.850) (179,860)
694,590 (875,482)

(88,824) -
(13,182,428) (6,926,166)

16,205 6,499

= 5

(5.523,465) 5,502,436
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Interest paid
New bank borrowings and
other borrowings raised
Loans from a director raised
Repayments of bank borrowings and
other borrowings
Repayments of loans from a director

Repayments to non-controlling shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at

31st December

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Time deposits, bank balances and cash
(excluding time deposits with maturity greater

than three months)

FEHRERER

MEXK
ENBE
AR AR 2 LR
ERFE

BEEEER
B3R IR R 2 3R IR

ARBEXE 2R EFH

RERRESEERBZHDFE
R—A-BZBAERRELEHEER

EREEH2F

R+t=A=+—-H2
RERRESEHEER

RERRESEEEBERDIT

EHER RITEHRLRD

(TEEERZR=EAZ

EHEZ

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

108 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2017 2016
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
B 5 FHERT FAT
(4,741,543) (9,700,227)
= (315,000)
(232,819) (292,942)
20,148,553 26,037,379
3,689,070 -
(17,430,898) (22,370,483)
(1,848,540) -
(25,000) (439,007)
42 (447,177) (7,080,280)
(502,947) (1,788,033)
1,070,471 2,862,041
3,054 (3,537)
570,578 1,070,471
30(c) 570,578 1,070,471
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 B Z=—FT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange"). The addresses of the
Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
this annual report. Details of the substantial shareholders of the
Company are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial
Shareholders' Interests in the Securities of the Company” in the

section headed "Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all amounts are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise

indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set

out in Notes 49 and 50 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2017 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2016

except as described below.

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following amendments to existing Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (“Amendments”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are
effective for current financial year of the Group. The Amendments
adopted by the Group in these consolidated financial statements
are set out below:
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle relating to
Amendments to HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduced an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities

arising from financing activities.

The application of the Amendments had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods are prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs, new
interpretations and amendments to existing HKFRSs (“new and

amended HKFRSs") that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle except

HKFRS 12 (Amendments)'

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED

HKFRSs (Cont'd)

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs, new

interpretations and amendments to existing HKFRSs (“new and

amended HKFRSs") that have been issued but are not yet effective:

(Cont'd)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) (Amendments)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts'

Clarifications to HKFRS 92

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15!

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property!

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2019

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgments and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In September
2015, the HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a
one-year deferral of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to
Tst January, 2018. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost

and complexity of applying the standard.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are currently assessing
the effects of applying HKFRS 15 and, at this stage, the Directors
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 would not result in any

significant impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. It distinguishes leases and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Subject to limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees. However, the standard does not significantly

change the accounting of lessors.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$41,812,000.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these lease arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognise right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of

the financial effect until the Directors complete a detailed review.

Save as described above, the Directors are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the new and amended HKFRSs
but are not yet in a position to determine whether the new and
amended HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how the Group's
results of operations and financial position are prepared and
presented. The new and amended HKFRSs may result in changes in
the future as to how the results and financial position are prepared

and presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, these consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
("Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$2,804,826,000.
Notwithstanding the above result, the consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group's financial
performance and liquidity position. The validity of the going
concern basis is dependent upon the success of the Group's future
operations, its ability to generate adequate cash flows in order to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due, its ability
to refinance or restructure its borrowings such that the Group can

meet its future working capital and financing requirements.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group had unutilised bank facilities.
Based on the latest communications with the banks, the Directors
are not aware of any intention of the principal banks to withdraw
their bank facilities or require early repayment of the borrowings,
and the Directors believe that the existing bank facilities will be
renewed or roll-overed when their current terms expire given the
good track records and relationships the Group has with the banks.
Further, the Group has unutilised loan facilities from a Director
(Note 37). In addition, the Group held a portfolio of listed securities
investments and treasury products presented as non-current
assets as at 31st December, 2017 in aggregate of approximately
HK$25,090,117,000 (Notes 25 and 26), which could be realised

into cash, if necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management. The cash flow projections cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31st December,
2017. Based on these cash flow projections, the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the coming twelve months from 31st
December, 2017. The management has made key assumptions
on the projections with regard to the anticipated cash flows from
the Group's operations, capital expenditures and the continuous
availability of bank facilities. The Group's ability to achieve the
projected cash flows depends on the continuous availability of bank

facilities from its banks.

In the view of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that there
will be sufficient financial resources available to the Group to enable
it to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value-in-use in HKAS

36 “"Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;
Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has
power over the investee; (i) is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(i) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHERE W

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont'd) () HAERBEE(E
Subsidiaries (Cont'd) o AR D)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Total comprehensive income and expense of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries (Cont'd)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is, reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost that is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
(2014) “Financial Instruments”, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE_Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(b)

(9

Goodwill (Cont'd)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating-units (“CGUs")
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss

on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in
an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE_Z

—tF+A=t+—HLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9 (2014). The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when

the equity method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not

related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(d)

(e)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including land held for
a currently undetermined future use. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(e)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property

is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be
occupied by the owner. Gain or loss arising from change in
fair value of the investment property upon the transfer is

included in profit or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties at fair value
when it is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accounted for as a revaluation increase or
decrease in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets,
the relevant revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land classified as finance leases (other than
properties under development) are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment (other than properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the
leases

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired period

of the lease and 40 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(8

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties and
properties under development, which are held-for-trading, is

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units.
Net realisable value is estimated by the management of
the Group based on prevailing market conditions, which
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of properties under development held for sale
includes identified costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing costs capitalised,
material and supplies, wages, other direct expenses and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is estimated by the management of the Group taking into
account the expected price that can ultimately be achieved
based on prevailing market conditions, the anticipated costs

of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale and properties under development
held for sale is recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down or provision arising from an increase in net
realisable value is recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(h)

0]

1)

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetic products, which are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are
assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any
identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. A financial asset
or financial liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially measured

at the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assets.
(1) Cassification and measurement

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost less
impairment loss (except for debt investments that are

designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition):

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset shall be measured at FVTOC! if both of

the following conditions are met:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financial asset; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

()

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

All other financial assets that are other than those

categorised as amortised cost and FVTOCI above, are

categorised as measured at FVTPL.

M

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount at

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised using effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

revenue or investment income as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j)  Financial instruments (Cont'd) G) =®IA (&)
Financial assets (Cont'd) THEE (B)
(i) Classification and measurement (Cont'd) ) PEREE (&)

@

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

On the date of initial application of HKFRS 9
(2014), the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments
as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not
permitted if the equity investment is held-for-
trading. A financial asset is held-for-trading if it
has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term or it is a derivative
that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the financial assets

measured at FVTOCI reserve. Fair value is

@
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determined in the manner described in Note URMATFEFEZEHE
5(c) to the consolidated financial statements. EZHER Rt R TER

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

and is included in investment income.

The Group has designated all investments in
equity instruments (listed or unlisted) that are
not held-for-trading as at FVTOCI since the
application of HKFRS 9 (2014).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEEVTBERBEE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
(j)  Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®IA (&)
Financial assets (Cont'd) LHEE (&)
(i) Classification and measurement (Cont'd) ) PR E(E)
(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL 3) BEBREZURBMAFEE
ZERERE
Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise AERERNARBAFEE
derivatives that are not designated and effective ZEMEEBEFWETR
as hedging instruments and club debentures. FRES R 2 TETAEUNRE
FEfEs-o
Investments in equity instruments are classified BARTAKRESERBRE
as FVTPL, unless the Group designates such HARBATFE BRIEASE
investment that is not held-for-trading as at B P 1) 25 AR I 15 TE AL I A
FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (i)(2) above). EEEZREARBBHEMS
@A RRAFE(R L
X(@H(2)) e
Debt instruments that do not meet the TRE& B A AN Rl B E A
amortised cost and FVTOCI criteria (see above) TENEARBE QT EE
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt AlzEBIA (R EX)H
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria RiBBAEE AR AT ER
but are designated as at FVTPL are measured 2o boh BIE R & # K
at FVTPL. A debt instrument may be designated AR MWIETERBBIE
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such mARMAFEZERL
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a B AmBRBEmARBRAT
measurement or recognition inconsistency that Bt E - WA EEERIEH
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or PR RE T 2SR L IR
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on =Bz BER DERGFAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j)  Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®IA (&)
Financial assets (Cont'd) LHEE (&)
(i) Classification and measurement (Cont'd) ) PR E(E)
(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Cont'd) 3) BBEBZARMAFERZ
ZeEEE (B)
Financial assets measured at FVTPL are AEREERNARBAFEE
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting ZEMEENRMERARER
period, with any gains or losses arising from FEFE - ESEHAEmE
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. 7 WS E RN R
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss e 8 m R 2 M a sk
is included in investment income. Fair value is BEEIFHEAFELREWRA
determined in the manner described in Note o R FEEGEMBERE
5(c) to the consolidated financial statements. M EES ()Pt 2 75 N -
Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL BRERNARBRAFTEZE
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in BLAEZMBWARBzRF
investment income. BWREBEERERAR -
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) =HEEZAE

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. An impairment gain or loss, the amount
of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at reporting date is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach to providing for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9 (2014), which requires the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade

receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

()

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-

looking information.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial

instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the

instrument is less than 12 months).
In all cases, the maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period

over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial assets.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract

and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data of the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not

consider otherwise;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
re-organisation, or the disappearance of an
active market for a security because of financial

difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for
a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified
as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the financial assets measured at
FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is

transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

0)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)
(1) assification and measurement (Cont'd)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into (i) financial
liabilities at FVTPL and (ii) other financial liabilities
subsequently measured at amortised cost. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

(1) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL, representing those
as held-for-trading, comprise derivatives that
are not designated and effective as hedging

instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

(2) Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount at

initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

(1) assification and measurement (Cont'd)

@

3

Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method
(Cont'd)

Interest expense is recognised using effective
interest method for financial liabilities, other than
those financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included

in finance costs.
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Consideration paid to repurchase the Company's
own equity instruments is deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company's own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j)  Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®IA (&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
Group's obligation specified in the relevant contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at FVTPL
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. A financial guarantee contract that is classified as
financial liabilities at FVTPL shall be subsequently measured
at fair value. Otherwise, subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of (i) the amount of the loss allowance; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with

the principles of HKAS 18 “Revenue”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from properties developed for sale is recognised
upon completion of sales agreement and by reference to
the timing of the execution of deed of legal assignment or

delivery of property to the purchaser, whichever is earlier.

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the
execution of a binding sales agreement. Payments received
from the purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as
deposits received on sales of properties and are grouped

under current liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Sale of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts and the profit and loss on trade in securities and
futures contracts are recognised on the transaction dates

when the relevant contract notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with
terms of respective agreements over the relevant period in

which the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetic products is recognised when

goods are delivered and titles have been passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Revenue recognition (Cont'd) (k) WARR (&)
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time ERMEEZMBWMATI R AR ERILE
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the FRERFE LRI E AR X
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly ERemEERTFEBAGMEETRK
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the BeWA LR ZE NV SRR EE
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying AREFEZ MK
amount on initial recognition.

() Taxation ) #HimE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

the business combination.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
(m) Leasing

(m) HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms NAEXETEEEHERGE BRI

(m)

of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Company's net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE_Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m)

(o)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve in respect of that operation attributable to the owners

of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not
recognised in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence, the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences

is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(p)

(@)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset or disposal group
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. The
management of the Group must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(  Non-current assets held for sale (Cont'd) (n HELHEZFERDEE (&)
When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss EREEABBTSREEMNBARZ
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of M 2 SHEET R i R AR
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria ZINBAFIZABEERBBEEDER
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group FIELE THASEBRZANER
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary AIHERIMOIREFERER -
after the sale.
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held DERBELEZIERDEE (REE
for sale (other than investment properties accounted for ) (RBREBSFHERE405 [12E
under the fair value model in HKAS 40 “Investment Property” MEINRNFEREAFEZREMER
and financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 (2014)), HEBBVBRELERNZEIR (20145F)
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount HEANZREERIN) DIREELA
and fair value less costs to sell. ZHREERAFERLE SRR (LERIE

ERE)FE-
(s) Related parties (s) BEEAZL

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(s) Related parties (Cont'd)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

@

3

)

€)

)

)

®

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(s) Related parties (Cont'd) (s) BAEAL(HE)
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services BEATRGEEASEAERBREBEALTZ
or obligations between the Group and a related party, MERER RGBT TimeE W
regardless of whether a price is charged. B
Close members of the family of a person are those family 1B Bl A £ BB R 2 U0 B SR BE R B = 46 B 5%
members who may be expected to influence, or be ERRHNBHAIZEZERATRHE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ZEMALTHENREKE -

(t) Contingent liabilities and assets t) DAREEBREE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it

will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

PSR MG

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
(u) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, financial assets and other
assets. Segment liabilities comprise financial liabilities and
other liabilities. The Group evaluates performance on the
basis of profit or loss from operations after tax expense and
non-controlling interests but not including the major non-
cash items. The major non-cash items are unrealised fair
value changes on investment properties and other properties
together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax. No
intersegment revenue is accounted for as the intersegment
revenue is mainly the rental income for administrative

purpose.
(v) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where

appropriate.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the management of the Group has made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of financial assets measured at FVTOCI

As described in Note 5(c), the management of the Group uses
its judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The Group's unlisted equity securities with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,031,230,000 (2016: HK$882,865,000) are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis and reference to
the fair values of the underlying properties and assets based on
assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market
prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of these equity securities
also includes some assumptions not supported by observable

market prices or rates.
Impairment loss in respect of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment loss in respect of trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on methods of
valuation which involve certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
reports, the management of the Group has exercised its judgment
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions, as detailed in Note 19. Should there be
changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions, the fair

value of the investment properties will change in future.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.
Deferred tax assets

As at 31st December, 2017, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$2,521,000 (2016: HK$1,322,000) in relation to unused tax
losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4, BESTTHERMGET @

AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by the management of the Group on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying

the value-in-use calculations.
Write-down of stock of properties

In accordance with the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, the
Group performs regular reviews on the estimated net realisable
values of the stock of properties in order to assess if, when the
estimated net realisable values declining below the corresponding
carrying amounts, any write-down of stock of properties is required.
The management of the Group has taken into account of the
prevailing market conditions, valuations or estimated unit selling
price from independent property valuers and internally available
information and exercised considerable judgments in making these

estimates.
Impairment loss in respect of interests in associates

The management of the Group determines whether interests
in associates have suffered any impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable, according to their recoverable amounts
determined by the CGUs based on value-in-use calculations.
The determination of impairment indication requires significant
judgments, and the calculations require the use of estimates which

are subject to change of economic environment in future.

152  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

R THBREEZEEZRR (B)

BERREFEEZHE

AEBRBEMNFIMAZEHBREFHHE
MEREEETRENS - REELEMZA
Wel e BIREEREEREAEE - ERE
fﬁaﬂ@i;ﬁ” AEBEZEREBHRREBZ

B HARREREMAREREBENEEZ
fE““{’EijﬁaJr&fE““

WEFEZHBE

AEBRBWMEIMAZ G5 BREREHY
EEFE 2R ERFE U HE AT
BFEENERERER AUYEFEEL
BE - AEEZEEEERERMISENL A
BUYEGEMETHERGAELEER
NE2ZER ARERAREHEMIELZE
flrat e

FHBERAEREZREEE

MEARRTECBRTBRE ARE ZRE
BRI E RNEE 2 ERERBERE
B EENRSELEUEE ZTRE S
NEERGHREMRE - EERERRFR
EHERHE Mt EERTREMRNMGE
AREQBEREZE(CMZRNZE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

ERMEE

Financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value

5. @ TH

(@

BBEEARRAFERE

through profit or loss ZEREE
Financial assets measured at fair value 3R H M2 E R DA R
through other comprehensive income NEEFECEREE
Amortised cost BHHACR
Financial liabilities cHAE
Amortised cost BHIH AR

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, club debentures, advances to/from
associates/investee companies/non-controlling shareholders,
debtors, deposits and other receivables, securities trading
receivables and deposits, pledged deposits, time deposits,
bank balances and cash, sales proceeds held by stakeholders,
borrowings, loan from a director, creditors and accruals,
securities trading and margin payable and deposits received.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.

(b)

EMIAER

2017 2016
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET
10,808,632 15,015,673
24,141,960 5,442,591
2,643,938 8,746,531
19,100,426 15,392,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAMEEBZEREE (&)

(Cont'd)

Market risk mEE

(i) Foreign currency risk ) IMEE R
The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange REEFEEHHRKFERS
risk arising from future commerdcial transactions, and AR BHEREE B EMEEIN
from recognised assets and liabilities. The functional EI—LF"’*“ZK/ RIREREBEZEM
currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in RNRAIZNEEB REITL EF K
Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions B’\“%L/{/’émuﬂﬁ R K
are denominated. The functional currencies of those BligE s MBRAR 2 NEEEE S
subsidiaries operating in the United Kingdom and in the PlAEEEE ([ ]) RARKE (TA
PRC are Pound Sterling ("GBP") and Renminbi (“RMB") R¥E]) - ZBHRRBHRZRHDRIAK
respectively in which most of their transactions are BRAREFE - AEEEF2HE
denominated. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign TCH B8 R A R B BE 3O B) w A
exchange risk in respect of exchange fluctuations ZOMNER - HMEARBEREME
of HK$ against GBP and RMB. The conversion of BAESTEBUFED ZINEE
RMB into other currencies is subject to the rules and il 2 38 A 3R 1T - REEB
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by WEEHIINEEER BB INEY
the government of the PRC. The Group currently does R o RE BT BB B INE
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect LB - 7 8 B2 B E R A B KA
of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will W R -

monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the REBMRAS ZIINERBRNRHRE

end of the reporting period is as follows: HARAT
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
TR FHT

Assets BE

United States dollar (“"US$") FEr([ZE7x]) 11,280,413 16,223,974
GBP HE 2,157,335 1,585,619
RMB AR 131,636 186,936
Euro (“EUR") BT (M&ol) 24,239 294,678
Singapore dollar ("SGD") s or ([#rhnsgocl) - 232,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the

end of the reporting period is as follows: (Cont'd)

Liabilities =L

us$ E

GBP i
RMB AR
EUR B T

SGD s

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to USY, it is
assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between US$ and HK$ and therefore US$ is

excluded from the analysis below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

5. @@ TR ®

(b) eREABEEEEREE (B

TEmE (&)
) SMEEE (&

AEBRAZ ZINERBARE
HFRIT : ()

2017 2016
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
345,288 7,834,468
593,728 -
28 10,672
= 156,410
= 211,981

GRRE DT

TR AKELE T AEREINE
ZER TR T 5% BUREE
RN TTEETTENE - MRRETT
BT HYEEREERAR X
TR EHR T X2

BAHEEBEDA SRS
LR A S00(E /5 BB L K
MR % A E RS EE LR
AR B 2 $T -

“E-LHEFHR  EABXEE

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE_Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

156  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translations at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to/
from foreign operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency other than
the functional currency of the lender or the borrower;
but excluding exposure resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the

Group's presentation currency.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where the relevant currencies strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant currencies
against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the profit.

Impact of e
GBP HEE
RMB AR
EUR BT
SGD sk T

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

—tF+A=t+—HLFE

5.

BT HR®

(b)

cREREEERREE (B)

B mE (H)
O SEEE (B

BREN T (B)

BREDTRERER ZINES
BEE®IRR AR WEHRH5%
ZHNEEIE RE B FEZIAR © HU
EoemIsERRETARE
BIIETHNERS A RN
BRETASEZER (HFHEZE
BEREFRARERAIEEEIA
Sh2EE) X TEERBRE
RBINEB M BREREANEE
ZENEEMEEZ BE -

TXHEHRRTHBERE L BT
2 FEE % 8 58 50/0fF i | 2 38 A1 © fief
HEE R BT 2 ERE555%
AR FNER 2 ERRF R
o

Profit
Rl

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
78,180 79,281
6,580 8,813
1,212 6,913
- 1,028




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended 31st
December, 2017 and 2016.

The net effect of the Group's sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group's monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets
and liabilities including advance to an associate, time
deposits, bank balances, sales proceeds held by
stakeholders and a third party and borrowings and
is therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The Group currently does not have
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR"), prime rate (“Prime") or costs of funds

of financial institutions.

5.

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=t ALFE

BT HR®

(b)

cREREEERREE (B)

B mE (H)
O SEEE (B

(i)

BREN T (B)

HAEBRBE_ZT—tFR-F
—RNFETZA=+—BIFEZR
AigEmHEMK YT EERTE

AEBEINERBREBRE 2 FZE
TR AR BN HRE AR AR
KRz EBEENAEMREL -

HE n BN FmEE

REEBEBENFLHECEER
BE(EEBEN-—HBE QAR
HEHER RITEHS REA
ME=ZFTRHHEMSRIEIAR
fiatg) AR EBEARERESRE
& ER - ZEF R T EFIENE
AP 5 AR T LA B BR o AN SR IR AL

B RERBER R AREZ
BEBEINERE  WNGRE

E B RE AT ERE R -

AEBZRASRENETRARER
ETREBARITAERE ([FE
RITAZERE]) ~ RBRITRENR
B(IRBBITRAXRE]) RE
BHR (TREEFER]) KT B
BZBEERAZKE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAMEEBZEREE (&)

(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd) mEEE (&)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd) (i) HzmEFERER (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a VAT 51 R A 2 B0 HL ) B B R D
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all B2BERAT  AEBEKRTAE A
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit = IR A 0] e B 2 B
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in B GERBN —HBEE A RHIE
advance to an associate, time deposits, bank balances, TFHFER RITEH - REARSE
sales proceeds held by stakeholders and a third party SR HEMSREBEUAREER
and borrowings). FERERZZE) -
If the floating rates had been 50 basis points ) F B FF N RESOMEEEL -
higher/lower, with all other variables held EEEE A %Iﬁﬁ—irT\'ﬁZ’li‘\
constant, the Group's profit before tax for the year T AREEEE T —tF+=
ended 31st December, 2017 would decrease/ )EJ:WL*EIJJ:EE*ZE‘%%RHIJE*'JH#
increase by approximately HK$77,200,000 (2016: k> IN%777,200,000%8 7T (=
HK$65,826,000). This was mainly attributable to the T — N 165,826,000/ 7T) ° it
Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate DEEZARAEBMAR ZFE
borrowings. BEZF R R -
There would be no material impact on the Group's HAEEHZE_Z—+FER_F
other components of equity for the years ended 31st —RF+ZH= + HIEFE 2K
December, 2017 and 2016. AEEEME ST EEATE
The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased REBRAFEHNERZ HREAE
during the current year mainly due to the increase in BMEZHARNFEEFEZER
net debt carries at variable-rate. SFEEIE N

158 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Price risk

The Group's investments classified as financial assets
measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured at
FVTOCI which are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and expose the Group to price
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group held
investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.
High vyield bonds are bonds that are typically rated
below investment grade or are unrated and therefore
are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as
they typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rate move upwards, the value of the bonds will
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

5.

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=t ALFE

BT HR®

(b)

cREREEERREE (B)

TEmE (&)

(i)

B8R

AEBZREDBRBBERINA
RRAFEAEZEMEERR
BEMEEREARR A FEE
BZERMEERERESHRER
FEAE BHLAKEEEERR
BReMNBEHR AEERHEET

BEREEEHFZERE -REES
—RAFRERRERNEETE
ARz ES  AREENERRRK
BltpEmEs  BEKE KRR
REGHES RS AHEERS
REFEBHZE - TELEFRIR
HEMNERBTZE SRR LT
BHEHFEEEE K- 1IN &
FERDR HRNERBE 2 GRE

REEZ EEBIARYTHERK
KEZIREHEEREBE@BRAR-
pboh REEBEEERRINEEE
ERRR  WRNERZEEFRE

o
2R

B LEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(i) Price risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
profit before tax for the year ended 31st December,
2017 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$540,432,000 (2016: HK$750,784,000). This was
due to the changes in fair value of financial assets
measured at FVTPL.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
other components of equity for the year ended
31st December, 2017 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$1,207,098,000 (2016:
HK$272,130,000) as a result of the changes in fair

value of financial assets measured at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2017 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's time deposits and bank balances are deposited with
banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China

and overseas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and
scrutiny of financials for non-rated counterparties are two
important criteria in the selection of counterparties. The
credit quality of counterparties will be closely monitored over
the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its financial
counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit

strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group was subject to
concentration risk as there was receivable from a single
debtor of approximately HK$5,100,696,000 presented under
debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments which
represented a major portion of the Group's trade and other
receivables. A listed company acts as surety to the debtor
by providing guarantee for the payments of the receivables.
During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group

received all the remaining balances of the receivables.

5.

E@MIAEw
b) SMEREEEERIE (&)

EEmE (&)

AEBEEGEAREERRRAIEE
HERFZRHTETR S NEER
BEERR -REXZHTZMAERR
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SHTETHBEIE FAEEeERBER
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EEREEHzEPEERR-
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RA/AEEZEERRE RIEREE-

R-ZE—RE+_A=+—8" 23R
FEUCARIE =&~ H b fE W AR IE R FE 1T
TRIE A eI E — &% A 495,100,696,000
BITh AR RE 2 EIE 5 RIE & A e
WERBBFEZH S EHit  AEESEY
SHEE —EEMARERZEBA
ZHERAREINZEREEBR ZER
RBE_Z—tF+_A=+—BLLF
B AEEDBHWIMZERKEE
BREE

B LEEH

g Bz 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in debt securities are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparty with high quality.
When making decisions on investments in securities, the
management of the Group has also made reference to the
credit ratings of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which,
however, are not an assurance as to the issuers and/or
guarantors' creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability
of the security. Risks in particular specific to certain types of
bonds held by the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they
in general carry high credit risk as they are often subject to
higher risk of issuer default as they are typically rated below
investment grade or are unrated; (i) perpetual bonds — their
coupon payments may be deferred or suspended subject to
the terms and conditions of the bonds and they are often
callable after a call protection period (related risk is detailed
in the liquidity risk below); and (i) contingent convertible
bonds — issued by financial institutions that are deeply
subordinated in the capital structure, typically Tier 1 or Tier 2
securities. The key characteristic of this type of bonds is that
the issuer can either write off the principal amount or convert
it to shares without causing a default on the bond. There
could be a specific hard capital ratio trigger or declaration
of non-viability event by the regulator for the write off or
conversion to equity to happen. The Group may be exposed
to a higher issuer credit risk and may experience substantial
losses or lose the entire value of investment as a result of a
trigger event. Other than the above, there may be additional
risks associated with trading of bonds over-the-counter
("OTC") because OTC transactions are generally subject to
limited regulation and therefore less transparent in transaction
details such as volume, price formation, etc. There may also
be additional risks for investments located in an emerging
market which may involve certain risks associated with
political and economic uncertainty. In view of the specific risks
above, the Group has appointed a special team to closely

monitor the risks as disclosed in Note 5(b)(iii) above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and
Mainland China. As at 31st December, 2017, the Group was
subject to investment concentration risk as there were bonds
investment with three issuers with their respective amount
of approximately HK$1,080,970,000, HK$1,427,589,000
and HK$1,808,729,000 (2016: a single issuer of
approximately HK$2,538,017,000) presented as financial
assets measured at FVTPL and a listed equity security of a
company of approximately HK$23,110,730,000 (2016: a
listed equity security of another company of approximately
HK$4,559,726,000) presented as financial assets measured
at FVTOCI which represented a major portion of the Group's
investment portfolio as determined by the management of
the Group. Investment concentration risk may materialise
when the market in which those bonds are traded is
constricted (related risk is detailed in liquidity risk below),
or when the fair value of those bonds/that listed equity
securities are declined (related risk is detailed in price risk
above). The Group also monitors regularly to avoid over-
concentration (such as investment products and underlying

foreign exchange, etc.) of the investment portfolio.

Liquidity risk

The Group's certain listed equity securities and bonds were
pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure margin
and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect of
securities transactions. Under adverse market conditions,
the Group may be called by the financial institutions upon
at short notice to make deposit to repay the margin loans.
If the required deposits are not made within the prescribed
time, the Group's securities may be liquidated by the financial

institutions without the Group's consent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Certain bonds held by the Group carry fixed-rate coupon are
accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and redeem
the debt securities early if interest rates fall. The Group may
face reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to
redeem the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds
may not have an active secondary market. In case of the
market in which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group
may run the risk of either having to retain the investment
until the end of the term or selling it before maturity at an

unfavourable price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and financial liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual

maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the

agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up

based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities

based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
Loan from a director

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

Total
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(b) cREAMREEBEREE(E)
HEELEE ()
TERAVNWAEEIETESRARRBE
BRBERZBTAOIBER-EXD
BARSEAEERN Kz &F B ERE
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ZXESfﬁfﬁi\mziﬁ% ’ %‘ ':F'
BEMNERAGZHESRE-

At 31st December, 2017

RZB-t#+=A=t+-H
On demand Total Total
or within  Within 2 to Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
RERS AERRS REE
—FR MEZRF BENE RELE #m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET TET
13,107,407 2,685,185 1,265,316 17,057,908 16,473,013
345,201 - - 345,201 345,201
116,983 - - 116,983 116,983

- 142,419 - 142,419 142,419

- 49,202 - 49,202 49,202

- 1,835,500 - 1,835,500 1,835,500

13,569,591 4,712,306 1,265,316 19,547,213 18,962,318

At 31st December, 2016

RZE-~E+=-A=1-AH

On demand Total Total

or within Within 2 to Over  undiscounted carrying

1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount

BEXL AEBRS BEE

—FR REERF ENE MEAE fa%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEL TR TAT FAT FAL

11,012,449 2,747952 1,293,637 15,054,038 14,591,394

408,702 - - 408,702 408,702

9,245 - - 9,245 9,245

- 110,269 - 110,269 110,269

- 84,761 - 84,761 84,761

11,430,396 2,942,982 1,293,637 15,667,015 15,204,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. @I A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAMEEBZEREE (&)

(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBELEE (E)
Secured bank borrowing with a repayment on demand clause MERERERGERZBEERRITES
is included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band R EMB BT R A [HERERKE—F
in the above maturity analysis. At the end of the reporting W] EREAR - RIRERR BEZRM
period, the total undiscounted cash flows of the borrowing B EMEHLTEL AE722,651,0008 7T
amounted to approximately HK$722,651,000 (2016: (—Z—7X% 724,999,000/ 7T) ° &%
HK$724,999,000). Taking into account the Group's financial BAREBZHBRN EFXLTHEES
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that MEEeTEERNSEEERE H%E?/’l o
the financial institution will exercise its discretionary rights BEEEGE BHEBERRRERGZ
to demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe ﬁZfﬁmﬁfKE%ﬁEﬁ’ﬁi\ﬁ’ﬁ%@ﬁéT
that such borrowing will be repaid in accordance with the X (EPBEMNERFTEZRERE) -

scheduled repayment dates as set out in the loan agreement,
details of which are set out in the tables below (include both

interest and principal cash flows):

Maturity analysis — secured bank borrowing with a repayment FED T — MR ERERERZBE
on demand dlause based on the scheduled repayments RIBITIEEREBTEEK
At 31st December, 2017
R=B-t¥+-A=1-A
Total Total
Within Within 2 Over  undiscounted carrying
1 year to 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
AERRE REE
—£R MEERF REHRE REAR AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET TR
Non-derivative financial liability FITEEMEE
Borrowing G 12,502 710,109 - 122,651 665,781
At 31st December, 2016
RZE-"E¥+-A=t-AR
Total Total
Within Within 2 Over undiscounted carrying
1 year to 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
KBRS REE
—%R MEZRE RENE MERE Eek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TR TiER TER TR
Non-derivative financial liability FITESREE
Bormowing g 25,666 100,162 599,171 724,999 657929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value measurements

Financial instruments measured at fair value

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

The following table analysed the financial instruments which

are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.

Financial assets
tHEE

Listed equity securities
presented as financial assets
measured at FVTOC

2 ABREMIENS
URBAFEFEY
SREEZ TTRAES

Bonds presented as financial
assets measured at FVTPL
2iRABER
WRB R FEFEZ
EREEZES

Unlisted club debentures
presented as financial assets
measured at FVTPL

£§Uf‘zﬁﬂ?@%&ﬂ%

AYEIEZSMAEL
FLTERES

Unlisted equity securities
presented as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI

2 ARBEM S ENE
URBRTFEFEL
SRAEL
FLTRAES

Fair value
AFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
23,110,730 4,559,726
10,738,743 14,952,866
69,889 62,807
1,031,230 882,865
34,950,592 20,458,264

Fair value
hierarchy
AFEDRH

Level 1
ER

Level 1
R

Level 2
F_H

Lgvel 3
=4

e M RRME
—tF+-A=t-ALEE

E@MIAEw
(c) 2DAFEFE
URFEGFEZEL@MTA

TERARBERRARFEABZEH
TRZ=ZBOEH -

Valuation Significant
techniques and unobservable
key inputs inputs
RERMREIEYE E?@F—Jgﬁﬁﬁ
Quoted prices N/A

in active markets ek
ERETISZRE
Quoted prices N/A

in active markets NEm
ERTS 2 RE
Market comparison N/A
5 2 L RBE AEA

Discounted cash flow:
forecast distribution,
discount rate and
contract terms (if any)

Ei ) i//\ui
BAZOR BRER
BHIER (0EF)

Reference to the fair value
of the underlylng roperty
SERBNE A TE

Net asset value (note (ii))

EEFE (M)

-z

Forecast distribution taking into
account management's experience
and the estimated terminal value
(note (i)

BRzHRD2REBEBLRR
fhat 2 &AEBE (FG))

Discount rate ranging from
1% below Prime to 23.20%
(2016: from 1% below Prime
to 20.33%) (note (i)
BREANTSERNEREZ
B20E(ZF—RF: REENEX
WIER2033E) (Ha))

Fair value of the underlying property
based on valuation model (note (i)

ERGERABERRNEZ
ATE(FEE))

N/A
TiEH

"

THEFH EA

[
e
i
]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE_Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  The higher the forecast distribution, estimated terminal
value and fair value of the underlying property, the higher
the fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the
fair value.

(i)  The Group has determined that the net asset value
represents fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of
fair value hierarchy levels as at the date of the events or

changes in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3 in the fair value hierarchy during the years ended 31st
December, 2017 and 2016 and no change in valuation

techniques used in the prior years.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of each
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included

in Level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

comprehensive income (expenses) for the relevant years
relate to unquoted equity investments held at the end
of the reporting period and are reported as changes of
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. BT A
(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd) (0 ATENE(E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd) URFEFEZLHBITA ()
The movement during the year in the balances of Level 3 fair E=BRTVHEABEBNAFEE 2 EE)
value measurement is as follows: U
Unlisted equity
securities Unlisted
presented as  equity securities
financial assets presented as
measured  available-for-sale
at FvToCI investments
ERT)
BREHMZE
DE DY
AVLEHERZ 2%
tREEZ HEREZ
FETRAES FEHRARES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
At Tst January, 2016 (originally stated) RZZ—"§—-HA—-H
(REZF) - 68,544
Unlisted equity securities reclassified from FEmRAE %H\E/Aﬁgﬂ%
available-for-sale investments measured BEEBBRELEEN (20145F) &
at fair value to financial assets measured REATEHEZHFERE
at FVTOCI upon initial application of ENHERBRAMRE RS
HKFRS 9 (2014) URBAFEGECERMERE 68,544 (68,544)
Unlisted equity securities reclassified from FEmRAE %Fémﬁﬁﬁ
available-for-sale investments measured BEHMBREENZN 20145 ) K
at cost to financial assets measured HEKAGEZBERE
at FVTOC! upon initial application of ENDBRBBEAMZENG
HKFRS 9 (2014) NRBATEHEZEHEE 726,149 -
794,693 (68,544)
Effect on financial assets remeasured ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ’%%?ﬂ%m BB
at fair value upon initial application WERRFT (20145 ) B
of HKFRS 9 (2014) BRATEENFNELRE 96,960 -
At Tst January, 2016 (restated) RZZE—7"FE-A—-RB(E3) 891,653 -
Net return of capital contribution during the year RAEEREETEBRFE (6,499) -
Net unrealised loss recognised in other RAEFEMEAX HERZ
comprehensive expenses during the year (note) REBERFE (M) (2,289) -
At 31st December, 2016 RZF-~"E+=ZA=+—H 882,865 -
Net return of capital contribution during the year H\$¢ EHRETEEARNFE (16,205) -
Net unrealised gain recognised in other RAEFEM 2 KR ER
comprehensive income during the year (note) REB MR FE (M) 164,570 -
At 31st December, 2017 R-Z-t+=A=t+-H 1,031,230 -
Note: All of the above gain (loss) included in other Mist: LulFT ARt ABBEE A M2

= (EZHj)ZHSZm (E18) W kR
SHRBAZ U ERERANERE
IW#&%L&Bﬁ@iE%Z £ DA S R

AVEAEZEREEZREZE
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €M IR

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from 2016.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the capital structure
of the Group mainly consists of debts, which include borrowings
from banks and other financial institutions, loan from a director,
pledged deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash, and total
equity, comprising issued share capital, reserves, retained profits
and non-controlling interests. The Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital to monitor
its capital structure on the basis of a gearing ratio. The Group has
a target gearing ratio not higher than 50%, determined as the
proportion of net debt to equity. This ratio is expressed by as a
percentage of net borrowings over the total equity. Net borrowings
are calculated as total borrowings (as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and bank balances and

pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd) 6. EXEREE @

The gearing ratios were as follows: BEREEELERMNT
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Borrowings — current (note (i)) BE-RBMEE (HE3G) 12,763,546 10,797,503
Borrowings — non-current (note (i)) BE-FFERBME (MET3G)) 3,709,467 3,793,891
Loan from a director BEEEX 1,835,500 -
Total debt [E 18,308,513 14,591,394
Less: Cash and bank balances and IR e RIRITARRNA R
pledged deposits (note (ii)) HIRIF R (FTFECD) ) (922,915) (2,014,234)
Net debt B FE
(total debt less cash and (EBBERRe &
bank balances and pledged deposits) RITH R REFFR) 17,385,598 12,577,160
Listed securities investments and FTREFRER
treasury products (note (iii)) & EE G (FEEGi)) 33,849,473 19,512,592
Less: Net debt B (17,385,598) (12,577,160)
Net cash REFH
(listed securities investments and (FTBHEERMEER
treasury products less net debt) BIESFEE) 16,463,875 6,935,432
Total equity (note (iv)) IR A 2 4B 28 (P EE(iv) ) 36,493,002 29,899,855
Net debt to equity ratio B F R AR A e b 3
(excluding listed securities (TEELMERRER
investments and treasury products) MEEMD) 47.6% 42.1%
Net debt to equity ratio B F R AR AR s b R Net cash Net cash
(including listed securities (BRELIMESRER position position
investments and treasury products) MEEMD) REMRFE BReRFE

B LEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HE_Z

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

Notes:
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 34.

(i) Cash and bank balances and pledged deposits comprise pledged
deposits, time deposits, bank balances and cash at the end of the
reporting period.

(i) Listed securities investments and treasury products are detailed in
Notes 25(i), 26(i) and 26(ii).

(iv) Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained
profits and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting
period.

The increase in net debt to equity ratio (excluding listed securities
investments and treasury products) was mainly due to the increase
in net debt.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures

Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts received and receivable
from property rental income, sales of properties held for sale, gain/
loss on sales of investments held-for-trading, commission from
brokerage, settlement charges from brokerage, cosmetic goods sold
less returns and interest income from loan financing, are analysed

as follows:

WA

WARB KRR ERZDERS A HIEHE
MEZHE HERIEEREZRERSE B
B EBLh SERBZXZEM KRR
BEkzlmmHEARERBRENSBAZ
BEtEE MW

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Property rental income mEHRS WA 505,743 823,856

Sales of properties held for sale BIELHEMEZHE 990,106 2,943,434
Loss on sales of investments held-for-trading, net ~ HEFIEE B 2 R EEEF5 - (37,434)

Brokerage and cosmetic income 4t IRFS At st $H & WA 20,748 15,240

Interest income from loan financing ERREENEWA 58 52

1,516,655 3,745,148

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (i) property leasing
for non-retail; (iv) listed equity investments at FVTOCI; (v) listed
investments and treasury products at FVTPL; and (vi) unlisted
investments, investment holding and brokerage. The segmentations
are based on the information about the operation of the Group that

management of the Group uses to make decisions.

EEDIE

AEERBETIZLERKEEBNEHRBR
ERBERHZBMEANEELEDHE-

AEERERAAZBOB-(OWEERR
BE ()ZEMEEE (i)EZTEWEEES -
(v)iB B E A 2 E W R AR D T E 2 ETk
B - (VEBEBERARBAFEZ EFHRE
EHEEMRV)FLTRE REZBRRE
ERG LD BEHATDERAEEZLEE
HARAEERERBHEDREZA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Principal activities are as follows: FEEBEHUT
Property development -~ Property development and sales of MEZRREE — DEEEREERE
and trading trading properties YIEHE
Property leasing MEEE
- Retail —  Property leasing from retalil -TE - XeEZEYE
properties HE
— Non-retail -~ Property leasing from non-retail —FTE — XRBEFTEYME
properties HE
Listed equity investments —  Listed equity securities at FVTOCI BBAEMEERD — BBEAMIZEWRE
at FVTOCl AR BR A S AE 2 AR A FE 2
FHRAEKE FTRAE A
Listed investments -  Listed securities investments in mBEmENARE - REEEEZ LW
and treasury products investments held-for-trading, ANFEZET BHRE B
at FVTPL over-the-counter trading and KRERTEEM R 5 RAERET
structured products 7
Unlisted investments, - Unlisted securities investments, JEEMIRE -#E — FELTHEHFKRE-
investment holding trading and brokerage 2 R K2 48 40 AR 75 BE RS RS

and brokerage

AEBEAMBRHRIAR X MOFERERE KA
ReEzED (ETERRIENFESERA)RE
BHERT - TRFRSHBRREMERE
WHEZARERAFESZHEREMHEZE
ERIE (ER) RO BREZBRATER
BITHR B ZESRA Bt W EK S EEZ

revenue is mainly the rental income for administrative purpose. NN

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other
properties together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax.

No intersegment revenue is accounted for as the intersegment

Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised leasehold land and
building for own use, advance to a non-controlling shareholder,
deferred tax assets and tax recoverable (2016: also included
deferred consideration receivables in respect of disposals of

subsidiaries and deposit paid in respect of a property).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, loan from a director, amounts due to associates,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and deferred tax

liabilities.

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported

segment profit or loss remain unchanged from 2016.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and result are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property or asset location.

There were three major customers (2016: one) who individually
accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue. Revenues
of approximately HK$321,160,000 and HK$186,620,000 were
derived from property development and trading segment in
Hong Kong from each of the two customers, and revenue of
approximately HK$175,744,000 was derived from non-retail
property leasing segment outside Hong Kong from a customer
(2016: HK$377,836,000 was derived from property development

and trading segment in Hong Kong from a customer).

EEDHE

kPHy ARBEEIEQERERE BTG
B EEER REBSATKE KEJkE
618 3R XU R R T I 2 £ o

AEBREETEEROIBEBERZFTEAR
BT RNERFETE-

FEETLRAWEHEE
BET mREEBE
e

TREESZREE
THEAETRME BE
EXERIER-

AN XKBEETTRTIRABRZERLEE
2o XBERIEWAREE N RMEREEME
HAREAE-

SUEBEF (ZZT—AF 1) Z@ERIRA
IEAREBURA Z10%30 A L o AL BB
MEZRRBEBNEZEPEEMEE ZIWA
#9/321,160,0007% 7T 12 186,620,000/ 7T, * bA
RBA—MUREEBUINETEMEREZER
FARESZWAL A 757440005%7%(‘
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Operating segment information is presented below:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st December, 2017

Major cash items excluding
in revenue
- Hong Kong
- Other countries

Revenue

Revenue from external customers
- Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
- Mainland China

Revenue from external customers
after non-controlling interests

Attributable property sales from
associates/investee company
- Hong Kong

Attributable rental revenue from
associates/investee company
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Result

Segment result
- Hong Kong
~ United Kingdom
- Mainland China
- Other countries

WAL S 2
TERSEA
-ER
—EfER

LoN

RENBEP ZIA
-&E
~&f
~PEAR

REMBEERELR
ZOIBEPRA
[NV 38
REDANFHE

-&R
L INCIVE
RAQMABSHA
-&2
-PEAE

E3 ]

EES
-&%
-%E
—PEAR
-ABEX

176  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

REMBRRME

DAY
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o8 e

LESREMZIWT:

FETHKBBER
BE—F—tF+-A=1—HALFE

Listed Unlisted

Property leasing I.isi_ed investments in'vestmenls,

Property NERE equity and treasury  investment

development investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FVT0CI at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEAR
BAEMEE MR
Wi AR NVEZ  kLTRE
NERER DPEZET  LHRER  REERR &

E® 2E *EE RERE HEER BLRH P )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR TER TER TR
- - - - 9,150,032 - - 9,150,032
- - - - 1,172,645 - - 1,172,645
- - - - 10,322,677 - - 10,322,677
990,106 49,293 132,878 - - 10,516 10,290 1,193,083
- 35,053 285,597 - - - - 320,650
- 2,922 - - - - - 2922
990,106 87,268 418,475 - - 10,516 10,290 1,516,655
752,590 86,474 418,162 - - 10,516 10,290 1,278,032
134,637 - - - - - - 134,637
- 19,996 33,868 - - - - 53,864
- 78,969 9,626 - - - - 88,595
887,221 185,439 461,656 - - 10,516 10,290 1,555,128
461,611 44,083 130,819 164,110 1,567,666 18221 21,151 2,413,621
- 34,031 280,018 - - L] - 314,090
- 2,630 - - - 1,958 - 4,588
- - - - 183,850 192 - 184,642
467,611 80,704 410,837 164,110 1,751,516 21,012 21,151 2,916,941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EES B
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) meazEkERRE (B)
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE-_F—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Listed Unlisted
Listed investments investments,

Property leasing y .
Property WERE equity and treasury  investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FVT0CI at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BERZ
EREMEE DR
Wi AR ATEZ  kLTRE
NERER ATEZET  LHRER  REERK g}
EE 2L *BE RER% HEER BLRY HtARE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR TER TERL TR
Share of results of associates BREBENTZE
- Attributable property sales, net -EEVEREFE
- Hong Kong &% 87736 - - - - - - 81736
~ Attributable gross income -EERAER
- Hong Kong -&F - 19,184 32,636 - - - 2,276 54,096
- Mainland China —HEAE - 78,969 9,626 - - - - 88,595
~ Attributable operating cost -EEEENE
- Hong Kong &% - (917) (1.641) - - - - (8.558)
~ Mainland China —REARE - (31,382) (2,181) - - - - (34,163)
Non-controlling interests RS (101,129) (640) (256) - - - - (102,025)
454218 145,918 442,421 164,110 1,751,516 21,012 23,421 3,002,622
Other income HiplA 14,125 - - - - - - 14,725
Finance costs BBER - - - (86,287) (104,358) - - (190,645)
Other gains and losses, net EhhaRERFE (3,830) - - - - - - (3,830)
Share of results of associates BEBENIEA
~ Income tax and others —ERREM (9,238) (40,709) (31,311) - - - (a17) (81,735)
Income tax expense FERRX - - - (16,302) - - - (16,302)
455,875 105,209 411,110 61,521 1,647,158 21,012 22,950 2,124,835
Unallocated items AOBIER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net — KAE 2 ARIERZFHE (178,115)
Unallocated finance costs FABIHBER (104,528)
Imputed interest income from EREERBAHES
deferred consideration receivables ZREFSHMA 172,584
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR 2K 144,126
Unallocated income tax expense RABZAERAX (308,640)
Unallocated non-controlling interests KA 2 SHE R R 12,218
Operating profit for the year KD EEE AR
attributable to owners of REEZEEER
the Company 3,062,540
Major non-cash items TEFREER
- Unrealised fair value changes on ~RERZRENE
investment properties (including ZATEED
share of results of associates) (BfEREEE
PGES ) 648,453
~ Deferred tax expense —BERERS (2,107)
Profit for the year attributable to 72 35 A (5

owners of the Company AEEZEA 3,108,886
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EETH
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEHWRERE (B

By

For the year ended 31st December, 2017

Core profit (excluding major non-cash items) BROBRRN(FEFEXEHFELER)
Operating profit for the year attributable to ARBREBEAEBEEAFE ZRERF
owners of the Company
Major accumulated realised fair value changes REFEHEREVERYERFEZ
together with their respective deferred tax on FTERBCHRLATESD
disposals of investment properties and stock of EEHEHMBEZELRE
properties in current year (including fair value (BRFRRRYXERRBEATEEE)
changes recognised in properties revaluation WHMBRFERERR
reserve) after non-controlling interest
— Recognised in prior years —RBEFEER
Core profit for the year attributable to ARREEABEERFE ZROER

owners of the Company
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESDHE®w
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position HREAMBRRER
At 31st December, 2017 R-FE—+tF+=-FA=+—H

Listed Unlisted
Listed investments investments,

Property leasing ¢ "
Property NERE equity and treasury  investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at Fvtocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BRER
ERAMEE URM
g R B AHEZ  ELTRE
NERER AFEZET LTRER  REEBRK g
EE B8 *2E RarE HEER BLRY HtAR &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FEL FET FER FEL FER FER FEL
Assets &
Segment assets SREE
- Hong Kong B 1,527,289 2,113,870 4,765,842 23,110,731 8,683,598 489,120 67,142 40,758,192
- United Kingdom -R - 1,684,765 8,174,205 - - - - 9,858,970
- Mainland China —EKE 216,054 - 29,510 - - 2,961 6,023 254,554
- Other countries —EtER - - - - 2,286,336 690,927 - 2,971,263
Interests in associates HENAER
- Hong Kong -E5# 100,367 396,709 1,408,461 - - 2,322 7404 1,915,263
- Mainland China —hEKE - 140,367 59,598 - - - - 199,965
Advances to associates BRBERFANE
- Hong Kong &% 1,047 - 11 - - 2 1,151 2211
~ Mainland China —hEARE - 32,931 13,985 - - - - 46922
Reportable segment assets DEEGE -V 1,844,151 4,368,648 14,451,678 23,110,731 10,969,934 1,185,338 82,320 56,013,406
Unallocated corporate assets KBz AREE 49,949
Consolidated total assets GREELE 56,063,355
Liabilities a8
Segment liabiities SRER
- Hong Kong -B# 266,001 21,705 74,995 4,604,773 4,602,587 119,839 6,552 9,696,452
- United Kingdom -# - 15,759 194,798 - - - - 210,557
- Mainland China —HE KR 407 - 17 - - 5 80 509
- Other countries —EHER - - 14 - 669,469 1 - 669,494
Reportable segment liabiliies NERASEAR 266,408 37464 269,824 4,604,773 5,272,056 119,855 6632 10,577,012
Unallocated corporate liabilities FABZARBE 8,993,341
Consolidated total liabiliies RREELR 19,570,353
Additions to non-current assets ~ FREBEERE
(other than financial instruments  (£®IAR
and deferred tax assets) EREBEEERD) - 1,424 1,783,806 - - 30 855
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EETH
Other Material Items HihEXEB
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 BE-—FE—tFF+-A=1+—HIFE
Consolidated
Adjustments statement of
Reportable  Adjustments for for major comprehensive
segments  unallocated items non-cash items income
Ao # FEERE RERE
AERSE HEZHAR HEZHAR WEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT TET
Interest income B A 919,110 772,584 - 1,691,694
Finance costs MBER (190,645) (104,528) - (295,173)
Net income WA 5 728,465 668,056 - 1,396,521
Depreciation e - (8.680) - (8,680)
Fair value changes on WEMEZ
investment properties NEEEZ - - 564,502 564,502
Write-down of stock of properties MEREZRE (3.830) - - (3.830)
Share of results of associates BRE S AR EE 105,971 - 83,951 189,922
Income tax expense FTiSHim st (16,302) (308,640) (2,107) (327,049)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE = (102,025) 12,278 - (89,747)
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DT TERY /-\ * -
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESTH
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEZERBEHRR
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 Bz —FT—NNF+-A=1+—HIFFEZ
Listed Unlisted
Property leasing listed ~investments  investments,
Property NERE equity  and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FV1oCI at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
RpER
BBREMEE AR )
U DA B A¥EZ  FLMHRA:
NEERR N¥EZEW  LMRER  RARER i
- T8 ¥TE RA%E HEER B EthA g e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn T T Fitn T T Fitn T
Major cash items excluding WA 2
in revenue TERLER
- Hong Kong -E% - - - - 100013% - - 1000135
- Other countries -EtER - - - - 2,087530 - - 2,087530
- - - - 12,088,886 - - 12,088,886
Revenue WA
Revenue from external customers RENMDER A
- Hong Kong —Ek 2,943,434 236,492 269,787 - (37434) 4191 11,101 3427571
- United Kingdom - - 23,654 236,356 - - - - 260,010
- Mainland China -HhEAE - 38,531 19,036 - - - - 57567
2,943,434 298,677 525,179 - (37434) 4191 11,101 3,745,148
Revenue from external customers REMBIEERER R
after non-controlling interests P8 K=l ON 2,209,162 297498 524,759 - (37434) 4191 11,101 3,009,277
Attributable property sales from EEBERTNERE
associates
- Hong Kong —-&E B 89,713 - - - - - - 89713
Attributable rental revenue from FEEBENR/ BT
associates/investee company RERABREMA
- Hong Kong —& - 20433 39,281 - - - - 59,714
— Mainland China —ERE - 67308 8,112 - - - - 75,420
2,298,875 385,239 572,152 - (37434) 4191 11,101 3,234,124
Result
Segment result AREAR
- Hong Kong -&% 1,402,255 228,673 272,961 189,653 704,720 26,083 23,368 2847713
- United Kingdom -&@ - 22,906 230691 - - 304 - 253901
- Mainland China —E KR - 35519 16,637 - - 4,053 - 56,209
- Other countries ~H@BER - - - - 216,385 - - 216,385
1,402,255 287,098 520,289 189,653 921,105 30,440 23,368 3,574,208
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2016

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. &iE

vk -N¢ )

FEZEWRHEER (A
E-—NFIT A=A —HUIFE

HEz—

Listed Unlisted
Property leasing listed ~investments  investments,
Property NERE equity  and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retai at FV1oCI at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBRE
BBREMEE YL
KRB ATEZ  HETRE
NEZER NTEZ LS EHRER REAERR fig
EE e #TE AR E HEER SRR B8 ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEL THT TEL TET FhT TEL TET
Share of results of associates BUEBENAEE
~ Attributable property sales, net “EENERETE
~ Hong Kong &3 5,119 - - - - - - 5,119
- Attributable gross income -ElERAER
- Hong Kong &% - 19,507 38,078 - - - 2,330 59915
— Mainland China —REAKE - 67308 8,112 - - - - 75,420
- Attributable operating cost -EEEENA
- Hong Kong &% - (793) (6,557) - - - - (7350)
~ Mainland China —RE AR - (28,135) (2,597) - - - - (30732)
Non-controlling interests R ER (392,395) (1,057) (376) - - - - (393,828)
1,014979 343,928 556,949 189,653 921,105 30,440 25,698 3,082,752
Finance costs HBER - (1,658) (70,241) - (16,123) - - (88,022)
Other gains and losses, net HilaRERTE (134,542) (160) - - - - - (134,702)
Share of results of associates BUEBENAER
- Income tax and others —FERREL (28) (31,549) (5,644) - - - (465) (37686)
Income tax expense FERRX - - - (19,117) m7) - - (19.234)
880,409 310,561 481,064 170,536 904,865 30,440 25233 2,803,108
Unallocated items KAOBER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net &A% 7 AR X FHE (248,247)
Unallocated finance costs FOBHBER (88,483)
Imputed interest income from RUETRR BFAEL
deferred consideration receivables Z2EEFBIA 1.831,876
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HENHBAR W 2311127
Unallocated income tax expense RABEHAX (514,832)
Unallocated non-controling interests k7% 2 FE BB 60951
Operating profit for the year RAREEAEL
attributable to owners of REEZEERER
the Company 6,155,500
Realised fair value changes on disposals & AYE 2
of investment properties (induding ~ BEBATEEF
share of results of associates) (BEBEHE
DAEE)
~ Recognised in current year -REAERERA (372,677)
Major non-cash items TEHRSER
- Unrealised fair value changes on ~RERZRENE
investment properties (Including ZATEED
share of results of associates) (BE#EEE
RAEE) 608,389
- Deferred tax expense ~ERFRERY (30,900)
Profit for the year attributable to %72 F#H A {5
owners of the Company REE2EH
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

8. ZESE»

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEHWRERE (B
pay

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2016

Core profit (excluding major non-cash items)

Operating profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Major accumulated realised fair value changes
together with their respective deferred tax on
disposals of investment properties and stock of
properties in current year (including fair value
changes recognised in properties revaluation
reserve and share of results of associates)
after non-controlling interest
— Recognised in current year

— Recognised in prior years

Core profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company

BE_F—NE+-A=+—HIFFEF
HK$'000
FHET
ZOBRN(FTEEXEFRSER)
AEATEBEANEGETFEZLERF
6,155,500
REFELHERENMERVEFER
TERRERRAFEES
ERHEEBZELEHRE
(BERANYEEGERHEZ
AFEESHRBEBEQATNES)
MHIBRIEIER R %
—RAFERHER (372,677)
—RBEFERER 17,248,651
ERATEENEBEIEE 2RO ER
23,031,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

gt Y2 3 N
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBERRBRER
At 31st December, 2016 RZF—NF+ZA=+—H
Listed Unlisted
Property leasing Listed investments investments,
Property HERE equity and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-reail at FvToCl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
RpER
BBEMEE IARB
Wi A S ATEZ  FLETRE
NELRR AFEZED EARER  BREERR fig
E¥ £ *ZE RARE HEER LB g S48
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TR TR T TR TR
Assets gE
Segment assets SREE
- Hong Kong B 2322983 3635368 4057319 4559729 13,695,381 364,102 56246 28671,128
- United Kingdom — & - 1,508,649 5,551,717 - - - - 7,060,366
- Mainland China - 3 - 388,955 27045 - - - 6,133 422,133
— Other countries -EfER - 1 - - 1577011 693,763 - 2,270,785
Interests in associates BEATER
- Hong Kong -&% 81,330 373,778 1,318,165 - - 2,368 5,637 1,781,278
- Mainland China N - 120,649 53,193 - - - - 173,842
Advances to associates BRBENRFE
- Hong Kong &) 1,139 - 210 - - 5 1,145 2,499
- Mainland China —HE KR - 32611 14,375 - - - B 46,986
Reportable segment assets UE2RHEEE 2,405,452 6,060,021 11,002,024 4,559,729 15,272,392 1,060,238 69,161 40,429,017
Unallocated corporate assets KBz AREE 5,346,718
Consolidated total assets GREEEE 45,775,735
Liabilities 8%
Segment liabiities SHREE
- Hong Kong ~E% 430,034 23413 62451 4% 7,193,900 11,89 12,480 7734217
- United Kingdom ~RE - 13,399 103,813 - - - - 117212
- Mainland China —hEKE - 11611 25 - - - 80 11716
- Other countries -~HiER - 1 15 - 2,700,203 7 - 2,700,226
Reportable segment liabilies BEE D41 430,034 48424 166,304 4 9,894,103 11902 12560 10563371
Unallocated corporate liabiliies KOBZLRER 5,312,509
Consolidated total liabilities SREEEE 15,875,880
Additions to non-current assets ~ FHEBEERFE
(other than financial instruments  (£BIER
and deferred tax assets) EEHEEERD) 38 1,592,723 1,998,998 - - 15 738

184  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EENE =
Other Material Items HittEAEH

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2016

BE-F—NFFT_A=1+—HIFE

Adjustments Adjustments Consolidated
Adjustments for for realised for major statement of
Reportable unallocated fair value non-cash comprehensive
segments items changes items income
K% BERATE TEFRS BE2E
AE2RHE EREZRE BEHoAR HEZAE LEaETE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TR TEL TR
Interest income MEYA 934,720 1,831,876 - - 2,766,596
Finance costs HBER (88,022) (88,483) - - (176,505)
Net income LN+ 846,698 1,743,393 - - 2,590,091
Depreciation e - (10,304) - - (10,304)
Fair value changes on BRENEL
investment properties ATEEY - - (415,763) 554,979 139,216
Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZRE (128457) - - - (128457)
Share of results of associates BMENREE 64,686 - 43,086 53,410 161,182
Income tax expense FEHAX (19,234) (514,832) - (30,900) (564,966)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (393,828) 60,951 - - (332,877)
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HW A
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Included in other income are: HiABRLE:
Building management fee income BFEBREWRA 34,675 80,252
Building management fee expenses BEFEEBMY (16,700) (60,359)
17,975 19,893
Rental services income HERBUWA 11,681 21,275
Property management services, MEE R R
leasing administration services and BB ITHRS &
property administration services income PIEATI AR TS WA 52,208 40,371
Asset management and maintenance BEEERMRERBUKA
services income 973 2,354
Advisory and consultancy services income 5 7R 12 A sl AR A5 UT A 46 306
Consultancy fee income FEM BN 12,073 225
Exchange gain, net FE 5 e 5 58 11,847 -
Reversal of impairment in respect of ¢ [0 H h [l U AR 1H 2 R (B [
other receivable and interest thereon HEF A 4,687 3,494
Forfeiture of deposits received on sales of BUSHEMEFERS
stock of properties 14,725 460
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE
10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET 10. REWAFEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets measured at BRBRARBAFEFEZ
fair value through profit or loss: CRVEE
Unrealised gain (loss) arising from change BEARZATEEHMEEZ
in fair value of bonds KERWE (FHE) 600,296 (126,183)
Realised gain arising from change BARZATFEEHMEEZ
in fair value of bonds B &R
— Change in fair value - RFEEH 179,505 139,965
— Exchange component of change —EHEDEH) 47,488 2,999
Net gain arising from change in fair value of bonds &% 2 A FEZBMEE 2
Wi Em 827,289 16,781
Unrealised gain (loss) arising from change SEGEFCATEEYMEELZ
in fair value of club debentures, net RER W (EB)F58 7,082 (269)
Loss on disposal of a club debenture HESHEBESFZER = (53)
Other investment income, net HimEWAFEE 14,370 15,520
Dividends income on: & B ARG :
Listed investments FHRE 163,018 192,335
Unlisted investments FEEMEE 1,092 50,502
Interest income FBIA 1,688,857 2,763,833
2,701,708 3,038,649
Interest income mainly included interest income from bonds of MEBMAFETZBRRESFNERAN A

approximately HK$910,949,000 (2016: HK$923,556,000) and
imputed interest income from deferred consideration receivables
of approximately HK$772,584,000 (2016: HK$1,831,876,000) of
which approximately HK$631,402,000 (2016: HK$1,126,565,000)
was arose from repayment of the deferred consideration receivables

before their respective maturity date.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BEEA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest on: PSR
Bank borrowings RITIEE 96,362 152,644
Other borrowings HtEE 138,409 77,347
Total interest (Note 42) F B 4258 (KisE4a2) 234,771 229,991
Exchange loss (gain) on translation of SNEEE MR B 2 [E B
foreign currency other borrowings, net (Yezs) %88 52,236 (61,224)
Other finance costs Hab B 52 8,306 10,251
295,313 179,018
Less: Interest capitalised to stock of properties BRI ERE 2ERF
under development held for sale MEGFEENMEZFE (140) (2,513)
295,173 176,505
During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group has REBEE_ZT—+F+_A=T—BLEFE"
capitalised borrowing costs at a rate of 2.58% (2016: 2.28%) REBEIREFNR258E (2T —NF:228
per annum amounting to approximately HK$140,000 (2016: EFERAREGAREEERN L ZEERK
HK$2,513,000) on qualifying assets. #3140,0008 70 (ZF — /N F 12,513,000/
K
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 122. HBE REEFEHE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Included in other gains and losses, net are: Hih s K BB F e E:
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz s
— Pinecrest Group (note (i)) —Pinecrest&e B (MI5E(@) ) 114,368 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz s
— Win Kings Group (note (ii)) —Win Kings&e Bl (B3 (ii) ) 28,958 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EWB ARz W
— Union Wings (note (iii)) — iR (MFEEC)) 800 -
Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZRE (3,830) (128,457)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A Rl 2 e
— Pioneer Time (note (iv)) —Pioneer Time (Bt 5E(iv) ) - 1,276,903
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A Rl 2 e
— Evergo Shanghai (note (v)) —EExmLE (MFEV)) - 721,294
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERBE ATz
— Windsor Group (note (vi)) —Windsorgs [ (B 5% (vi) ) - 312,930
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B AR S BN
interest in and advance to an associate, net NAIFRIEER Z BEEEFE - (6,083)
Underprovision for rental guarantee (note (vii)) HEeERBET R (REWVI)) - (160)

Notes: B 5

(i)  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of the i) HEWNBAAZBWZDKXEBER =T
Group's entire issued share capital of Pinecrest International —+F = A+ B HE X% ERPinecrest
Limited (“Pinecrest”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the International Limited ([Pinecrest]) (A2
Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively “Pinecrest Group”) Alz —HEHZEZERBENBLAR) 22
(“Pinecrest Disposal”) on 10th February, 2017. At the time BETIRA R E W E QA (478 [Pinecrest
of disposal, the Pinecrest Group held certain shops of Lowu £EH]) ([Pinecresti &) o A & B -
Commercial Plaza located in Shenzhen, the PRC. Details of the Pinecreste B #5482 74 BRI T 2804 i 25
Pinecrest Disposal are set out in Note 39(a). YR T R4 © PinecrestH & 2 15871 A K

#£39(a) °
(i)  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of (i) HEMBRRAZKEIKERZT—tF

the Group's entire issued share capital of Win Kings Holding
Ltd. ("Win Kings"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiary (collectively “Win Kings Group”)
("Win Kings Disposal”) on 10th February, 2017. At the time of
disposal, the Win Kings Group held a property development
situated at No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, Mid-Levels East, Hong Kong.
Details of the Win Kings Disposal are set out in Note 39(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(iii)

)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Union Wings Investments
Limited (“Union Wings"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (“Union Wings Disposal”) on 24th July, 2017. At
the time of disposal, Union Wings held a vehicle registration mark
registered in Hong Kong. Details of the Union Wings Disposal are
set out in Note 39(d).

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Pioneer Time Investment
Limited (“Pioneer Time"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (“Pioneer Time Disposal”) on 15th January, 2016.
At the time of disposal, Pioneer Time held the property known as
MassMutual Tower (now known as China Evergrande Centre) in
Hong Kong. Details of the Pioneer Time Disposal are set out in
Note 39(e).

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary arose from the disposal of
the Group's entire issued share capital of Evergo Real Estate
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Evergo Shanghai”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Evergo Shanghai
Disposal”) on 22nd June, 2016. At the time of disposal, Evergo
Shanghai held the property known as Evergo Tower in Shanghai,
the PRC. Details of the Evergo Shanghai Disposal are set out in
Note 39(f).

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries arose from the disposals of
the Group's entire issued share capital of Keep Speed Company
Limited ("Keep Speed”) and Jumbo Grace Limited (“Jumbo
Grace"), both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, and Jumbo Grace's subsidiary (collectively “Windsor
Group”) (“Windsor Disposal”) on 1st September, 2016. At the
time of disposals, the Windsor Group held the property known as
Windsor House in Hong Kong. Details of the Windsor Disposal are
set out in Note 39(g).

The amount represented underprovision for rental guarantee
provided to purchasers of certain shops or units of an investment
property in Hong Kong (“Properties”) (“Properties Purchasers”)
disposed of in prior years.

12. BB REEBFE @

MisE: ()

(iif)

)

)

(vi)

(vii)

PE—HNBARZHERER ZF
—tFLAZtUBELEREERBRER
BERERAR([ER]) (ArRlz—BH
BEEEHRBWBEAR) 22MEBITRA
(MREWE]) - PHER  2E&BE— @R
ERBCZEMERRB - BRHE
BEHIIA W FEZ9() °

HE—HWBARIZKEIRER T
—NF—A+THHEHHEAXREERPioneer
Time Investment Limited ( [ Pioneer Time | )
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2B 1T A ([Pioneer TimeHi &) »
R HERE - Pioneer Timels BN BB L B
EEERAE(RBAFRERSPL)Z
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—ARERNAZTZAHEREEREES
FHE(LS)ERAR(EXSLE])
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AREXRAEZME-EXR LBHE
ZEIBE IR HIFE3I()
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BEARBEEANEZHWE-EZERELE
Z R BEH AR EE39(g) ©

RETENBEEERDE —BIAES
ZREME Y ETFEHREN ([DE])H
BEXR (MWEEH ) RRASER 2 &S
TR

B LEEH

g Bz 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. RBREAX

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
The charge comprises: X HBeE:
Current tax: EHANIA
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH 234,131 325,491
Other than Hong Kong BB AN R 73,382 178,395
307,513 503,886
Underprovision (overprovision) in prior years: BEFERETE GBERE) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABNEH (288) (700)
Other than Hong Kong B DASMD [R 6,774 28,2212
6,486 27512
Deferred tax: IRIETIE -
Current year charge REFEXH 13,050 33,568
327,049 564,966

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits for the year. The PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries are calculated at the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%). Taxation arising
from other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, included in the
deferred tax charge for the year was an amount of approximately
HK$44,000 in respect of Pioneer Time, where the relevant deferred
tax liabilities had been presented as liabilities directly associated

with assets classified as held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd) 13. RBHBEX @

AERBZABRXHESE2EKERRZ

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive BB AT & M S AR AT
income as follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR TR
Profit before tax BRELALR R 4,125,682 7258,155
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate & IS 5B %16.5%
of 16.5% (2016 16.5%) (ZZ—RF:165%)
AEZHE 680,738 16.5 1,197,596 165
Tax effect of share of results of BiElennEEs
associates BETE (31,337) (0.8) (26,595) (0.4)
Tax effect of income not taxable RHBMmE BARTNBA L
for tax purposes METE (391,068) (9.5) (627090) (86)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BB E FAMAFZZ
for tax purposes BBEE 61,881 15 24,676 03
Tax effect on accelerated accounting BABERE NREE
depreciation over tax depreciation NEBBREINEY
previously over provided MKy 2,201 0.1 14,469 02
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERAKAABRZHBER
not recognised (24,275) (0.6) (32,567) 0.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ KERZHBEE 2 HEFE 37,110 0.9 86,537 12
Underprovision in prior years BEEERETR 6,486 0.2 27512 04
Effect of different tax rates of EEM R ARR LS
subsidiaries operating WELRERZ
in other jurisdictions TRAREzZE (14,687) (0.4) (995572) (1.4)
Tax charge for the year AEEREZH 327,049 19 564,966 78
—E-tarH  EABxEsE 191




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
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14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. REEREF
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REZHFD (R FHA
(charging) crediting:
Total staff costs: BB AT :
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments EEXA (BREEZEFHE) (170,862) (185,798)
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RAREFFEHIK /R E R
net of forfeited contributions of approximately 3 49213,000/8 7T
HK$213,000 (2016: HK$297,000) (ZZ—7<4F : 297000/ T) (9,817) (9,502)
(180,679) (195,300)
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEENEN S -
Auditors of the Company N B A% BRAD
— Current year —REFE (2,050) (2,306)
Other auditors H fth A BAm
— Current year —REFE (467) (581)
— Overprovision (underprovision) —BAFEHBERE
in prior years (BETR) 122 (150)
Depreciation e (8.680) (10,304)
Exchange loss, net & 5 B5 18 F R - (25,493)
Cost of trading properties recognised BB MEKNER (420,044) (1,296,535)
Cost of cosmetic products recognised {b A G B AN T 3R (3.625) 3717)
Share of tax of associates B(hmE AmiE
(included in share of results of associates) (BRFAEREEQAREE) (49,600) (11,070)
Gross proceeds on disposals of investments HERIFEEZREY
held-for-trading FriS kI8 4858 - 608,587
Carrying amount of investments PERFEEEZREZREEAE
held-for-trading disposed of - (644,717)
Transaction costs on investments HERFEEEZREZR KA
held-for-trading disposed of - (1,304)
Net loss on disposals of investments FABARZHERSEERZ
held-for-trading included in revenue KREEIRFHR = (37,434)
Gross rental income from investment properties HEWMEHRS WAL 505,743 823,856
Less: Direct operating expenses from B AEREEEERAZ
investment properties that generated REMEEELERX
rental income during the year (11,182) (42,112)
Direct operating expenses from AEFTEEEHS WAL
investment properties that did not generate REMEERKERT
rental income during the year (3.,020) (4,357)
491,541 777,387
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15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine

15. EEM <

ENSENTFARES (Z2—RF: \&)F

(2016: eight) Directors were as follows: BzaekEMMenT:
2017 2016
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
and other scheme and other scheme
Fee emoluments contributions Total Fee  emoluments  contributions Total
FeR BIKER ek RINER
e Hitie SR ag we Eie HELSS 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET T TR FET FHT
M. Lau, Ming-wai ABERE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan Regat - 1,500 120 1,620 - 1334 108 1442
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan BBt
(note) (Fis) - 88 5 93 - - - -
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan Raaxt - 674 40 114 - 545 35 580
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai B E - 2,191 210 3,001 - 2,337 202 2,539
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai S-S 240 - - 240 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai RERRE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EERLL 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SRELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
1,440 5,053 375 6,868 1,440 4216 345 6,001

Note: Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan was appointed as executive Director with
effect from 13th February, 2017.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31st
December, 2017 and 2016.

Details of material interests of the Directors in transactions,
arrangements or contracts entered into by subsidiaries of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report” of

this annual report.

B BYBELxTE-—E—tF_At+=AeE

RERBITES-

EEHERNHE_T—tFR-_FT-RFt+=
A=t—RALFEARERIERMME -

BARAZMBRARGFIIR S  ZHHARZ
EENEANGZFBHINAFHRZ [EF
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16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(@) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2016: one) was a Director, details of his
emoluments was included in Note 15. The emoluments of

the remaining four (2016: four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e hEMEF
iR

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RORE R FH S 51

The emoluments of the four (2016: four) individuals were

within the following bands:

REMBRRME

16. EEM &
(@) EZEERESHFMAL

rEBAEERMEALTH —F (=22
NE—HB)REFR FoMertER

BRI TS c HepmE (ZF—RF Iy

Z)EAMALTZIE T

2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET FET
9,325 9,039
664 580
9,989 9,619

FZHAE(ZE-—RF - OR)EANALTZHE
fBEMT

Number of employees

BEAH
2017 2016
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t —2,500,0007% 7T 3 3
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t —3,500,0007% 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31st December, 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, or Directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (contd)

(b) Emoluments of senior management

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

(b)

Other than the two (2016: two) senior management whose

emoluments have been disclosed in the five highest paid

individuals (Note 16(a)), the emolument of the remaining

senior management whose profile is included in the section

headed “Profiles of Senior Executives” of this annual report,

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=t ALFE

16. EEM < (&)

EREEEzHME
BREINDEESHFMAL (K E
16(@)) 2B (ZE—XRF:MEB)BR
EEEZMEIN ERAFR [ SRITH
ABRBEN —HANFIBREREEEZ
MEmEEanT

was within the following band:

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

17. DIVIDENDS

®)

©

@

©

®

®

Final dividend for 2016 paid on 12th June, 2017
of HK1 cent (2015: HK1 cent) per share

Interim dividend for 2017 paid
on 13th September, 2017 of HK20 cents
(2016: HK1 cent) per share

Special interim dividends for 2016 of
HK$1.36 per share and 2017 of
HK$0.64 per share paid on 10th February, 2017
of HK$2 in aggregate per share

Special interim dividend for 2017 paid
on 23rd June, 2017 of HK$2.91 per share

Conditional special interim dividend for 2016 declared
on 21st December, 2015 and paid
on 20th January, 2016 of HK$2 per share

Special interim dividend for 2016 paid
on 11th August, 2016 of HK$2.1 per share

Special interim dividend for 2016 paid
on 1st September, 2016 of HK$3.23 per share

Total dividends paid

Number of employee

EBEAH
2017 2016
1,500,001/ 7t —2,000,0007%& 7T 1 1
17. R E
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
(@ RZT—+tFXA+ZHBRMZ
12*/\¢3E,Hﬂﬂ§b§\ﬂx1/%m
( 0% gRUEND) 19,076 19,076
(b) —tFNAT=HBIERMAZ
*t¢¢%k5ﬁhm%w
(:;f/—\i'%ﬁ%ﬂh) 381,524 19,076
© ZE—tHZRATHBRNZ
:g /\E%?JUEPH\HHXE\
(BR1368TL) R=ZT—+F
RRIRERE (&Hx0.64§%7_5)
EReHBT 3,815,238 -
(d RZZE—tF A=+=H
BENZZF—tF
BRREREER291ET 5,551,172 -
(e) —RF+ZA=+—H
ERIR-T-—AE—A=+H
BRI ZZE—~FHREKEZ
BT RS ERIET - 3,815,238
H RNZZE—RENA+—H
BRIz ZE—RF
Bt BkEEk2 BT - 4,006,000
® RIE-AEAA-ADENZ
-z /\E%E'Jqﬂﬂﬂﬂxg
B335 - 6,161,610
EIRNRE AT 9,767,010 14,021,000
“E-LEFR FEABEEE
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17. DIVIDENDS (contd) 17. BE (&)
Final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2017 of HK10 EFERRERBE T —tFT+A=1—
cents (2016: HK1 cent) per share has been proposed by the AIEFEZRBREGRIOEIW(ZF—X
board of Directors and is subject to shareholders’ approval at the FERIUBM)  BRERRRARRZEER
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. RBFEREG F#tE-
18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. SREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RRARHEANEBIEZERERNREERFTY
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BIBATEIEE
data:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Earnings: BH
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted AEERERNREERENZ
earnings per share 2N
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RRBHEEABIEAFEZ
the Company gl 3,708,886 6,360,312
Number of shares
BRGEE
2017 2016
Number of shares: B ER :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AESRERNREERMNZ
for the purposes of basic and diluted AT
earnings per share 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079
Diluted eamings per share for the years ended 31st December, BHE_Z—+tHFRZTE-—R"F+ZA=+—
2017 and 2016 were the same as the basic earnings per share as HIEFE ARy EsgER i miEs
there were no diluting events during both years. EzBRESRMNEGREARZFIER -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1st January, 2016

Additions

Exchange adjustments

Increase (decrease) in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
— unrealised
— realised

Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 39(f) and (g))

At 31st December, 2016

Acquisition of assets through acquisition of
a subsidiary (Note 40)

Additions

Exchange adjustments

Increase in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
— unrealised

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(a))

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2017

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured

using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

19. REWZE

4
o m

e

A 2 EREREER
AFEEN (HD)

— k2B

—B#y

[ Y 2 ) (M EESO(D R ()

RZZE—R"F+=-A=+—H
FRWE-HENEARKRBEE
(HMi5E40)
NE
bE A%
RirE 2R R R ER
A A
— R
LEMB AT (KMFE39@))

SREE
R-ZB—tH+=-A=1+—H

BRIWEREMEANR -

B LEEH

Completed
properties
ERE
HK$'000
THET

21,941,263
3,584,031
(1,257,166)

554,979
(415,763)

(11,520,091)

12,887,253
1,779,563

1,421
764,414

564,502
(347,162)

15,649,991

AEERMBEHBEEHEOURRESHER
BEZMEREDRBATEERGE XD
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REVE

Property valuations as at 31st December, 2017 and 2016 were
carried out by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.I. Appraisals”), independent
qualified professional valuer, in respect of the Group's investment
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the investment
properties in the United Kingdom, the property valuations as at
31st December, 2017 and 2016 were carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), another independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuations of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
discussed with the independent qualified professional valuers about
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for Level 3 fair

value measurements.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at 31st
December, 2017 were signed by the respective director of BL.I.
Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals, who are members of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed in accordance
with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2017 Edition” published by
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or “The RICS Valuation
— Global Standards 2017" published by The Royal Institution of

Chartered Surveyors.

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at the end of each reporting period based on its
market value and by adopting investment method, and/or direct
comparison method, as appropriate. The investment method relying
on the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current
term leases, term vyield rate, assumptions about rental income from
future reversion leases in light of current market conditions, the
assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by
the valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors,
including term vyield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such vyield
rates were adopted after considering the investment sentiments
and market expectations of properties of similar nature. Direct
comparison method assumes each of these properties is capable of
being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available

in the relevant markets.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19.

The following tables analysed the investment properties which
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period

B 75 R 3R P 5E
—tF+-_A=t+—HILFE
BREVE »

TRENRBEPRURAFEFEZREDE
L= A (ERALEBMBREELF3

into the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value e [RFEFZE]) DT R E3E#E— 5
Measurement” which is further elaborated in Note 3. it
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
NEE B Bo& F=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value REMHEDNFETE
measurements:
Completed properties & /ES
At 31st December, 2017 n= +&F
+=—HA=+—H 15,649,991 - 1,401,669 14,248,322
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—RF
+=fA=+— 12,887253 — 1614019 11,273,234
Certain investment properties located in Hong Kong and Mainland DERBE _RAVEFEBEZETURETER

China categorised as Level 2 fair value measurement are
determined using direct comparison method with reference to the
recent selling prices of comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis which are adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations
of the related properties.

Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on
investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value
measurement at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

e IKI@‘EZ&%#@%ME&‘%E&%E 8 E
A EMEZ KOS FHREE MEES
RPEBURREBEYE ZRRRAE -

NBEMRDFAE=RATEN B2 RE
Y32 (B PR 2 BT B E B2 B
m :

Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs  Range
DYE fhEH EXKTRRYE gE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThL
Properties held for investment 5,017,160 4340,110  Combination of direct comparison (1) Reversionary yield; and 3.00% to 4.75%
in Hong Kong method and investment method BEEHXR (2016: 3.50% to
UREBZHERENE BRUBERREEZZAH (2) Market rent per square foot 5.000)
BEHRzMEEE 300EZ475E
(Z2-RF:
3502 25.008)
Properties held for investment 9,231,162 6,585962  Combination of direct comparison (1) Reversionary yield; and 2.88% to 4.75%
in the United Kingdom method and investment method ERERE: R (2016: 2.88% to
URREZHERENE ERIBERREEZ AN (2) Market rent per square foot 4.750%)
FEARz MRS 288EZ4T5E
(ZB—R%F:
2882 Z475E)
Properties held for investment - 347162 Combination of direct comparison (1) Reversionary yield; and N/A (2016: 8.50%)
in Mainland China method and investment method EHROHE: R TR
URPEAE 2 BERENE ERIBERREE A (2) Market rent per square foot (ZZ—15:850E)
BYHRzTEHES
Total
ag 14,248,322 11,273,234
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REVE

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation
of potential rental income, nature of the property and prevailing
market condition. Market rent per square foot is the market rent
taking into account the direct comparable market transactions to the

related properties.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the
reversionary yield, while positively correlated to the market rent per

square foot.

Movements of investment properties which are categorised as Level

3 fair value measurement during the year are as follows:

EREHERTIFREEHSRABRE W%
HEREEMRGHZLER - BFHRZMS
MEDFREBNEZTSAIHERLRXR
H/RHzHHEEE-

R EFEREROREK KL - MEEFT
Rz W5 HEE BRI IEL -

PERE=MAFEABZEENENER
ZEHMT:

2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
At 1st January (note) R—A—8 (W) 11,273,234 28,582,309
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of 7B — A B A A
a subsidiary (Note 40) kg & & (MiFE40) 1,779,563 -
Additions NE - 3,580,849
Exchange adjustments bE 5 3 & 762,465 (1,255,669)
Increase (decrease) in fair value recognised RErE 2 EREHRERERZ
in the consolidated statement of NEEE N O )
comprehensive income
— unrealised —AREH 780,222 959,199
— realised —B#35 - (415,763)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEM B A F (347,162) (20,177,691)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31st December R+t=A=+-—8 14,248,322 11,273,234

Note: As at 1st January, 2016, included those presented as assets
classified as held for sale of approximately HK$8,657,600,000
which were categorised as level 3 fair value measurement.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurement during the years ended 31st December, 2017 and
2016 and no change in valuation techniques used in prior years. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use equates

to the highest and best use of the properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20 ¥ -BERRZRE

Furniture, Yachts and
Leasehold fixtures and motor
land Buildings equipment vehicles Total
i
HEL BT EERRE BRRAE ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T TR T FiET
Cost BA&
At Tst January, 2016 RZE-RF—F-A 27444 4,783 50,051 110,796 193,074
Additions AE - - 4319 4124 8,443
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAF
(Note 39(f) and (g)) (MsE39( R () - - (5,170) (792) (5,962)
Disposals/written off HE /M - - 2,011) (6,405) (8,416)
Exchange adjustments EHBE (1,476) (258) (29) (189) (1,952)
At 31st December, 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=+-A 25,968 4,525 47,160 107,534 185,187
Additions AE - - 4292 839 5,131
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAF
(Note 39(a) and (d)) (B+E39(a) R (d)) - - (88) (a40) (528)
Disposals/written off HE /M - - (3.337) (7,675) (11,012)
Exchange adjustments EHAE 1,888 329 34 240 2,491
At 315t December, 2017 N o = 217,856 4,854 48,061 100,498 181,269
Depreciation RE
At Tst January, 2016 RZE-~"5-F—AH 822 188 43718 97806 142,534
Charge for the year KEERE 489 107 2,714 6,994 10,304
Elimination upon disposals of subsidiaries &I /B 73 )% ¥1 4
(Note 39(f) and (g)) (M3390 R () - - (4,048) (635) (4,683)
Elimination upon disposals/written off HE /MRS - - (1,721) (6,405) (8,126)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (67) (16) (19) (170) @n)
At 31st December, 2016 RZB-R"E+ZA=+-A 1,244 219 40,644 97,590 139,757
Charge for the year TEEHE 481 105 3,310 4,784 8,680
Elimination upon disposals of subsidiaries & i B 73 =18 ¥ 5
(Note 39(z) and (d)) (B3E39(a) R (d)) - - (66) (a40) (506)
Elimination upon disposals/written off HE/MERHH - - (3.259) (6.897) (10,156)
Exchange adjustments EHAR 110 24 28 215 311
At 315t December, 2017 RZZE—tE+ZA=1—-8H 1,835 408 40,657 95,252 138,152
Carrying amounts REE
At 31st December, 2017 RZZ-tE+Zp=+-H 26,021 4,446 7,404 5,246 43,117
At 315t December, 2016 RZE-RETZA=T—-H 24,724 4,246 6,516 9,944 45,430

B LEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1st January, 2016,
31st December, 2016 and
31st December, 2017

Amortisation and impairment
At 1st January, 2016,
31st December, 2016 and
31st December, 2017

Carrying amounts

At 31st December, 2017

At 31st December, 2016

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such

intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five

years.

22. GOODWILL

Cost

At 1st January, 2016,
31st December, 2016 and
31st December, 2017

Impairment

At 1st January, 2016,
31st December, 2016 and
31st December, 2017

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2017

At 31st December, 2016

21. B EE

Trading and
exchange
rights Trademark Total
SERESE BE Fok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TET
DS
RZE-—RE-A—H"
ZE-RETZAZT—HE
—T—+tF+ZA=+—H 2,705 14,300 17,005
BRI E
RZE-—RE—-A—H"
“E-RF+-R=t+—HE
—T—+F+=ZA=+—H 2,705 14,300 17,005

REE
R=-ZB—t&+=-A=1+—H -

RZE—R"F+=ZA=1+—H -

SIS §

2. HE

BREE
R-ZE—tH+=-A=+-—H

RZZE—R"F+=-A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

22. GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
certain business combinations has been allocated to the Group's
CGUs, which in all cases were determined to be investment
properties owned by subsidiaries. The carrying amount of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) was allocated to CGUs with

the following places of operation:

United Kingdom =
Hong Kong BB

The recoverable amount for the CGU operated in the United
Kingdom has been determined based on value-in-use calculation
using five-year cash flow projections approved by the Directors. The
pre-tax discount rate of approximately 5.28% (2016: 5.44%) per
annum for the United Kingdom property business was applied to
the cash flow projection when assessing the recoverability of the
CGU containing goodwill. Full impairment for goodwill of the other

businesses in Hong Kong was recognised in prior years.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of the cash flow projections. Key assumptions
included gross margin and discount rates which are determined by
the Directors based on past performance and their expectation for
market development. The values assigned to key assumptions are
based on historical experience, current market condition, approved
forecasts and consistent with external information sources. Gross
margin is budgeted gross margin. The discount rates used were
determined with reference to weighted average cost of capital of
similar companies in the industry reflected specific risks relating
to the industry. The Directors believe that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their respective aggregate
recoverable amount. During the years ended 31st December, 2017
and 2016, the Directors determined that there was no impairment

of the goodwill.

22. BHE W)

BERENE

RETREANR RETEBEHELEZHE
ENREAEEZREELEMN REZETF
REENBRRMAEZRENE -BHERE
B(HEREREREEBER) DEEN KL
ZHREELBM:

2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET FET
322,938 322,938
322,938 322,938

RREGLEZREEAEN 2HEZTEE
SRIRBESHECAFRERERD - A
SEGRBEMEEIEC - EHESHELR
CEABMZAWERER ERRRESRE
TER - LB YR TG AT BT SR RA 3 K 4)5.28]E
(ZF—RF 544F ) H -RRBEBEME
BzEE 2EREBES BT FERR -

RERASTEBALRSERERME -2
BREEHEZRBBTIRERKEETS
BERBABE ZEFRERE - X ZREBMA
BEBTER - & RTINS HETE A A K
B WRHAEINBERKR - EFETIEEEF
E-MARAZMREDSRENRERARZ
MEFIGEARRALEE W EITEREZ
HERR ZEFRE TRUZERRTEEE
PHRZAMEHTISERACELEMNER
BREEBHRESCESTEMN s BB KE S5
BE-NEBE_T—+LFERZT—XRF+ZA
ST-HIEFER EFTCABTERES
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. BE N TR

Cost of investment in associates:

— Unlisted —JEET

Share of post-acquisition profits and

other comprehensive income/expenses Hib2mERE S
net of dividends received HBRE KRS

The Company provided corporate guarantee to secure bank
borrowings granted to its associates in prior years. The fair value of
the financial guarantee contract at initial recognition was determined
by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent qualified professional
valuer, and it was recognised as interests in associates and financial
guarantee liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31st December,
2017 are set out in Note 50.

The investment properties held by the Group's principal associates
were revalued as at 31st December, 2017 and 2016 by B.l
Appraisals. B.l. Appraisals continues to adopt investment method
and/or direct comparison method as the valuation methodologies.
The valuation methods and significant assumptions applied in
determining the fair values of investment properties are detailed in
Note 19.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.
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BAEWBEREN R

2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,204,736 1,204,736
910,492 750,384
2,115,228 1,955,120

ARABRNBEFERFEARERESEEE
NAERRITEHEZET - WHEEREONE
BRAZATEHBYIABERERMGHEMEN
BRFEERAREE YORAEBEZES
AR BER AR R E QRS N5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (contd) 23. Bt N TR

AEESTHEAT (FHEEEERAF) Y
M AR ERSIMT -

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set out below.

Finedale Industries Limited EHEXERAT
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets IERBEE 3,403,000 3,223,000
Current assets mENEE 385,114 322,465
Current liabilities MBBE (49,849) (54,127)
Net assets AEFE 3,738,265 3,491,338
Revenue WA 82,966 92,340
Profit for the year KEZRHF 246,927 123,819
Total comprehensive income for the year AEZ2ERHERE 246,927 123,819
Reconciliation of the summarised financial B N Bk o BRE A B
information presented to the carrying B T B R T B
amount of its interest in the associate:
Net assets at 1st January R—A—BZ2EE%E 3,491,338 3,367,519
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2ENZEE 246,927 123,819
Net assets at 31st December R+-—A=+—BZ2EE%E 3,738,265 3,491,338
Interest held by the Group REHEFRE 2R 33.33% 33.330
Group's interest in the associate and REERZE SRR 2w
the carrying amount KERMAE 1,246,088 1,163,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (contd) 23 BENFER
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the N EERREAEE AR 2 REEZIBE®R
unaudited financial statements of the associate which were REJ 228 ZEMBRIIEBEV B @RS
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs adjusted for the differences 7 A 0 gk AN £ B B B 2 A B 2 F R R g 5T I
arising from accounting policies and different financial year end KRB FEEARELRABEMRR -

dates between the Group and the associate.

Aggregate financial information of associates that are not individually ERIZEEZE 2 B N RIS E R 45
material:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Group's share of results for the year REEBERFEER 107,613 119,909
Group's share of other comprehensive REBBEARNFEEME2E RS
income (expense) for the year (Zd) 16,964 (10,972)
Group's share of total comprehensive REEEERER
income for the year 2HEW BT 124,577 108,937
Group's aggregate interests in these associates REBRZEHRERE 2
and the carrying amounts M A N AREE 869,140 791,341
Py = =+
24. ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES 24, A BE QTR KE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Interest-bearing advances to associates AN AN g P 48,050 48,104
Interest-free advances to associates SN E 2 BB IE 1,149 1,381
49,199 49,485
The advances to associates are unsecured. The Group will not BNEBE RN R FIEREER NEEAGEK
demand for repayment within one year from the end of the RERE BRI —FRNER  WZEHREIME
reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as non- FEMBME - BAHE QB 25 EFIE A E B
current. The interest-bearing advances to associates bear interest at ZTIBEER R R

the prevailing market rates.
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Bonds (note (i))
Club debentures (note (ii))

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

B (KMIEEQ))
SrEEs (M)

REMBRRME

25. BBEZURMATFETEZ
tRMEE

2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERx TAET
10,738,743 14,952,866
69,889 62,807
10,808,632 15,015,673
2,049,276 373,050
8,759,356 14,642,623
10,808,632 15,015,673

Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERERBRZ DT

Non-current JERBME

Current MENIEE
Notes: Bt &
(i)  As at 31st December, 2017, the carrying amount of bonds was ()

approximately HK$10,738,743,000 (2016: HK$14,952,866,000),
including bonds with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,261,095,000 (2016: HK$2,314,771,000) were available
to be loaned to financial institutions for earning lending fee
income and the same or substantially the same securities would
be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the securities pooled lending agreements, of which
approximately HK$50,124,000 (2016: HK$203,272,000) were
on loan at the end of the reporting period.

The bonds denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range from
4.750% to 13.250% per annum of which notional amount of
US$1,180,960,000 are callable, the bonds denominated in GBP
carry at fixed rate range from 5.875% to 7.250% per annum are
callable and the bond denominated in EUR carries at fixed rate of
12.500% per annum is callable.

The bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair values at
the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are determined
by reference to market bid prices quoted by financial institutions
and brokers.

R-B—+F+-_A=+—8 E52%
HEE 4 510,738,743,000# 7T ( Z & — /X
F 1 14,952,866,000/8 7T) * & R EMME
“AEE 4 51,261,095,00008 7L (Z & — X
F:2,314,771,0008 70) 2 EF - RIEE
EBHEEBRME 2GR LG AT #
BEHTFELREBEARREERERA T
ZEFIABERCBFBEHEETAE
SBE-RBEHR EPEELESF 2R
EE#) 550,124,000/ 7T ( —Z T — N &
203,272,000/ 7T) °

NETHEZERFEEFFEBLTS0ESR
13.250E - HF % 3% £ % /51,180,960,000
ERN2EFAAUER UREAEZES
ElEFFIE A5.875E £ 7250 Ar]E R &
DABR T RTE 2 &5 & E F 7R A12.5002
AR EE D o

BRRRRERZT S5 AAFER
BERARINE - EFZRXFEDRES®
BERERLsMIZEAREBEEE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

@  (Cont'd)

Major terms of the bonds denominated in US$, EUR and GBP are
as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
US$33,500,000 2018
US$1,682,000 2019
US$5,000,000 2020
US$22,800,000 2021
US$28,000,000 2023
US$237,000,000 2024
US$133,000,000 2025
US$9,000,000 2036
US$21,000,000 2046
US$749,460,000 Perpetual
EUR2,000,000 Perpetual
GBP41,000,000 Perpetual

(i)  Club debentures are stated at fair values at the end of the
reporting period and details of the fair value measurements are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets measured at
FVTPL of approximately HK$2,049,276,000 (2016: HK$373,050,000).
They were included in non-current assets according to their intended
holding periods. Notwithstanding the presentation of the above
assets as non-current assets, these financial assets to the extent of
approximately HK$1,979,387,000 (2016: HK$310,243,000) were
treasury products and could be realised in the market at any time within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

25. BBERURMAFEETFEZ
EREE®

BisE: ()

G (&

NET BTEREEFEZESFZETERN
I NE

ZESH A
33,500,000 7T —E-N\F
1,682,000% 7T —ZE-NF
5,000,000% 7T —E_EF
22,800,0003 T B
28,000,000 7T —E-=4F
237,000,000 7T —E-E
133,000,000 7T —E-REF
9,000,0003 T —EZRF
21,000,000 7T ZENRF
749,460,000F 7T KA
2,000,000 7T KA
41,000,000% &5 KA

(i) M|EHR SREFBRAFEIE QF
EFft82F B ]IIRHES()

IRBEEPREBBIESURMATENE
2 & R EE492,049,276,00008 7T ( Z B —K4E
373,050,000/8 70 ) < BRI E 2 ¥ E 5B BmEr
AFERBEE -BEE LMEEZY ABIERBEE
HELRBEZLEE,979,387.0008 T (=&
— 7N 310,243,000/ 7T) BB A E o Al AR
HHIRAE + — @B AEMREEATES LR -

26. BAE M2 E W ARBRA T
BHEXEMEE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Listed investments: FhRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REE ETRAF S
(notes (i) and (ii)) (M52 R (i) ) 23,110,730 4,559,726
Unlisted equity securities: FELETRAES:
— Incorporated in Hong Kong — BB ML 344,263 195,790
— Incorporated elsewhere (note (iii)) — R H i i [ FE A S2 (B R GGii) ) 686,967 687,075
24,141,960 5,442,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Notes:

0)

(i)

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group
disposed of a subsidiary, whose principal asset was its holding
of the SJB Shares, which represented approximately 9.96% of
the total issued share capital of Shengjing Bank, or approximately
37.5% of the total H shares of Shengjing Bank in issue as at the
date of the disposal. Details of the disposal of the subsidiary are
set out in Note 39(c). At the date of completion of the disposal,
the SJB Shares were carried at their fair value determined based
on the consideration of the disposal transaction. The resulting
gain on fair value change of the SJB Shares amounting to
approximately HK$2,125,982,000 and the transaction costs of
the disposal of approximately HK$1,687,000 were recognised in
other comprehensive income of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2017 (2016: carrying amount of approximately
HK$4,559,726,000 represented the acquisition consideration
of the SJB Shares of approximately HK$6,926,166,000 after
deducting unrealised loss on fair value change of approximately
HK$2,366,440,000 for the year ended 31st December, 2016
which was determined based on quoted price in active market).

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group has
acquired the Evergrande Shares at a total consideration (including
transaction costs) of approximately HK$13,182,428,000. The
unrealised gain on fair value change of the Evergrande Shares
of approximately HK$9,928,302,000 which was determined
based on quoted price in active market, was recorded in
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve during the year
ended 31st December, 2017. The carrying amount of the
Evergrande Shares as at 31st December, 2017 was approximately
HK$23,110,730,000.

As at 31st December, 2017, the carrying amount of listed
equity securities was approximately HK$23,110,730,000 (2016:
HK$4,559,726,000), including listed equity securities with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,831,576,000
(2016: nil) were available to be loaned to financial institutions
for earning lending fee income and the same or substantially the
same securities would be returned to the Group, pursuant to the
terms and conditions contained in the securities pooled lending
agreements, of which approximately HK$619,103,000 (2016: nil)
were on loan at the end of the reporting period.

26. ERHMEEWE UARBRAF
BFfFEZERMEE®

() REE_Z—tF+-A=-+—HBLLFE"
AREFHE—FHBEAR EXBEE AR
BERFIRITIRG (A& B EE R RTIRTT
2B EBE BT A 49.96%8 B RIRTT 2
2 I E B ITHRR AR 10 #937.5% ) & I B
NEZ FH BRI RAHFE39(0) s R ETEAK
A BRETROHELEXSREMmMET
HANFEINE - RBEE-Z—+F+=A
=t+—BIEFE BRBPITROZAFES
BMEE 2 WS 5L 52,125,982,00078
TLA R E R 5K A K 51,687,000 7Tl
PAEBEZ At 2AEREPER (ZT—<
F : BRME{E 494,559,726,0008 7T Jh¥5 A R
SR1TR% 19 Uk BE X 1B 496,926,166,0007% It *
CHBREE-_T—AF+-_A=+—H
IFERENERTB ZREMBEZA
FEEE) 2 R E518492,366,440,0007%8
JL) e

REE-_Z—tF+-A=Z+—HItF
B AEEBNRELI3,182,428,000%
T (BEXZEAN)BEEARSG RNEE
—E—+tHFE+-A=Z+—BILEE BE
RERBMBZREMBETCERBRMDZAF
EE ) 2 K& R U 499,928,302,0007 7T
ERBEBHEMEAKRSIARMRAFETE
JERMEEZHEAAR - R_ZT—+F

(i)

23,110,730,000/% T °

RZEBE—+F+-_A=+—8' LWEX
BA 7 BREEA)523,110,730,000/8 7T ( =
T — X4 1 4,559,726,0005 7T ) & R ERE
B 4% 4 /51,831,576,000 7T ( ZF —7<
FoE)Z EMRAZES RIBESEHE
ER@EmE o R kgt aEELE e
BEEBARNEEBRA  MZEHFRK
HERZEFBERETAEE - RRE
MR E2HEEHETRAZES ZEEE
#) /619,103,000 (ZF—RF &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED

27.

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)
(i) As at 31st December, 2017, the carrying amount mainly
comprised investment in an exempted limited partnership formed
under the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”) of approximately
HK$578,244,000 (2016: HK$584,510,000).

The Cayman Islands Partnership has a term of ten years from the
date of initial closing. Purposes of the Cayman Islands Partnership
are to achieve exceptional returns by acquiring, holding and
disposing of equity, equity-related securities, high-yield structured
financial products, independently or with others, in companies
with various operations or such other activities.

The quoted price in active market of equity securities listed in Hong
Kong represents quoted market bid price available on the Stock
Exchange.

For unlisted equity securities measured at fair value, details of the fair
value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTOCI of approximately HK$24,141,960,000 (2016:
HK$5,442,591,000). They were included in non-current assets
according to their intended holding periods. Notwithstanding the
presentation of the above assets as non-current assets, these financial
assets to the extent of approximately HK$23,110,730,000 (2016:
HK$4,559,726,000) were listed securities investments and could be
realised in the market at any time within twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.

ADVANCE(S) TO INVESTEE COMPANIES
AND A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

(a) The advances made to investee companies are unsecured
and interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment
within one year from the end of the reporting period and the
advances are therefore shown as non-current.

(b) The advance made to a non-controlling shareholder is

unsecured and interest-free. The Group will not demand for

repayment within one year from the end of the reporting

period and the advance is therefore shown as non-current.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables W E 5 RE

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREEAE

Deposits and prepayments e RIEFHIE

Other receivables H b fE UL BR IR

Analysed for reporting purpose as: EmERBRZ DT
Non-current SEMEIEE
Current mEEE

Included in debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables of approximately HK$5,487,000 (2016:
HK$5,894,000) comprised rental receivables billed in advance
and settlements from tenants which are expected upon receipts of

billings and receivables from cosmetic business.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements. Rental in respect of leased properties are payable in
advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle their accounts
according to the payment terms as stated in the respective

contracts.

28. BWARIR - &€ - HMEWER

HRENKE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
5,928 6,085
(aa1) (191)
5,487 5,894
52,862 296,420
857,764 5,522,915
916,113 5,825,229
- 1,102,338
916,113 4,722,891
916,113 5,825,229

FEWARTE - E & HMEWARE RFEMNFKIER
EEUE 5 IR TE #95,487,0008 70 (ZF — X
F 15,894,000/ L) B IETESLFH B M IEEAE
FPearlEREr M EKRHES URKRE
fete fn 3R 2 FEUBRIA -

AEECHFIRAEZEERER NFEERS
TZEEER -AEEBYERYRBER B
REEREZSEVESRBRBZEER
BoMEDEMEZIRE ENARBEEE M
2R -HEME 2B AREPALX
o B8 5 EHARBEREHAFIA 2

RIEFBERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of

allowance for doubtful debts), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

0 — 30 days
31 — 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

ZE=1H
=t—HEXTH
At—BEATA
N+BERE

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired:

0 — 30 days
31 — 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

ZZ=+H
=t—HEXTH
At—HEATH
A+BERE
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T
2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET FET
2,505 2,371
998 794
391 693
1,593 2,036
5,487 5,894

EEHEREREEEEZRBZKEKD

i UENE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FET
2,238 1,052
575 392
304 20
1,128 1,388
4,245 2,852




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

28. EWWERIE - & ¢ - HtEWER
HRENRE @

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REBE &
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
At 1st January n—A—A8 191 1,479
Impairment losses recognised FIEWE 5 BRIEHE R
in respect of trade receivables BB EE 272 413
Impairment losses reversed BLIEWE 5 RRIE# [B]
in respect of trade receivables BEEE (22) (994)
Disposal of subsidiaries T B8 A - (707)
At 31st December BR+=-—A=+-—H a4 191

For those past due but not impaired receivables, although the
Group does not hold any collateral as security, the Group has
assessed the creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial
settlement after the end of the reporting period, and considers that
the amounts are still recoverable and no further credit provision is

required in excess of allowance for doubtful debts.

Trade receivables over 90 days comprising rental receivables of
approximately HK$1,109,000 (2016: HK$1,388,000) which are
sufficiently covered by rental deposits received from the respective
tenants, and no allowance is required for these receivables under

the Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.

As at 31st December, 2016, included in debtors, deposits, other
receivables and prepayments were consideration receivables
in respect of deferred considerations of the Chengdu Project
Disposal (as defined below), the Chongqing Project Disposal (as
defined below) and the Pioneer Time Disposal of approximately
HK$5,100,696,000 in aggregate, of which approximately
HK$3,998,358,000 to be received within one year was shown as
current and HK$1,102,338,000 to be received after one year was
shown as non-current. The deferred consideration receivables were
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at

amortised cost, which were recorded as other receivables.

SAEBMEERE REIREATNS  #AKRE
B ER B EAERRERER ARECHE
8 BEEFRTHEINBEHRRZIBE
BRIFHEHE YR ARFERDAWKE - &F
2EE—H (ZRREBRB)ZEERE-

BBNLTAZEKEZESEERERKESY
1,109,000/ 7T ( == — 7<% : 1,388,000/ 7T)
(HRUEA SRR 2 eI S TRE) -
RBEREEZ BEBR  BERZEZRYIRE
Ve A

B Y TR 2 B BB B ER
4«

RZZFE—RNE+-A=+—80 EKEE"
e HMEWREBERBENREREEE
REHMEALHE (ERRTX) EEEEH
€ (F&E R TFX) NMPioneer TmeH &4 £4
5,100,696,000/% Jt * & * #)3,998,358,000
PSR — F N WCER I B YRR B 1B &
1,102,338,000/%8 7T 45 1A — & 1% W EX 1 51 E 3E
MEEE - ZEUBCEER BV HIE D FERER
WEBIZBER A FAHEUIRE -

“E-LHEFHR  EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER 28. EWWERIE - & ¢ - HtEWER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

On 30th July, 2015, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Lucky Benefit Limited and Rising Sheen Limited,
both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
and their respective subsidiaries (“Chengdu Project Disposal”).
The consideration of the Chengdu Project Disposal was
HK$6,500,000,000 of which 10% was received from Shengyu
(BVI) Limited (“Shengyu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Evergrande
Real Estate Group Limited (now known as China Evergrande Group)
which is independent of and not connected with the Company,
up to the date of completion of the Chengdu Project Disposal. In
accordance with the equity and debt transfer agreement of the
Chengdu Project Disposal dated 14th July, 2015, the remaining
90% of the cash consideration receivable from the Chengdu Project
Disposal amounting to HK$5,850,000,000 would be received
in 4 instalments within 24 months from the date of the disposal
agreement. During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
Group received all the remaining balance of HK$3,250,000,000
(2016: HK$2,600,000,000).

On 27th October, 2015, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Million Castle Investments Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Chongging Project
Disposal”). The consideration of the Chongging Project Disposal
was HK$1,750,000,000 of which 15% was received from Shengyu
up to the date of completion of the Chongging Project Disposal. In
accordance with the equity and debt receivable transfer agreement
of the Chongging Project Disposal dated 19th October, 2015, the
remaining 85% of the cash consideration receivable from the
Chongging Project Disposal amounting to HK$1,487,500,000 would
be received in 4 instalments within 24 months from the date of the
disposal agreement. During the year ended 31st December, 2017,
the Group received all the remaining balance of HK$875,000,000
(2016: HK$612,500,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The consideration of the Pioneer Time Disposal was
approximately HK$12,448,280,000 (after adjustment) of which
HK$5,000,000,000 was received from Shengyu up to the date
of completion of the Pioneer Time Disposal. In accordance
with the equity and debt transfer agreement of the Pioneer
Time Disposal dated 12th November, 2015, the remaining
cash consideration receivable from the Pioneer Time Disposal
amounting to approximately HK$7,448,280,000 would be received
in 6 instalments within 6 years from the date of completion
of the Pioneer Time Disposal. During the year ended 31st
December, 2017, the Group received all the remaining balance of
approximately HK$1,748,280,000 (2016: HK$5,700,000,000).

Included in other receivables is the outstanding claim receivable
from Shantou City Chenghai District State-owned Land Resources
Bureau (formerly known as Shantou City Chenghai District Planning
and State-owned Land Resources Bureau) (“Chenghai Bureau”)
with the principal amount of approximately RMB41,540,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$49,694,000) (2016:
RMB43,803,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$48,849,000))
for the recovery of the down payment made by the Group for
the acquisition of the property interests located in Xinxi Town,
Chenghai District, Shantou City, the PRC. The down payment was
fully impaired in prior years. On 5th December, 2012, the Shantou
City Intermediate People’'s Court (“Intermediate Court”) delivered
a judgment in favour of the Group and upheld the majority claims
of the Group. On 26th February, 2014, the High People's Court
of Guangdong Province declared its judgment on 3rd December,
2013, which upheld the ruling of the Intermediate Court and
dismissed the appeals of the Group and Chenghai Bureau, become
effective on 23rd February, 2014. Up to 31st December, 2017, the
Group received RMB13,000,000 (2016: RMB9,000,000) including
the interest as partial satisfaction of the enforcement. Up to the
date of the approval of these consolidated financial statements, the

enforcement of the judgment is still in progress.

28. BWARIR - &€ - HMEWER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29. IEFEBLIE
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets AT 27K 52 B PR 7R 3R 25 HA F) K 38 1F 4 45 B R
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the FHBEBZ TEREHERE (BRRBEE) X
current and prior reporting periods: HEF):
Accelerated
Investment tax
properties depreciation Tax losses Total
RENE  MERERE BEEE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHR FAER FER
At 1st January, 2016 RZZ—"E—A—H 505,939 51,615 (3,254) 554,300
Exchange adjustments R (6) 426 - 420
Charged (credited) to the consolidated REAZERERR
statement of comprehensive income ez (Gt A) 31,671 (79) 1,932 33,524
Disposals of subsidiaries HERERR
(Note 39(f) and (g)) (HEE39(H & () (413,424) (52,646) - (466,070)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—R"E+ZA=1—H 124,180 (684) (1,322) 122,174
Exchange adjustments XA 17 956 (85) 888
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ R4z A 2 ERERE
comprehensive income bl 3,181 4,994 4,875 13,050
Acquisition of assets through acquision ~ EBKE R EA A
of a subsidiary (Note 40) U A & (M7E40) - 22242 (5.989) 16,253
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(a)) HEME AR (H339()) (104,419) - - (104,419)
At 31st December, 2017 R-E-t&+-A=+—H 22,959 27,508 (2,521) 47,946
For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement M BRARE 2] & TREHIER
of financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets EREECFEE SRUBREREIRLTER
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax BiESRDTOT
balances for financial reporting purposes:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIEAE 50,365 124,866
Deferred tax assets IRIEFHIRE B (2.419) (2,692)
47,946 122,174
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29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

DEFERRED TAXATION (contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
major unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability

of the future profit streams.

IERBIAYTE
MR B 18

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's unused tax
losses not recognised of approximately HK$14,624,000
(2016: HK$10,936,000) will expire in one to five years. Other
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely and

subject to the confirmation from the respective tax authority.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@) Pledged deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks and
other financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group. Deposits amounting to approximately
HK$172,972,000 (2016: HK$929,879,000) have been
pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are therefore
classified as current assets. The remaining deposits
amounting to approximately HK$90,541,000 (2016:
HK$13,884,000) have been pledged to secure long-term

borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

The pledged deposits carry interest at prevailing market rates.
The pledged deposits will be released upon the repayment of

relevant borrowings.

29.

30.

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=t ALFE

I FE B IE ()

BOHR 25 E 5K - 7 52 B0 o 5 8 DA TERY SR SRR U D
R T 2 £ SETH AL -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(a66) (565)
(448,167) (468,670)
(448,633) (469,235)

RERE IR REBR —E R FE R HREE
R AEARISEIEL 514,624,000 7T (=
T — X4 110,936,000/ ) - HA K HER
MG EBIE T RIS WESAERG B ®

e

HitEMEE

(a) EHEFEXR
ZEFBEIEERTRITRE & B
B EAGTASEBREEBZENR
#1172,972,0008 L (=T — X F:
929,879,000 7T ) 2 ¥ R EAVE B HA
BEZER U EARBDEE-
# T #990,541,0008 70 (ZZ — /< F ¢
13,884,000/ 7T) 2 T REfE R K BE
B8R BEsBRIERBEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

30. Htt €M EE o8)

(b) Securities trading receivables and deposits (b) EURBHFXZERERTFN

30. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (contd)

EUEFZSEALFREERERAE

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly

amounts due from clearing house, brokers and clients. B BHELRREPRIE-
(c) Time deposits, bank balances and cash (0 EHER RITEHRES

EHMERERE TROTERIELERFMS
ZIERMEGF B -RZE—tF+ A
—Jr*EI GBREZR=ZEAZEHF
& EEH 588,824,000 L (ZFE— X
i-ﬁ) BRTEHAFRN—EARE
HoAREBEWHEBRERFERER - R =
December, 2017, balances of cash and cash equivalents —+tF+ZA=+—H BHeEkRE
amounted to approximately HK$570,578,000 (2016: E(EIE B #2410 /3570,578,000/8 7T
HK$1,070,471,000). (=Z—7<%F :1,070,471,0005 1)

The time deposits and certain bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market deposit rates. As at 31st December,
2017, time deposits with maturity greater than three months
amounted to approximately HK$88,824,000 (2016: nil)
and the remaining was with maturity within one month. The
Group does not hold collateral over the balances. As at 31st

31. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 3. YMEEFE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Completed properties & PR W 5 296,513 415,039
Properties under development held for sale FIEHE 2B RPWE - 858,435
296,513 1,273,474

As at 31st December, 2017 and 2016, the Directors reviewed the RZE—+tFR_ZE—RF+_A=+—8"
EE2ZHRMBRELRBRABEFGEIR

carrying amounts of the completed properties and the properties

under development held for sale with reference to current
market situation and the estimated selling price of the completed
properties and the properties under development held for sale
provided by B.l. Appraisals.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, a write-down of
completed properties of approximately HK$3,830,000 (2016
HK$21,593,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as a result that net realisable values
of certain completed properties were lower than their carrying
amounts.

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, a write-down of
properties under development held for sale of approximately
HK$106,864,000 was made by reference to the net realisable value
of the properties under development held for sale with reference
to estimated selling price that can ultimately be achieved based on
prevailing market conditions, the anticipated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

INVENTORIES

Finished goods SURK
Raw materials R

All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of
approximately HK$2,549,000 (2016: HK$24,879,000).

The following is the aged analysis of trade payables at the end of

the reporting period:

FENTE
AtBRE

0 — 90 days
Over 90 days

32.

33.

1
FE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER THET

1,472 1,677

1,188 1,183

2,660 2,860

AR A R B E M E R R E
518 -

FEAY AR IR I FE =T R

7

ENEREREFHRBEREENESEERY
2,549,000/ 7T ( =& — 7N 4F : 24,879,000/
TL) e

ENEZRENRESHRZRESITOT :

2017 2016
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEx TAT
2,539 965

10 23914

2,549 24,879
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. BORROWINGS 34. B8
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Secured bank borrowings repayable AR THIEREEERE 2 BT
within a period of (note): RITEE (M)
Less than one year —FLAT 2,224,105 246,282
More than one year but within two years —F A BB 105,105 1,287,282
More than two years but within five years ME A FBRBEaRF 2,358,867 1,258,928
More than five years e 1,245,495 1,247,681
5,933,572 4,040,173
Secured bank borrowing that contains repayment  [ff #5 iz EREBIER 2 G EE
on demand clause (shown as current liabilities) IRITEE (GHERBARE)
but repayable within a period of (note): MEZBR T B EE (MRE) -
Less than one year —FATN - 13,159
More than one year but within two years —FU EETBEME - 13,159
More than two years but within five years REE YK ERS el S 665,781 39,475
More than five years HBEAF - 592,136
665,781 657929
Total secured bank borrowings BEBRTEEES 6,599,353 4,698,102
Other secured borrowings repayable within one year R —F NEEZ K G EEEE 9,873,660 9,893,292
16,473,013 14,591,394
Less: Amounts due within one year B — FAEIH 2 E (12,763,546) (10,797,503)
Amounts due after one year —F 1B 2 378 3,709,467 3,793,891
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as Mizt: ZEINMzeBERERBZHERI A
set out in the loan agreement(s). EERHEEH-

The bank borrowings denominated in HK$ are variable-rate NEBTECRITEERFEEE TR X
borrowings which carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 0.70% to BREBRITAEREIM070EE1.00E (=F
1.00% (2016: HIBOR plus 0.70% to 2.00%) per annum. —RF  BABRITEZERSM0.70EE2.002)
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34. BORROWINGS (cont'd)

35.

The borrowings denominated in GBP from banks and a financial
institution are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest ranging
from LIBOR plus 1.08% to 1.62% (2016: LIBOR plus 1.50% to
1.62%) per annum.

Other borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest
at HIBOR plus 1.95% or costs of funds of individual financial
institutions plus 0.25% to 0.75% (2016: HIBOR plus 1.95% or
costs of funds of individual financial institutions plus 0.35% to

0.75%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

than HK$ are set out below:

34. B8

NRBFEZRITRSBEREERZEE
B FRHERREHETRAEREMOSESR
162 (ZE—R"F mARTREHFEM
150EE1.62E)t5 -

HitEERZLMEE FRAXRERBEBRITAZE
2 N1.95E 3 (8 5l & Bl & £ A AR HN0.25
EZ07SE(ZE—RF BERITAZERS
M1.95 B ERE MgEE K AMOISER
0.75/E )&t & -

AEBABTUINERHEZEEHINWT :

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
uss$ ETT 345,036 7,833,888
GBP B 4,837,979 3,317,102
SGD TN T - 211,964
EUR BT - 156,407
5,183,015 11,519,361

PROVISIONS 35. & &
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Provision for rental guarantee: THEBEREE -
At 1st January n—H—H - 1,249
Underprovision in prior years MEFERETR - 160
Reduction during the year RAREE AR - (1,409)
At 31st December R+=—BA=+—H - -
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35.

36.

REMBRRME

PROVISIONS (contd) 35. @
Pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the sale and RIBELEZEWHE 2 EE S LDPTE 2GR R AG
purchase agreements for sales of the Properties, the Group was  RAEEERR I TRMFE (KAEEHE
only required to deliver vacant possession of the Properties to the BAREZNEAA)MDEERFTHZEDWE
Properties Purchasers two years (or, at the right of the Group, for CEBEEAR(IZEEREREE]) K&
a further period of not more than six months) after completion EEERMEEFNEZEEARTEHEAME
("Deferred Vacant Possession Period”). The Group should guarantee WA (TREGABESBAL) (A AR
the Properties Purchasers the monthly rental income (“Guaranteed IRNAR) REBEZZT—R"F+_A=1+—
Monthly Rental Income"), which was payable monthly in arrears, BIEFERN Z2EFEAERAEER-
during the Deferred Vacant Possession Period. The Deferred
Vacant Possession Period had expired during the year ended 31st
December, 2016.
Provision for rental guarantee represented the best estimate by the HekErBEHEEASEEEEN=EERE
management of the Group on the shortfall between the expected Hiz Mgt G AREBEWEP 2 8 WA ER
monthly rental income receivable from tenants and the Guaranteed BEAESWAZZEMEL 2 &EME-
Monthly Rental Income during the Deferred Vacant Possession
Period.
SHARE CAPITAL 36. A
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year MAFEEANARNE 2 RAREBH T
were as follows:
Number of shares Share capital
BRHEE S
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEI0E L LR
Authorised: EERA
At Tst January and 31st December R—A—-Bk+=ZA=+—H 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERRA
At Tst January and 31st December R—A—-BRTZA=+—H 1,907,619,079  1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group entered
into facility agreements with a Director. At the request of the
Group, the Director agreed to make available to the Group
revolving loan facilities of up to GBP105,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,053,570,000) and HK$800,000,000 with their respective
termination date falling within the year ended 31st December, 2017
of which the facilities were fully drawn. The loans were unsecured
and interest-free. The loans had been fully repaid during the year
ended 31st December, 2017.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group further
entered into another facility agreement with the Director. At the
request of the Group, the Director has agreed to make available
to the Group a revolving loan facility of up to HK$2,000,000,000
with termination date falling beyond one year from the end of the
reporting period of which an amount of HK$1,835,500,000 was
drawn. The loan was unsecured and interest-free. The loan would
be repayable after one year from the end of the reporting period
and the amount was therefore shown as non-current. Subsequent

to the end of the reporting period, the loan was fully repaid.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES AND
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to associates and non-controlling shareholders
are unsecured and interest-free. The associates and non-controlling
shareholders will not demand for repayment within one year from
the end of the reporting period and the amounts are therefore

shown as non-current.

37.

38.

EEEX

RBE_ZT—ttF+_A=+—HBLHF
CAREEE-UEFIUBREBRE EAE
SEERK ZEFRAERTAEE LR A
105,000,000 & (48 & 51,053,570,000/%
Jt) %800,000,000/8 ;L2 fEIR B R EE - 5% 55
ENEEREIRR - EXB 2R ILRBAEE
—E—+tFF+ A=+ BLEFERN-ZEE
FEERRES -RBE_T—+tF+=A
=+ HIEFE ZZEXRECTHEER-

e

X

—E—+E+-_A=t+—BLFE"
AEEHRZEFTHIUS DRt EH# 1%
AEFBER ZEFRAERTAEELRA
2,000,000,0008 T 2 BIREHRE EF IR
4 %/41,835,500,0005 7T © EF |- HE AR
HHRB—FR - ZERDEERRE L
BRERREHARE—FRER  WZKIEY
TEIERBIEE - R EEARE  ZEREEBH

g -
REBE D F RIFERRRAK
|

I 2 )R I MR AR SR U R SR I AT

a
MR B - ZEHE N R RIEERBETENIR
EHRE—FREREE  WZEFRBIEIE
i &

B LEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Disposal of the Pinecrest Group to a connected person
on 10th February, 2017

On 5th December, 2016, (i) New Silver Limited (“New
Silver"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
(i) the Company, being the guarantor of New Silver; (iii)
Strong Point Ventures Limited (“Strong Point Ventures”), a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lau, Ming-
wai (“Mr. MW Lau"), being a non-executive Director; and (iv)
Mr. MW Lau, being the guarantor of Strong Point Ventures,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which New Silver agreed to sell and Strong Point Ventures

agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Pinecrest.

The Pinecrest Disposal was completed on 10th February,
2017 at a consideration of approximately HK$352,221,000.
Upon completion, the Pinecrest Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company and its consolidated results,
assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with

those of the Group.

Details of the Pinecrest Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5th December, 2016,
13th January, 2017 and 10th February, 2017 and the circular
of the Company dated 28th December, 2016.
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(@

R-ZE—tF = A+ HHEPinecrestss
EFEEAL

MZZE—"F+=ZAFRH () New Silver
Limited ([New Silver]) (&RAQ R Z—
MHEE2EHEEWNB AR (AR
&) fEANew Silver#E{R A (iii) Strong
Point Ventures Limited ([Strong Point
Ventures | ) (—FIEEBMITEFZIBIE
EE(NRAREXE ) 2ERE=ESR
ZAA])  R(V)BISE LA - 1EAStrong
Point Ventures#& R A 5] —IH B &1
# o ¥t - New Silver[A] & H & K Strong
Point Ventures[a & #8 & Pinecrestz 2 &0

EEITRA

Pinecresttt EMN —ZE—+tF A +H=
B RAE 49 5352,221,000/8 7T ° FA FE L
1% ' Pinecrest R E T HAARRT ZH B A
A HEGAREE BAERBERTHIA
AEBZRAXE EERBER-

Pinecrest! & 2 sFEE &R AR T H
HAE-—ZT-—X E+-_ARAHE —ZE—+
F-A+=AR=ZZT—tHFZA+HZ
AU R=ZE—A"F+=ZA=+/\BZ



39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Disposal of the Pinecrest Group to a connected person (a)

on 10th February, 2017 (Cont'd)

39. HEMHEB 27 @

A-ZE—t 5= A+ HHEPinecrestss

2017
HK$ 000
FET
The consolidated net assets of the Pinecrests B 7 H & A 812
Pinecrest Group as at the date of GEEEFEET
disposal were as follows:
Investment properties (Note 19) wEYE (MEE19) 347,162
Equipment (Note 20) = (KEE20) 22
Debtors, deposits, other receivables JEURERTE e B EURERTE &
and prepayment TAfTRIE 681
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LR 2 5,805
Amount due from the Group REEXREFHIE 289,856
Creditors and accruals FERTERIA R ERT IR (613)
Deposits and receipts in advance e RIBWHIE (13,392)
Tax liabilities MIBEE (281)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29) RIERIE B & (MiFE29) (104,419)
Consolidated net assets disposed of HEGEEEFE 524,821
Release of translation reserve upon disposal R E R R 2 EHEE 409
Assumption of amount due from the Group EEREE KB FHIE (289,856)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 K 114,368
349,742
Satisfied by: ATRHIA A XA
Cash consideration ReRE 352,221
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRX (2,479)
349,742
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEREEZRERAFRE:
Cash consideration RERE 352,221
Settled by special interim dividend (note) (Note 42)  PARFRI R HARR B 3+ (KIsE) (FI7¥42) (240,786)
Net cash consideration received BN REFRE 111,435
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAX (2.479)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHEZRITEHB LIRS (5.805)
103,151

Pinecrestiti & 2 s O 5T AR & 2 E U K
Z E Ao e K B 1R R (M RE12(3) ) A e

The gain on the Pinecrest Disposal was included in other
gains and losses, net (Note 12(i)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(a)

(b)

Disposal of the Pinecrest Group to a connected person
on 10th February, 2017 (Cont'd)

Note: Strong Point Ventures has elected to settle the
consideration by procuring the entitlement of each of
Global King (PTC) Ltd. (“Global King”) and Joseph Lau
Luen Hung Investments Limited (“JLLHIL"), both were
shareholders of the Company, on the special interim
dividend (Note 17(c)) in an amount of approximately
HK$240,786,000.

Disposal of the Win Kings Group to a connected

person on 10th February, 2017

On 5th December, 2016, (i) Paul Y. Holdings Company
Limited (“Paul Y."), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; (ii) the Company, being the guarantor of Paul
Y.; (iii) Creative Dragon Ventures Limited (“Creative Dragon
Ventures”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (“Ms. HW Chan"), being an associate
of three Directors (Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. Chan, Lok-wan
and Mr. MW Lau) and an associate of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau”), the then substantial shareholder
and controlling shareholder of the Company, at the time of
entering into the agreement; and (iv) Ms. HW Chan, being
the guarantor of Creative Dragon Ventures, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Paul Y. agreed
to sell and Creative Dragon Ventures agreed to acquire the

entire issued share capital of Win Kings.

The Win Kings Disposal was completed on 10th February,
2017 at a consideration of approximately HK$889,554,000.
Upon completion, the Win Kings Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company and its consolidated results,
assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with

those of the Group.

Details of the Win Kings Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5th December, 2016,
13th January, 2017 and 10th February, 2017 and the circular
of the Company dated 28th December, 2016.
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39. HEMHEB 27 @

(a

(b)

A-ZE—t 5= A+ HHEPinecrestss
BFEEAL (B)

FisE : Strong Point Venturesi# 1% {2 & Global
King (PTC) Ltd. ([Global King ) &
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments
Limited ([JLLHIL D) (EFHABAR
A2 R ) AR B 2 R Rl R B B
170 BIEXNRE &5
#)/%240,786,00078 7T ©

R=Z—tHF=F+ B HEWin Kings&
EFEEAL

RZE—X"F+ZAARAB (@) Paul V.
Holdings Company Limited ([Paul Y.])
(RRARz—HEEZEREWNB A
Al (i)ARRF - ERPaul YHERA
(iii) Creative Dragon Ventures Limited
([ Creative Dragon Ventures |) (—
PReVaE £ (TRRElEB ) (RARETL
ZhaRA=NES (ARFEZL R
mHER T RERESE) ZIE ARSI
WA ([RIEERE]) (RRRERZ
TERRREBRBRER) 2HBEA)2ER
ERBEAZRAR)  R(GVRIE L
1 & Creative Dragon Ventures¥#&{R A » &1
S —HEE W B Paul YEEHE
X2 Creative Dragon Ventures[d] & B8 & Win
Kingsz & #B 2 B fTAR 7K -

Win Kings HER ZZ—+F A +HT
B - R B4 /3889,554,0007% 7T ° B T AKX
f& - Win Kings&e BB AR R E 2 WE
NE BEiRA¥E EERBES B
AREEiGEa¥E BERAGBRA-

Win Kingsthi & 2 #H 15 B2 #FI N AR A R
MAE-_T— "Ft+t-_AAR-—T—+
F-—A+=AR=_ZT—+F=-_A+AHZ
PAUNERZE—A"F+ZAZ+NBZ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Disposal of the Win Kings Group to a connected

person on 10th February, 2017 (Cont'd)

The consolidated net assets of the Win Kings Group
as at the date of disposal were as follows:

Stock of properties

Deposits and prepayments

Bank balance

Creditors and accruals

Amount due to the Group

Consolidated net assets disposed of
Sale of amount due to the Group
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
Cash consideration
Settled by special interim dividend (note) (Note 42)

Net cash consideration received
Expenses incurred for disposal
Bank balance disposed of

The gain on the Win Kings Disposal was included in other

gains and losses, net (Note 12(ii)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Note: Creative Dragon Ventures has elected to settle the

39. HEMHEB 27 @

(b)

R=—ZE—tF= A+ A HEWin Kings&
EFEEAL (B)

2017
HK$'000
FERT

Win Kings& EIA & B 82

SEEEFENT

MEFE

me RIANFOR
RITHEER

JE A5 BR TR I e R R
REAREE R

ARSI R A
RERE
HEMEEZRAX

859,061
1,048
1,291

(2.434)

(624,967)

233,999
624,967
28,958

887,924

889,554
(1,630)

887,924

HEREEZRSRAIFRE

RERE

LARF R BB S (BERE) (PidEE42)

BYRSREFR
HERES 2R X
EHE ZRITHER

consideration by procuring the entitlement of each
of Global King and JLLHIL on the special interim
dividend (Note 17(c)) in an amount of approximately

HK$615,342,000.

889,554
(615,342)

274,212
(1.630)
(1.291)

271,291

Win Kingsti & 2 Wzt 5t AfR G 2 i
Rz EMes REEER (ME126))Ae

Creative Dragon Venturesi# 122 {# Global
King RJLLHILLA & B 2 15 5l 1 BR AR S 8
MOHEE17(0)) BIEXNRE &8O
£615,342,000/% 7T

“E-LHEFHR  EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(

Disposal of Great Captain to a connected person on
23rd June, 2017

On 15th March, 2017, (i) China Entertainment and Land
Investment Company, Limited (“CELIC"), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the Company, being
the guarantor of CELIC; (iii) Perfect Sign Investments Limited
("Perfect Sign"), a company wholly and beneficially owned by
Ms. HW Chan, being an executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as trustee for her two minor
children); and (iv) Ms. HW Chan, being the guarantor of
Perfect Sign, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which CELIC agreed to sell and Perfect Sign
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Great
Captain Limited (“Great Captain”), an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company (“Great Captain Disposal”).

The Great Captain Disposal was completed on 23rd June,
2017 at a consideration of approximately HK$5,567,687,000.
Upon completion, Great Captain ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company and its results, assets and liabilities were

ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Details of the Great Captain Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 15th March, 2017,
4th May, 2017 and 23rd June, 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 13th April, 2017.
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VBT ° A FEAK 1% © Great Captain ™ B A4
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39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(9

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disposal of Great Captain to a connected person on

23rd June, 2017 (Cont'd)

The net assets of Great Captain as at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Financial asset measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Other receivable

Borrowing (Note 42)

Amount due to the Group

Net assets disposed of
Sale of amount due to the Group

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration

Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
Cash consideration

Settled by special interim dividend (note) (Note 42)

Net cash consideration received
Expenses incurred for disposal

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

(9

39. HEMHEB 27 @

R=Z—tH XA =+=HHHEGreat
Captain FEAE A £ (&)

2017
HK$'000
FERT
Great Captaini® H & HE 2
BEEFEET
BBHMEPERZURBAFEFEZ
CRIEE 6,685,708
Eh fE U AR IR 146,696
BE (Msra2) (1,264,717)
REAREEFRIE (5.501,013)
HEEEFE 66,674
HEXBAREEKRIE 5,501,013
5,567,687
ATRA AR A
RBeRE 5,567,687
PERELEZESRAFE:
RERE 5,567,687
LARFRI AR BARR B 32 1+ (PR aE) (BffaE42) (4,163,339)
BUFReREFE 1,404,348
HEMEEZHAX (1.687)
1,402,661

Note: Perfect Sign has elected to settle the consideration by
procuring the entitlement of each of Solar Bright Ltd,
JLLHIL and Century Frontier Limited, all are shareholders
of the Company, on the special interim dividend (Note
17(d)) in an amount of approximately HK$4,163,339,000.

Union Wings Disposal on 24th July, 2017

(d

On 24th July, 2017, the Group disposed of its entire issued
share capital and amount due to the Group in Union Wings to

an independent third party.

The Union Wings Disposal was completed on 24th July, 2017
at a consideration of HK$800,000. Upon completion, Union

Wings ceased to be a subsidiary of the

Company and its

results, assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated

with those of the Group.

Pist: Perfect Signi& 2 {2 {Solar Bright

Ltd. ~ JLLHILX Century Frontier
Limited (1 &9 R AR A 2K E)
AR B 2 il BRAR B R (B o
17(d)) BEZRRE ©BHR
4,163,339,000/% JT ©

R-E—tHFLtA-tTNAZREHE
N-E

Z—t+FLA-+THBR AEEM
BYF=NHEENER 2 2B ET
A RR B AREBHIA-

REHER - T—+HFLtA=-+MAR
B - A {8 A5800,000/8 T - R ek 1 » i&
KTrBAARRz —EMBAR HZ
B EERABECTBITAREEZLR
ARE - BERAGBAN-

“E-LHEFHR  EABXEE
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REMBRRME

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd) 39. thEKH B LR
(d) Union Wings Disposal on 24th July, 2017 (Cont'd) d R-SZ—tFLtA-THAZERLHE
()
2017
HK$'000
FET
The net liability of Union Wings as at BERNHERBZ
the date of disposal was as follows: BEFEWNT
Equipment (Note 20) 4 (FsE20) -
Amount due to the Group RBAREEKIE (721)
Net liability disposed of HEBBERE (721)
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXRBAREBEFRIE 721
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — I B A Rl 2 e 800
800
Satisfied by: ATF A A
Cash consideration RERE 800
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEREEZRESRAFRE:
Cash consideration received BN RE 800
The gain on the Union Wings Disposal was included in other REHE 2 WERE T AGE 2 E WG ]
gains and losses, net (Note 12(iii)) in the consolidated 2 Bt K BRI ER (FIRE12(Gi) ) A e
statement of comprehensive income.
(e) Pioneer Time Disposal on 15th January, 2016 (e) M=F—RHF— A+ 75 HZPioneer

On 12th November, 2015, Great System Investment Limited
(“Great System”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Shengyu entered into an equity and debt
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Great System agreed
to sell and Shengyu agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Pioneer Time.

The Pioneer Time Disposal was completed on 15th
January, 2016 at a consideration of approximately
HK$12,448,280,000 (after adjustment). Upon completion,
Pioneer Time ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
and its results, assets and liabilities were ceased to be
consolidated with those of the Group.

Details of the Pioneer Time Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 12th November,
2015 and 15th January, 2016 and the circular of the
Company dated 3rd December, 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd) 39. HEMEB 28 o
(e) Pioneer Time Disposal on 15th January, 2016 (Cont'd) (e) MZ=ZF—/<%¥—H+XHHZPioneer
Timei & (4&)
2016
HK$'000
FHET
The net assets of Pioneer Time as at Pioneer Time & B #f 2
the date of disposal were as follows: BEEFEET
Investment properties LA 8,657,600
Property, plant and equipment L ER NG 505,585
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and FEUERIE - 12 & HitbBUEBRIA KX
prepayments Ta I8 5,006
Bank balances and cash WITHHB LIRS 554
Creditors and accruals FE AT BRI ] FE R 3RIE (1,268)
Deposits and receipts in advance B& R IEWRIE (54,249)
Tax liabilities MIEAE (1,763)
Deferred tax liabilities EERRIBAE (17,651)
Amount due to the Group REAREEFKIE (1,053,961)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 8,039,853
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXBREBRIE 1,053,961
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEHBRARZWZR 1,276,903
10,370,717
Satisfied by: ATEIFA AT
Cash consideration received BWRERE 5,000,000
Present value of deferred consideration (note) EEREZBE (M) 5,372,854
10,372,854
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAX (2,137)
10,370,717
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEREEZRESMAE:
Cash consideration HeRE 12,448,280
Cash consideration receivable (note) FEWR @R E (FIE) (7,448,280)
Deposit received in prior year BEFEDRERRS (1,250,000)
Cash consideration received BUWRERE 3,750,000
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAX (2,137)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEZRITEHREES (554)
3,747,309

—z—tE5gR  #ABzss 231



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZE =T —tF+-A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd) 39. HEMB QR
(e) Pioneer Time Disposal on 15th January, 2016 (Cont'd) (e) MZ=ZF—/<%¥—H+XHHZPioneer
Timet & (48)
The gain on the Pioneer Time Disposal was included in Pioneer Timet & 2 W m B st Afra 2 H
other gains and losses, net (Note 12(iv)) in the consolidated U g s 7% 2 Bt W a5 K B 48 5 RE (P =%
statement of comprehensive income. 12(iv) ) A °
Note: The deferred consideration represented the consideration Mist: IRIE(E Ty REPIoneer TimetH &
of approximately HK$7,448,280,000 receivable in cash in FEAK B BN N 7S HALATR & WER
6 instalments within 6 years from the date of completion 2 FEU R B #)7,448,280,0007% JT ©
of the Pioneer Time Disposal. During the year ended 31st REE-ZT—+tF+=-A=+—H
December, 2017, the Group received all the remaining IHFE AEBESBEREHRELY
balance of approximately HK$1,748,280,000 (2016: 1,748,280,000/8 7t ( —ZZE— 7~ 4F:
HK$5,700,000,000). 5,700,000,000/ 7T.)
(f) Evergo Shanghai Disposal on 22nd June, 2016 f) R-SB-XREXAZ+ZHZEESL
BHE
On 19th May, 2016, Digi-Star Limited, an indirect wholly- RZZE—R"FRATILA HFEFR
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity RE(ARRlz —FHEE2EREWE
transfer agreement with an independent third party to RNE)HEBIE =R —EREEE
dispose of the entire issued share capital of Evergo Shanghai. mE HEEES LB E2HBBEITR
P
The Evergo Shanghai Disposal was completed on 22nd FEERLBHERZ_Z-RERX
June, 2016 at a consideration equivalent to approximately AZ+ZBZK REMBEERLD
HK$1,355,843,000. Upon completion, Evergo Shanghai 1,355,843,0008 L - Nk B B XS
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and its results, FBTERARA —MNELAR K
assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with ¥FH BERAGEITHFALREERZ
those of the Group. mAEXEBE BERBER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 39. HEMHEB 27 @

() Evergo Shanghai Disposal on 22nd June, 2016 (Cont'd) ) RZZB-—RFEAA=ZT+-HZEESLE

BHE (B)

2016
HK$'000
FET
The net assets of Evergo Shanghai as at FERLOBREERRZ
the date of disposal were as follows: BEFREMAT
Investment properties (Note 19) wEWE (MF19) 1,037,057
Equipment (Note 20) =t (MFEE20) 195
Debtors, deposits, other receivables FEUWERIE - 12 &  Hit EULERIA KX
and prepayments FER RIB 1,527
Tax recoverable CIRqEEEN 185
Bank balances and cash WITEHR RS 49,168
Creditors and accruals FEAT BRI R FE ST RIB (9,289)
Deposits and receipts in advance E& RIBYGKIE (17,328)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29) RIEFR IR A& (M3E29) (438,081)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 623,434
Release of translation reserve upon disposal B R 2 B R & E 9,053
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — B A R 2 s 721,294
1,353,781
Satisfied by: PR IPESZE
Cash consideration HeRE 1,355,843
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRX (2,062)
1,353,781
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEREELEZRESMAFE:
Cash consideration BeRE 1,355,843
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAX (2,062)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEZRITEHREES (49,168)
1,304,613
The gain on the Evergo Shanghai Disposal was included in Fxm BHEZ KRB ALKEEE
other gains and losses, net (Note 12(v)) in the consolidated ek ¥ = 2 E U s R & 18F 58 (M &
statement of comprehensive income. 12(v) ) A e
—E-tEER  EAB$£m 233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(8)

Disposal of the Windsor Group to connected persons
on 1st September, 2016

On 23rd December, 2015, (i) CELIC; (ii) the Company, being
the guarantor of CELIC; (iii) Magic Square Limited (“Magic
Square”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau, the
then substantial shareholder and controlling shareholder of
the Company, at the time of entering into the agreement;
and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Magic Square,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which CELIC agreed to sell and Magic Square agreed to

acquire the entire issued share capital of Keep Speed.

On the same date, (i) Good Top Limited (“Good Top"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the
Company, being the guarantor of Good Top; (iii) Best Range
Limited (“Best Range"”), a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor
of Best Range, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
("Windsor SP Agreement”), pursuant to which Good Top
agreed to sell and Best Range agreed to acquire the entire

issued share capital of Jumbo Grace.

The Windsor Disposal was completed on 1st September,
2016 at a total consideration of approximately
HK$6,187,432,000. Upon completion, the Windsor
Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company and its
consolidated results, assets and liabilities were ceased to be

consolidated with those of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(8)

Disposal of the Windsor Group to connected persons
on 1st September, 2016 (Cont'd)

Upon completion of the Windsor Disposal, the Group
recorded gain on disposals of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$312,930,000. The gain was mainly derived from
(i) the decrease in fair value of the investment properties
of approximately HK$343,763,000 due to revaluation of
the investment properties as at 30th June, 2016 (which
was carried out in accordance with the Group's accounting
policies on revaluation of the Group's investment properties
as at reporting date) as compared with the property
valuation under the Windsor SP Agreement (of which gain
of HK$72,000,000 was recognised in 2015 and loss of
approximately HK$415,763,000 was recognised in 2016);
(if) additions of investment properties during the year ended
31st December, 2016 of approximately HK$26,797,000;
and (iii) increase in fair value of the club debenture of
HK$2,200,000 due to the revaluation of the financial assets
measured at FVTPL as at 30th June, 2016 (which was carried
out in accordance with the Group's accounting policies on
revaluation of the Group's financial assets measured at FVTPL
as at reporting date) as compared with the valuation under

the Windsor SP Agreement.

Details of the Windsor Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 23rd December,
2015, 2nd February, 2016, 1st September, 2016 and 5th
October, 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 15th
January, 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(8)

Disposal of the Windsor Group to connected persons (g)

on 1st September, 2016 (Cont'd)

The consolidated net assets of the Windsor Group
as at the date of disposal were as follows:

Investment properties (Note 19)

Equipment (Note 20)

Financial asset measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Debtors, deposits, other receivables
and prepayments

Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

Amount due from the Group

Creditors and accruals

Deposits and receipts in advance

Tax liabilities

Borrowing

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29)

Amount due to the Group

Consolidated net assets disposed of

Sale of amount due to the Group
Assumption of amount due from the Group
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
Cash consideration
Settled by special interim dividend (note)

Net cash consideration received
Expenses incurred for disposal
Bank balances and cash disposed of
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B H & Windsorsk

2016
HK$'000
TAET

10,483,034
1,084

15,000

71,107

181,902

14,412

4,624,834
(22,456)
(228,163)
(30,265)
(4,585,000)
(27,989)
(2,550,592)

7,946,908
2,550,592
(4,624,834)

312,930

6,185,596

6,187,432
(1,836)

6,185,596

6,187,432

(4,320,773)

1,866,659
(1,836)
(14,412)

1,850,411



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(g) Disposal of the Windsor Group to connected persons
on 1st September, 2016 (Cont'd)

The gain on the Windsor Disposal was included in other gains
and losses, net (Note 12(vi)) in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

Note: Best Range has elected to settle the consideration by
procuring the entitlement of each of Global King and
JLLHIL on the special interim dividend (Note 17(g)) in an
amount of approximately HK$4,320,773,000.

40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 5th May, 2017 (London time), the Group acquired a property
located in the United Kingdom and its related assets and
liabilities by way of acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Knightlights Property International S.A. ("KPI") (“Acquisition”).
The Acquisition was completed on 5th May, 2017 (London
time) at a cash consideration of approximately GBP96,830,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$965,984,000) and repayment of
loan due to former shareholder on behalf of KPI of approximately
GBP77,049,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$773,106,000).
KPI holds a mixed use freehold building located in 11 and 12
St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard, London, the
United Kingdom. Details of the Acquisition were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 7th May, 2017.

Under HKFRSs, the Acquisition was accounted for as an acquisition
of assets and liabilities as KPI being acquired by the Group does
not constitute an acquisition of business. The Group identified and
recognised the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The cost of the Acquisition was allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values as at the date of acquisition. Such a transaction does not give

rise to goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 40. ZBWEE —EHWEB AR WEE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (contd) - 3C))
2017
HK$°000
FEx
The net assets of KP! as at the date of KPIA W EE B E 2 B EFEW T ¢
acquisition were as follows:
Investment properties (Note 19) wEWE (M19) 1,779,563
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments FEUARTE - &4« Hih YR RFE T R IE 22,108
Bank balances RATAE R 65,619
Creditors and accruals FEAT BRI K FE ST FRIB (8,565)
Deposits and receipts in advance Be RBWHIE (86,761)
Tax liabilities HMIRAE (273)
Loan due to former shareholder REARRER (773,106)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29) RIERTE A & (FIFE29) (16,253)
Net assets acquired Whs & EFE 982,332
Repayment of loan due to former shareholder BERENKRRER 773,106
1,755,438
Consideration for acquisition: R ME
Cash consideration ReRE 965,984
Repayment of loan due to former shareholder BEEXAMNKRRER 773,106
Expenses incurred for acquisition WHEFE £ 2 X 16,348
1,755,438
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: W EE 4 2 B R H 3R -
Cash consideration paid ERRENRE 965,984
Repayment of loan due to former shareholder BEREANKRRER 773,106
Expenses incurred for acquisition WRE FTEE & 2 P2 16,348
Bank balances acquired B 2 IR1T A8 (65.619)

There was no acquisition of assets through acquisition of a

subsidiary during the year ended 31st December, 2016.

1,689,819

REBEEZZT—A"F+A=+—HLFE I

EEBRE-—HMEARKBEE-
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41.

42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=t ALFE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 4. TEFRERH
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial B 7R AR & B s R 3k H 4t 2B /\&TY FiikEEE
statements and below, the Group did not have major non-cash SN REBEVWEREFEIFBSZ
transactions.
During the year ended 31st December, 2016, distributions from REZE_Z—RE+_RA=+—HLFEA"
associates of approximately HK$1,810,252,000 had been settled Bt & N A 2 9k 491,810,252,0005% JT LA % 38
through the current accounts with the respective associates. BEBEBERAZERRIBEN-
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42. REXBFELEEE2HE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TEREIAEERMEXBAEEZABEY
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. HE BREAESMFRcEE @ EEBME
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EZ EEREHRERERARKRE SRS
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified as cash flows from ERAEBEZHREREERERADEARM
financing activities in the Group's consolidated statement of cash éf%i%ﬁ ErzRenEzBE REEEEE
flows. Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments FHERIE 7SR 2 &) [ BB 2 @E B
to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”, the Group has not disclosed AEBUVERE F—FENLRER -
comparative information for the prior year.
Amounts
due to non-
Loan from  controlling Dividend Interest
Borrowings  adirector shareholders payable payable Total
REFER
g EZEX RRFE ERRE FEHFIS ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER TER FhL TRL TEL
At 1st January, 2017 W-E—tF-A-H 14,591,394 - 84,761 - 14,426 14,690,581
Financing cash flows RERLHE 2717655 1,840,530 (25000  (4747543)  (232819)  (a47171)
Exchange adjustments 5 428,681 (5,030) - - 1,121 424,178
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBAR
(Note 39(c)) (FEE39(c)) (1,264,717) - - - - (1,264,717)
Dividends declared ERRE - - - 9,767,010 - 9,767,010
Settlements of considerations of disposals of ~ fRE AL AR &I
subsidiaries by procuring the entitlements BRI S A
of shareholders of the Company on special XATHENBRRAZRE
interim dividends (Note 39(a), (b) and (c)) (F13E39(2) ()R (<)) - - - (5019,467) - (5019,467)
Total interest (Note 11) MEesE (fn) - - - - 234,771 234,171
Other changes Hih - - (10,559) - - (10,559)
At 31st December, 2017 RZE-tF+-A=1-H 16,473,013 1,835,500 49,202 - 17505 18,375,220
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
assets pledged by the Group to secure general banking and other

EEERH

RBERR  AEESREGAHAEESH A
—RBITLEMEFRBENREFR MK

loan facilities and to secure the securities transactions, granted to Wz EBERMESTET
the Group are analysed as follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Investment properties REMHE 14,234,322 10,231,402
Stock of properties MEFE - 858,435
Financial assets measured at fair value BRBEEUARMATETFEZ
through profit or loss SREE 10,738,743 14,952,866
Financial assets measured at fair value 3 308 HL 2 TR U 2 DA e gk
through other comprehensive income NEEHFEZSHEE 22,437,896 3,760,400
Non-current pledged deposits FEMENEIRF K 90,541 13,884
Current pledged deposits ENEIRER 172,972 929,879
47,674,474 30,746,866

As at 31st December, 2017 and 2016, interests in certain
subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged as part of the
security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group.

RIB—+ER - T—RE+-A=+—8"
ARBNRETHBAR 2R ERER/R
SEERETRITEE ZMBOEMR-

44, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, B R EIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised and contracted for: BEHERBEL:

Renovation of properties B 2,111 5,656
Capital investment in limited partnership (note) BREBREEZERKE (H:T) 119,224 125,434

Development expenditure of properties BEMFEERAX
in Hong Kong - 15,026
121,335 146,116

Note: The Group had committed to make a capital contribution of
US$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$781,680,000)
in the Cayman lIslands Partnership. Up to the end of the
reporting period, approximately US$84,748,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$656,936,000) (2016: US$83,825,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$649,768,000)) among the
contribution has been paid by the Group. The outstanding
amount was approximately US$15,252,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$119,224,000, after exchange adjustment)
(2016: US$16,175,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$125,434,000, after exchange adjustment)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R MisE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

45 FIRBEBEREE

Contingent Liabilities RAREE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of BB N RERBITEAZRIT
banking facilities in lieu of the cash public FEERUREBERSARER
utility deposit jointly utilised by subsidiaries fFamm—ERITIR M 2 &R 15,000 15,000
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of REEZREAFESART
banking facilities utilised by SEEmm—ERTREZ
an investee company EiR 5,025 -
20,025 15,000

No provision for financial guarantee contracts have been made as
at 31st December, 2017 and 2016 as the Directors considered the

default risk is low.

Contingent Assets

Post-completion development upside sharing or

compensation upside sharing on the case of Moon Ocean

On 1st September, 2014, (i) Data Dynasty Limited (“Data
Dynasty”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
(ii) the Company, being the guarantor of Data Dynasty; (iii) One
Midland Limited (“One Midland"), a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of
One Midland, entered into a sale and purchase agreement, namely
“Moon Ocean SP Agreement’, pursuant to which Data Dynasty
agreed to sell and One Midland agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Value Eight Limited ("Value Eight"), Value Eight held
investments relating to the Macau Land (as defined below) through

Moon Ocean Ltd. (“Moon Ocean”) (“Moon Ocean Disposal”).

HREFRRENRRE BN _F—tFR
CE-RET A=+ -RUERTBHER
BRELBE-

R Moon OceanZE 5t 5 # 59 % 7 15 B (B 50 ##
& 71512 E

WZZ—MFENAA—H (i) Data Dynasty
Limited ([Data Dynasty]) (AR F]Z—
HE2EBRBWNELRR): (VARA 1A
Data Dynasty#£4R A : (i) One Midland Limited
(TOne Midland |) (—FEHHREZKEEELE
WAz AR R(v)PIE S £ YEAONe
MidlandZ®R A sl —HEEWHZ (B R
[Moon Ocean& Ei#a% ) © #&1k - Data Dynasty
A% & &kOne MidlandE % % B Value Eight
Limited ([Value Eight|)Z & &85 21T AN -
Value Eighti# #Moon Ocean Ltd. ([Moon
Ocean ) HABBRMI L (FERTX)Z
#% & ([Moon Ocean! &) °
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS 45. FARABBREE @

(Cont'd)
Contingent Assets (Cont'd)

Post-completion development upside sharing or
compensation upside sharing on the case of Moon Ocean
(Cont'd)

Subject to completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal on 31st
October, 2014, (a) if judgments are made in favour of Moon Ocean
in the appeals to its legal case in the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (“Macau”) (“Appeals”) and have become final
and the title to the Macau land previously held by Moon Ocean
("Macau Land") is vested on Moon Ocean again, One Midland shall
pay to Data Dynasty the development upside sharing pursuant to
the Moon Ocean SP Agreement; or (b) if judgments are made
against Moon Ocean in the Appeals and have become final, One
Midland shall pay to Data Dynasty the compensation upside sharing

pursuant to the Moon Ocean SP Agreement.

The Appeals comprise (i) the appeal against the Chief Executive
of Macau's declaration of the previous act of the Chief Executive
of Macau in confirming the approval of the transfers of the rights
deriving from the land concession for the Macau Land to Moon
Ocean and the amendments of the related land concession
contracts in March 2006 invalid (“First Decision Appeal”); and (ii)
the appeal against the notice from the Land, Public Works and
Transport Bureau of Macau that the Chief Executive of Macau
declared the previous act of approval of the increase of residential
gross floor area of the Macau Land and an exchange of land in
March 2011 by the Chief Executive of Macau was invalid (“Second
Decision Appeal”).

The arrangement of the development upside sharing or the
compensation upside sharing (as the case may be) allows the
Group to share the possible upside or compensation in relation to
the Macau Land and the La Scala project post completion of the

Moon Ocean SP Agreement.
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HREE (B)

R Moon OceanZE 5t 5 # 59 % 7 15 B E 54 ##
1& 715151 (&)

MRZZ—PF+ A =+—H5MKMoon Ocean
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FRIfTHE (DR R L&/ ([EF] 2
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

(Cont'd)

Contingent Assets (Cont'd)

Post-completion development upside sharing or
compensation upside sharing on the case of Moon Ocean
(Cont'd)

The aggregate amount of all the development upside sharing or the
compensation upside sharing (as the case may be) payable by One
Midland to Data Dynasty shall be subject to a maximum amount of
HK$12,500,000,000.

The Directors consider the aggregate amount of all the
development upside sharing or the compensation upside sharing
(as the case may be) payable by One Midland to Data Dynasty and
the maximum amount of HK$12,500,000,000 for the development
upside sharing or the compensation upside sharing (as the
case may be) are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Last Instance Court of Macau denied the First Decision Appeal
in its judgment on 22nd June, 2016. Up to the date of the approval
of these consolidated financial statements, the Second Decision

Appeal is still in progress.

Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal, the development upside
sharing and the compensation upside sharing were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 2nd September, 2014 and

the circular of the Company dated 23rd September, 2014.

45 FIRBBREE »

HREE (B)

R Moon OceanZE 5t 5 # 59 % 7 15 B E 54 ##
1& 715151 (&)

One Midlandf& f<f Data Dynasty.2 FT 8 B2 1k
BENIMESEE(RBRAMT) BB &
=4 %4 412,500,000,000% T °

EE#R A0ne MidlandfE+ FData DynastyZ
FTERESIHISERFMESHIGE (RER
e ) 4858 LA R B D S E Sk (E D5 1EE
(BRI RME) Z &= < §12,500,000,0007%
TBAFAE WHEARRRARABIREZ
R Rz

BPIREERR - RNFANAZT BN
RAPBEIE —RORTE L5 - BLERERG S M
BIEZBEH - F RORTE LR INEETE R -

Moon Oceantti & « F 3 D (R L E REE DG
EEZFBEEHIRAATBSHA =T —N
FNA-RAZARE-_E—NFHLA_-+=
HZ@EA -
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46. OPERATING LEASES 46. E XML
The Group as lessee AEBRABEA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Minimum lease payments paid under operating REEBEAMEZEERLY
leases in respect of premises during the year X AT 2 IR & R E 42,567 41,690
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for R|EBR NEBB A REEEELN 2K
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating REAET & TR 2 AR T I B 2 B
leases, which fall due as follows:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year F—FNA 40,123 43,697
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF (BEEERME) 1,689 42,903
41,812 86,600
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group EEBAEEASEREETEFTEYE
for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an B zHe HOTHE—Z2=F(ZF—RX
average term of one to three (2016: one to three) years. F—Z=ZF)@HE R

244  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZZ

46. OPERATING LEASES (contd)

47.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$505,743,000 (2016: HK$823,856,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$14,202,000 (2016: HK$46,469,000).

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate
annual rental yields of 1.85% to 4.71% (2016: 1.60% to 8.67%)
on an ongoing basis. Most of the properties held in Hong Kong
have committed tenants ranged from two to three years and those

held in the United Kingdom have committed tenants over five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year E—FNR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

RTFENRE

Over five years

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme"”) and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme"). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the
Group are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging
from 5% to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the
employees. From 1st December, 2000, newly joined employees
are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the

scheme at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$10,030,000 (2016:
HK$9,799,000) represented contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group for the year.

E_EFLF (REREEMT)

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=t ALFE

46. EEEN @

AEBR/EEA

RAFERBDz2WEHRSKRADNDAR
505,743,000/ 7T ( =& — /<4 : 823,856,000
EIT)  HERBI X 49 514,202,00008 7T (= Z
— N4 46,469,000/ 7T) °

REE 2K EYETEAFHFERETE1.85%
F4.71% (ZF—XF 1 1.60%%E8.67% ) 2 1
SR RFDMURNEBYHE 2B AER
AEHEME=FRAFUAEEYWEZE
FPRERRATFHEBRASF -

R|ERR AEER BB TIIRKRE
MR :

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx THET

508,770 412,293

918,042 1,065,247

430,602 979,524

1,857,414 2,457,064

47. BRIRERFHE

AEE2EBEBRERFORREZBER
REHE (TR R8I ]) RGBS
g ([fEeat8l]) - N MR B X RKGE
TEH B B % Bl 2 5% % 10%#t 3 (1R T (& B iR
BFEE) A-_TETTHFE+_A-RBEMAR
SEZHEEBHASMBRESE - BEIRE
BT REESF IR AT Z L R -

REE2HRERRNBZEREEOR
10,030,000/ 7T ( =& — /X4 : 9,799,000/%
7T)  BIARERAFE R ZEF SR 2 #

o
N

“E-LHEFHR  EABXEE
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48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. EXBBEA LR S

Transactions:

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

Income received from associates:
Secretarial fee
Management fee
Interest income
Accountancy fee
Consultancy fee

Income received from a then substantial shareholder
and controlling shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder")/Directors and/or
a substantial shareholder of the Company
(as trustee)/close family members of Directors and/
or a substantial shareholder of the Company
(as trustee)/companies controlled by the then
Controlling Shareholder/companies controlled
by Directors and/or a substantial shareholder of
the Company (as trustee)/companies controlled
by close family members of the then Controlling
Shareholder/companies controlled by a close family
member of Directors and/or a substantial shareholder
of the Company (as trustee)/a company of
which a Director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company (as trustee) is a member of
the key management personnel:

Rental services

Property management services, leasing administration
services and property administration services

Asset management and maintenance services

Advisory and consultancy services

Other ordinary services

Licence fee received from companies controlled
by the then Controlling Shareholder/companies
controlled by a close family member of the then
Controlling Shareholder

Licence fee and building management fee paid to
companies controlled by a close family member of

the then Controlling Shareholder/companies controlled

by a Director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company (as trustee)

1

\5:

><\

BB E AR Z WA

WEER
ERE
LS A
St E
BERE

Bl —ARRERZ EERERIE Hxﬂx?
([ERRE]) EER/ AR
TERR(EREBREA) /Eﬁ%%
&/izﬁnﬁigﬁﬁ(f’ﬁtﬂf?/\)
BEEDZRERKE /&R

[REE /N 7/§$&/Y4‘
FTERR(ERGEIEA)EHZA 7/
HERZERRREARR fﬂZ%B:J%Ei
2H 2 NA M HEERREA
TERF (ERGEIANBERED L
REKBEHZAR,/ —NEER
ERAAEERR (EREFEA) BEZAF
ZEEERBRASZHA:

HERH

MEEERS  BHTHRRBE R
METHRS

ﬁé%‘@& RERE

A LA R

Hith— ik

B E R 2R ERES 2 AR,

(I EBE R RRRREREZ
KEKBEH 2 RRZFHFAE

BN RN ERERBERZ

FKERBEH 21 7/%%&4? T
IEER (EREFEAEHZA
ZHAANERBTERE
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TETUTEARS:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
10 10
48 48
2,105 2,178
120 120
189 225
11,350 21,275
52,155 40,371
386 2,354
46 306
4,101 -
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48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. ERBEALRSZ @

(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd) x5 (&)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRAER & BT T 3Rk H At E‘ PR &S A&
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with ENAFEREEALTETUTERRS:
related parties during the year: (Cont'd) (%)

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Rent and building management fee paid to a company hLMHTZ? R 2
controlled by the then Controlling Shareholder RAlZHE REFERE - 458
Rent and building management fee paid to associates ENBERACHE NEFERSE 3,052 2,873
Considerations in respect of the disposals of subsidiaries AR ENBAR FREAL
to related parties, who were companies wholly-owned (RETLERIHER A ER 2
by the then Controlling Shareholder/a company wholly Hxﬂxi’i‘ﬁ%ﬁz 8/
and beneficially owned by a close family member of —{ B8 B 2 AR R K
the then Controlling Shareholder and EEHRTYICRERERER
a Director/companies wholly and beneficially owned EnRBCNR/EER/AART
by Directors and/or a substantial shareholder of TERRE (ERERAZER
the Company (as trustee) at the time of entering BB AR 2RE (M)
into the respective agreements (note) 6,809,462 6,187,432
Revenue recognised in respect of sales of ERREBHEREEANETE
the Group's stock of properties to Directors FTEZEZHA - 118,764
Note: Details of the Pinecrest Disposal (Note 39(a)) and the Win Kings Ffi3E : Pinecrest & (Fff5E39(a) ) & Win Kingsit &

Disposal (Note 39(b)) were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 5th December, 2016, 13th January, 2017 and
10th February, 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 28th
December, 2016.

Details of the Great Captain Disposal (Note 39(c)) were set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 15th March,
2017, 4th May, 2017 and 23rd June, 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 13th April, 2017.

Details of the Windsor Disposal (Note 39(g)) were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 23rd December, 2015,
2nd February, 2016, 1st September, 2016 and 5th October,
2016 and the circular of the Company dated 15th January, 2016.

The above disposals constituted connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(WHE@NZ%\E%%F$ ABHA
—E-RF+=-AAH" —+tF—A
+=HR =T — tifﬂ+52 N LA K
ZE-RFTZAZTN\BZEHRNA

Great Captainth & (i 5£39(c) ) Z 7 1BE
HINARNTEBRA-—T—+E=A+H
B —Z2—+FRANBE-_Z—+F XA
—H=AZATUARE_E—+ENA+=
AZ@BHA -

EHE 2 FFE (E39(9) ) B &5
m$ ﬁa%%:; EF+ZAZ+=
B —ZE—R"F-_A=-H ZZT—X FNA
75&—? NETARBZAMUAR=
T-R"F-At+tHRBZREEA

RIE EMARRE14AZE - ElHEBKAR
AlZEBERS-

Secretarial fee, accountancy fee and consultancy fee were charged WMEBR BHEBEREMBEDNIRAEE  FR
based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by central TTREBPIPREE A 2 AR 2 8 S Be i ULER © &
administrative departments of the Group. Management fee, licence BE. EﬁFﬂg ) %ﬁ@&@?ﬁ@ﬁﬂ*ﬁﬁfxiﬁi#
fee, rent and building management fee were determined based BE A PRz BEOMERRT E E  FLE MK
on terms similar to those applicable to transactions with unrelated AE*ET?K@F*TT%& FERIR B I T IS A K
parties. Interest income was charged at the prevailing market rates T

based on outstanding balances during the year.

"

ZE-EFFR EA
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i
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48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. ERBEALRSZ @

(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Rental services, property management services, leasing
administration services and property administration services, asset
management and maintenance services, advisory and consultancy
services and other ordinary services (the contract for services
with effect from 1st November, 2017 (details were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 31st October, 2017)
superseded the former contract for services (details were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 31st October,
2014)) were charged at the terms agreed by both parties. These
related party transactions also constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of these continuing connected transactions are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in the

section headed "Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

Considerations in respect of the disposals of subsidiaries: (i) for
the Pinecrest Disposal, the Win Kings Disposal and the Windsor
Disposal, were determined after arm’s length negotiations between
both parties with reference to the consolidated net asset value of
the respective subsidiaries at their respective date of completion;
and (i) for the Great Captain Disposal, was determined after arm’s
length negotiations between both parties with reference to the
initial investment costs of the SJB Shares, notional interests on
the net investment amount, total amount of dividends income or
distributions from the SJB Shares received and the outstanding
amount of borrowings of Great Captain as at the date of

completion.

Sales amounts recognised for the disposals of the Group's stock of
properties were determined with reference to the prevailing market

values.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group entered
into facility agreements with a Director. Details are set out in
Note 37. These transactions were fully exempted from reporting,
announcement, independent shareholders’ approval and annual

review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(Cont'd)

Balances:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had balances with
Directors/companies controlled by Directors and/or a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as trustee)/a close family member
of Directors and/or a substantial shareholder of the Company
(as trustee) of approximately HK$17,940,000 (2016: the then
Controlling Shareholder and companies controlled by the then
Controlling Shareholder and/or his close family members of
approximately HK$18,349,000) in aggregate which were included
in other receivables.

Details of the balances with other related parties at the end of the

reporting period are set out in Notes 24, 37 and 38.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes
15 and 16. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the approval
of the board of Directors having regard to the performance of
individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group

and the prevailing market condition as appropriate.

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. ERBEALRSZ @

=3

RBER AEEEERE EERAA
RAEFEZRRE (EREFEA)ERZRF—
MEEFR /" RAARNEERR (EARET
N BREENZRERBZRGEHREHN A
17,940,000 7T (ZF —XF | &R 2 ERK
BEREESRSEEBERYZRENKE
| 2 A R4 £18,349,00058 7T ) 0 B B HEE
H At fE AR BRI A ©

RREER  BEMEPEA T 2R BESHFES
BN 24 - 37K%38 o

TEEBAEME:
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31st
December, 2017 which principally affected the results or assets of

the Group.

Place of Class of share/

incorporation/ registered

operation capital held

Name of subsidiary BRI FiRe,/
WELREH R AR
Alpha Team Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary
ERERRHES Rk

Both Talent Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
TREBR AT 0 ERk
Cardin Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
ERARARAR BE ERR
Chase Master Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
REFRAA BE ERR
Chinese Estates, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
EANEEXERAF EE ERR
Chinese Estates Hong Kong Ordinary
(Harcourt House) Limited b LTimmk
Conduit Road Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
TEEEREBRAF EE ERR
Country Homes Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
Bt EER

Non-voting

deferred ordinary

BREE

REERR

Non-voting

deferred founder

ERRE

BRI AR

Dollar Union Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
SREAERRDA BE ERR
Estate Rose Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary
EBAARES EER
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49. TEM B RFS

EERRIHLEAHBARZHBELRES
RITR B TRABER -_FT—tF+=
A=+ HAUAEEZXENEEREEY

BMBRATIZHE
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/  paid-up share capital/
registered registered capital
capital held by the Company
ERTRARE ARAMBHERE
BRE/EMER AMER 2B
Directly  Indirectly
=84 B3
US$1 - 100%
1E7T
HK$1 - 100%
VET
HK$2 - 100%
28T
HK$2 - 100%
2B
HK$1,000 100% -
1,000/ 7T
HK$200 - 100%
200/ 7T
HK$10,000 - 70%
10,000/ 7T
HK$200 - 100%
20087
HK$164,400
164,400 7T
HK$1,000
1,000/ 7
HK$100 - 87.5%%*
100/8 7T
Us$1 - 100%
1%

Principal activities
TEEK

Investment holding

REER

Property development
and trading
NEERREE

Property trading
MEER

Securities investment

Investment holding
and provision of
management services
REERR
REERRG

Property investment

NERE

Property development
and trading
NEBRREE

Property investment

Property development
and trading
NEBRREE

Securities investment
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. X EME A RI=FE @

(Cont'd)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/  paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary EmAL FiRe,/ ERTRME KRAMBHERES,  Principal activities
WELREM FE-Siub M E AR RE/EREX AMER B TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# Gk
Ever Ideal Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
Hong Kong ERR 1%7T EHRE
KBABRER/
BiE
Evergo China Holdings Limited Bermuda/ Ordinary ~ HK$100,775,869.10 - 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong EER 100,775,869.108 T REZK
BRE/
B
Evergo Holdings (China) British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$2,509,454 - 100% Investment holding
Company Limited Hong Kong EER 2,509,4543 1T REER
EXeEE (PE)ERAF RBEBRES/
B
Evergo Holdings Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - 100% Investment holding
EXREEERRF 7 gl 100087 BARR
Express Right Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Property investment
AEFRAT United Kingdom Tmm 1%7T WERE
KBABRER/
&%
Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100% Securities margin
RESRBBRLF BB LAk 10,000,000 7 financing
EFRECHE
Fair Eagle Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 100% Broking and dealing
Company Limited B LEk 5,000,000 7T in futures contracts
REHEERAF HEANBLERESR
Fair Eagle Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HK$228,000,000 - 100%  Provision of brokerage
Company Limited Bk L@ER 228,000,000/ 7T REUELRE
REBHBRLF
Flying Ease Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
ARBERRE EBRARES ERk 1%7 BHRE
Global Stage Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
HEEAREE L@k ESH BHRE
Grade World Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Securities investment
MR EFR A 0 gl 2B BHRE
Grandhall Secretarial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Secretarial services
Services Limited B R 10,0007 WE RS
HENERBERAT
Hillsborough Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Property investment
Hong Kong ERR 1% MERE
REHBRES/
0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. X EME A RI=FE @

(Cont'd)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/  paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary EmAL FiRe,/ ERTRME KRAMBHERES,  Principal activities
WELREM FE-Siub M E AR RE/EREX AMER B TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# Gk
Jade Wealthy Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Securities investment
REERRES ERR [ EHRE
Knightlights Property Luxembourg/ Ordinary GBP33,000 - 100% Property investment
International S.A. United Kingdom LER 33,0005 £% MERE
ERE/
%
Lucky Way Company Ltd. British Virgin Islands, Ordinary US$1 - 100% Securities investment
k d itish Virgin Islands/ di $ ities i
(Business name: Hong Kong gl IES EHRE
Lucky Path Limited) EEEERRS/
(%28 B
Lucky Path Limited )
Oriental Master Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 100% - Investment holding
KEEAREE LAk ESH REER
Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
REGIRE)ERAF 0 gl 2B REZR
Paul Y. Holdings Company Limited ~ Cayman Islands/ Ordinary HK$70,715,005.70 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong L@E 7071500570 T REZKR
Meks/
B
Perfect World Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Estate management
BENEERRRATF BE EER 10,0007% 7T nEER
Pride Favour Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
BRERRA EBAARES EER E EHRE
Product Market Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
EBABARES EER E EHRE
Rich Honour Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
LR NG Bt EER 2B REZKR
River Court Properties Limited Isle of Man/ Ordinary GBP2 - 100% Property investment
United Kingdom LAk PES MERE
588/
®
Smart Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
RELRRES ERR E REZR
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
REFRLA BE ERR 2B NEEE
State Smart Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Property investment
BEERRA United Kingdom TR IES MERE
HREBRES/
®
Strong Access Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
EBURAREES gl IE EHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. X EME A RI=FE @

(Cont'd)
Issued and

fully paid Proportion of

Place of Class of share/ share capital/  paid-up share capital/

incorporation/ registered registered registered capital

operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary EmAL FiRe,/ ERTRME KRAMBHERES,  Principal activities
WELREM FE-Siub M E AR RE/EREX AMER B TEXH

Directly Indirectly

E# Gk
The House of Kwong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Cosmetics distribution
Sang Hong Limited &k LER 500,0003% 7T and trading
BEEEERAR ft@maHRE S
Title Smart Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
EBABARES EER [E EHRE
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
TRERRA EBABARES EER [E REZKR
Victory Creat Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
EBAARES EER [E EHRE
Wing Lee Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Securities investment
KHRERBBREAT Bt LA 2B EHRE
BES(ER)CEERERRF PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100% Property investment
(Evergo (Beijing) Corporate F A ER 500,000 7T WERE

Management Co,, Ltd.) #

Fxe (ER)REEFFRARS PRC Registered US$20,000,000 - 100% Property trading
(Evergo Investment Counsel H AR 20,000,000 7T ES

(Beijing) Co,, Ltd.)

A& BIR SR s 5 B - S A A )
BATEIESE S

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at

the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting

period.

* 75% owned by the Group and 25% owned by Power Jade * REEFH75%KPower Jade Limited# A
Limited 25%

o Wholly foreign-owned enterprise A HNEBE %
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The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all associates would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the associates as at 31st

December, 2017 which principally affected the results or assets of

the Group.

Name of associate
BEAREE

Best Profit Limited
FEARRA

Direct Win Development Limited

SRERBRAA

Ever Sure Investments Limited
KR ERR AT

Finedale Industries Limited

EHEXERAR

Power Jade Limited
(Business name:
Power Jade Capital Limited)
(RBaf:
Power Jade Capital Limited )

The Kwong Sang Hong
International Limited

RRHEMAEERAA
Oriental Arts Building Co,, Ltd. !

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

Place of
incorporation/
operation
HMAL/
FE=giE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
Be

Hong Kong
ER

Hong Kong
Be

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KBRBRER/
&0

Bermuda
BRE

PRC
®

t Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Class of share/
registered
capital held
FERE/
M E AR

Ordinary
LER
Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
TER

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
LA

Ordinary
EER

Registered
BRIE-EN
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REMBRRME

50. T EBE N TS

EERARIEEHBERRZHFBEECRIBE
TR TRABBER-_FT—tF
T REAKECXEREERE

BEATZHE

S
A=
gz

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
ERTRAR
BAx/EMELR

HK$1
15T
HK$900

9007 7T

HK$2
2B
HK$9,999
9,999% 1T

US$20
20%7T

HK$100,000
100,000/ 7T

US$24,920,000
24,920,000 7T

Proportion of
equity attributable
indirectly

to the Company
ARRBEES
RAZEAL

25%

33.33%

50%

33.33%

50%

50%

50%

RN E DR

62

+
B

=2
4

Principal activities
TERK

Property investment
and trading
NEREREE

Property trading

Property trading

Property investment

NELE

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REEK

Property investment
and hotel operation

NERERBEED



51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other current assets
Time deposit and bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Share capital (Note 36)
Capital redemption reserve
Other reserve
Retained profits

Total equity

Non-current liability
Loans from subsidiaries

FRBEE
A R®RE
)P

RBEE
B8~ RIR B RIR
Hip e &EE
EHER R RITHER

RBEE
RE M B R RFRIA
Hp R aE

RBEERE

EERAERRBAEE

AXFEEA
LR AR
AR (Ki5E36)
BB
H i fEE
REHEF

IR A R3S A5

FRBAE
MERREE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on

51. AR A EARRAKER R REE

2017 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
TET FAET
5,135,893 5,135,893
2,632,518 1,689,843
7,768,411 6,825,736
11,485,843 4,569,529
403 1,619
64,376 243332
11,550,622 4,814,480
34,046 23,373
1,149 1,454
35,195 24,827
11,515,427 4,789,653
19,283,838 11,615,389
190,762 190,762
138,062 138,062

9 9
16,836,005 9,865,556
17,164,838 10,194,389
2,119,000 1,421,000
19,283,838 11,615,389

EEEEER - \F_A=-+=—B8#E

22nd February, 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Sze-wan BREF R
Director s

REEEM YA TIEERREFTER

Lam, Kwong-wai MR
Director EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 HEZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 51. R AR ERRBRREE

52.

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Contd) ()
Reserve movement of the Company ARFZREREEE
Capital
redemption Other Retained
reserve reserve profits
EAFEE FE H %5 & &z A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At Tst January, 2016 RZZE—RF—-H—H 138,062 5,871,060
Profit for the year IR E i ) - 18,015,496
Interim dividend for 2016 paid ENZE—RNFRHRKRE - (19,076)
Final dividend for 2015 paid BENZZE—RAFRARE - (19,076)
Special interim dividends B =T —RFRR
for 2016 paid A ERRR B - (13,982,848)
At 31st December, 2016 R-T—RF
+=-—A=+-—8 138,062 9,865,556
Profit for the year KEE B - 16,737,459
Interim dividend for 2017 paid ENZE—tFFHRE - (381,524)
Final dividend for 2016 paid BENZZE—RNERARE - (19,076)
Special interim dividends BERZZ—RFR
for 2016 and 2017 paid ZE—EFRERFHRE - (9,366,410)
At 31st December, 2017 R-ZZE—t#F
+=HA=+—8 138,062 16,836,005

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 22nd February,

2018.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEFEBEHE

AEEBRERF2EE BERBERENT:

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

For the year ended 31st December

BZ+-A=t-BLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiHx FHT T TiHx
Results £ |
Revenue WA 1,516,655 3,745,148 1,542,397 2,627288 6,452,726
Profit before tax from RERELEEBL
continuing operations BR 15 B A 4,125,682 7258,155 8,196,126  9,008758 6,945,040
Income tax expense FBRAY (327,049) (564,966) (476,395) (255,859) (443,919)
Profit for the year from TEEREFBLEEY
continuing operations iyl 3,798,633 6,693,189 7719731 8,752,899 6,501,121
Profit for the year from TEEREDKRELEER
discontinued operation 2Kl - - - - 501
Profit for the year KERET 3,798,633 6693189 7719731 8752899 6,501,622
Profit for the year attributable to: EIERFERT
Owners of the Company N/NCIEZ=PN 3,708,886 6,360,312 7727208 8,744,927 6,317737
Non-controlling interests RS 89,747 332,877 (7477) 7972 183,885
3,798,633 6,693,189 7719,731 8,752,899 6,501,622
Eamings per share (HK$) BREN(ET)
Basic and diluted (note) EARES () 1.94 333 405 458 33]
Total comprehensive income for the year — [E{E ARG E 2 AN B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARAEEA 16348710 3418670 6520561 8484606  6712,022
Non-controlling interests RS 89,747 332,877 (7477) 7972 183,833
16438457 3751547 6513084 8492578 6895855
Final and interim dividends per share BRAARTHRE
(HK cents) (1) 30 2 31 3] 70
Special interim dividends per share BBl B AR 8
(HK cents) (1) 355 869 380 655 130
Note: The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on W5t : SREANREEAFDREBEEFEARGEES

the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the years and on
the weighted average number of shares in issue during the relevant
years. Diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no diluting events during the relevant years.

ATE(E N A B F 2 B 1T 2 I F 19
A H AN TEEERIR WAWFE TR

EERNEGRERRF AR -

"

B LEEH

EA

[
e
i
i)

257



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY FH B E

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Net asset value per share attributable to
owners of the Company (HK$)

Number of shares issued

BERAR

EELE
BELE

AR EE

fEfh:
AREEBA
FERER

KRATEAAES
BhEEFE(ET)

BETRHEE

At 31st December
W+=A=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL FTET THT THT FET
56,063,355 45,775,735 63,055,217 71,424,931 75,810,226
(19,570,353)  (15875,880) (22729,855)  (29,772,338)  (28,620,461)
36,493,002 29,899,855 40,325,362 41,652,593 47,189,765
36,385,916 29,804,216 40,247,600 41,567,354 47,103,748
107,086 95,639 77762 85,239 86,017
36,493,002 29,899,855 40,325,362 41,652,593 47,189,765
19.07 15.62 21.10 21.79 24.69
1,907,619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
TEWERMER

The following table sets forth the Group's major properties as at 31st December, 2017:

TR AEER -_ZT—LF+_A=+—HZIEYZE:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG BRYE
Properties held for investment BEREME
Category of Group’s
the lease interest
Location Lot number Usage term 8
12 1 B R 5% A% HBER Fria RS
1. Harcourt House Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Long 100%
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd, in Inland Lot No. 8573 [SES R
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors, A ER85735% 2
rooms 1004 and 1805) ETHHRHE
39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)
ERAE
EBET
HLITEIN
(7-8-9:22:23:25"
2612718 - 1004 & 1805Z B M)
(BAE113EEN)
2. Causeway Place* Certain parts or shares of and Residential/ Long 100%
Various shops on ground floor, in Inland Lot No. 7742 Commercial ®H
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and MR 774255 2 FE/HE
their respective portions of exterior walls, ETFHHRHE

together with flats C, 1, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q
(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor
Hong Kong Mansion

nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and

nos. 2-10 Great George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
103 i 7

ERNEE

BREME-THRR

ALAIE )G #52-105%

ENPN]

W EE - 1BREETEER
HEBH 2 IMEER

3EC 1)K L*N-0-P:Q
(BREZELZTA) RHEA

* Certain shops have been sold

ETAMCEN

—z—tEExR  #ABzss 259



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES = E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

ok

3. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 391 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
ERNERE
BEEIRETEN
(BE3VE TS EMRT7TEER)

4. Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
REH=H
ERABANE
BB
(BEETAREEUREEES )

5. Coronation Circle
1 Yau Cheung Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
hEE
BRABANE
e
(BEETAREEUREEEE )

ERBYE

BFEREWE (F)
Lot number Usage
R R A%
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 I%
BREARMN55E
ETEA S HE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot Nos. EES
11167 and 11168
NERHER
11167 %11168% 2
ETHEA s HE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073 EES

N AHER 1107358 2
EFAosmnE
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Category of
the lease
term
HaEEa

Medium

o

Medium

o 5

Medium

o 5

Group’s
interest
-3
Frit s

33.33%

25%

15%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Property held for sale

Location

B

1. 55 Conduit Road
No. 55 Conduit Road
Mid-Levels West
Hong Kong
6]
BEYLRAL
FZE555%

* Sold after 31st December, 2017
RZZE—tF+-A=+—RH%&EH

*  Excluding all car parking spaces area

TBRMASRA2EE

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

FEMEM =R

BRBYE =
BEHEDE
Approx.
saleable
floor area Group's
(square feet) interest
Lot number BRAERAZ Usage %8
R R (FHR) Jices Frib R
Remaining Portion of 4,710% Residential 70%
Section A of F=x

Inland Lot No. 2138
Sub-section 1 of

Section A of

Inland Lot No. 2138 and
Inland Lot No. 2612

M3 EE 213857 AR B2 T 50 )
M3 ER21385RAR 19 B [
M3 B8 261257

B LEER

g ABxzE 261



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES = E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

o 36

1. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
EtRFBEEEE
ERmeEG R
R=RALE R BI%R

2.  Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
REEBRKE
IERmEG R
RIRILEE R R IO
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BB A b ) 5%
BEREME

Category of
Usage the lease term
Az HEER
Hotel Short
B E 2 HA
Office Short
BriE 52 ER

Group's
interest
&
Fri e

50%

50%



PROPERTIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Properties held for investment

Location

o 36

1. River Court
116-129 Fleet Street
London, EC4, United Kingdom
River Court
B fm BECA
Fleet Street 116-1295%

2. 14 St George Street
14 St George Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
St George Street 14 3%
SR fm BW1
St George Street 145%

3.  61-67 Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and
11-14 Soho Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
Oxford Street 61-6755 &
Soho Street 11-145%
ZE R W1
Oxford Street 61-675% ( 2855 ) &
Soho Street 11-145%

4. 11 and 12 St James's Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
11 and 12 St James's Square and
14 to 17 Ormond Yard
London, SW1Y 4LB, United Kingdom
St James's Square 11X 1258 &
Ormond Yard 1421755
BB SWIY 4LB
St James's Square 11 %1257 &
Ormond Yard 14Z& 175%

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

RE Y=

FIEREME

Category of the

Usage lease term
A& AR
Commercial Freehold
[EES KA SERE
Commercial Freehold
[EES KA ERE
Residential/ Freehold
Commercial KA FERE
FE /%
Residential/ Freehold
Commercial KA FERE
P

B LEEH

FEMEM =R

Group's
interest
&
Fri e

100%

100%

100%

100%

g ABxEE 263



SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
YIS R R MY R

PROPERTY IN HONG KONG BERWRE
Property held for development BIERREME
Estimated
gross floor
Estimated Approx. area
completion site area  (square feet) Group's
Stage of date (square feet)  fhFtAEMH interest
Name of project Lot number completion TR HEEROH i Usage £
HE AR R TR B B (FER) (FER) it} Frik s
1. Kwun Tong Town New Kowloon Superstructure First quarter 234,160 1,853,561 Residential/ 10%
Centre Project Inland Lot No. 6514 works of 2021 Commercial
Development Areas 2 and 3 HNE in progress “T-—f FE/ %
Kwun Tong Town Centre A B 65145% TERETR F-F
Kowloon, Hong Kong EITH
BREMHLGHE
BENE
BEmHL

EF_RE-RER

Note:  The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with the Urban Renewal Authority

Wi DEBREDBEETRERRILZERBAER M
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